NOTICE OF MEETING

Meeting: PLANNING DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE

Date and Time: WEDNESDAY, 10 AUGUST 2016, AT 9.00 AM*

Place: THE COUNCIL CHAMBER, APPLETREE COURT,
LYNDHURST

Telephone enquiries to: Lyndhurst (023) 8028 5000

023 8028 5588 - ask for Jan Debnam
E-mail jan.debnam@nfdc.gov.uk

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION:

*Members of the public are entitled to speak on individual items on the public agenda
in accordance with the Council's public participation scheme. To register to speak
please contact Development Control Administration on Tel: 02380 285345 or E-mail:
DCAdministration@nfdc.gov.uk

Bob Jackson
Chief Executive

Appletree Court, Lyndhurst, Hampshire. SO43 7PA
www.newforest.gov.uk

This Agenda is also available on audio tape, in Braille, large print and digital format

AGENDA

Apologies

1. MINUTES
To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 13 July 2016 as a correct record.

2, DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
To note any declarations of interest made by members in connection with an
agenda item. The nature of the interest must also be specified.

Members are asked to discuss any possible interests with Democratic Services
prior to the meeting.



PLANNING APPLICATIONS FOR COMMITTEE DECISION
To determine the applications set out below:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Land South of Lymington Road, New Milton (Application 13/11276)
(Pages 1 - 16)

4 houses; site of alternative natural green space; access (Outline Application
with details only of access)

RECOMMENDED:

Refuse

Merryfield Park, Derritt Lane, Sopley (Application 13/11408) (Pages 17 -
22)

Proposed amendments to the Section 106 Agreement regarding the type of
Affordable Housing and the removal of Code Level Four requirements

Approved Scheme: The erection of up to 80 dwellings with the retention of up
to 11 existing buildings with a total floor area of no more than 1,309 sqm for
B1 uses and a museum all with associated access point, the provision of
SANGS and open space, the provision of a footpath along Derritt Lane and
the demolition of all buildings and structures on the site with the exception of
those retained for the B1 or museum uses (Outline application with all matters
reserved)

RECOMMENDED:

That the Section 106 Agreement be varied in accordance with the details set
out in paragraph 9 of the report.

59 Station Road, New Milton (Application 15/10032) (Pages 23 - 36)

Second and three-storey extensions to create 10 flats; parking
RECOMMENDED:

Planning consent subject to conditions

Land adjacent 1 Dukeswood Drive, Dibden Purlieu, Hythe (Application
15/10039) (Pages 37 - 48)

Detached house
RECOMMENDED:

Planning consent subject to conditions

40 Hobart Drive, New Milton (Application 15/11264) (Pages 49 - 58)
Two-storey dwelling; parking

RECOMMENDED:

Planning consent subject to conditions



(f)

(9

(h)

)

Land of 115 Eastfield Lane, Ringwood (Application 15/11276) (Pages 59 -
68)

Bungalow; access and parking alterations; demolition of existing garage
RECOMMENDED:

Planning consent subject to conditions

Land of 46 & 48 Hammonds Green, Totton (Application 15/11590) (Pages
69 - 78)

Bungalow; parking; access off Brackley Way
RECOMMENDED:

Planning consent subject to conditions

Police Station, 68-74 Old Milton Road, New Milton (Application 15/11765)
(Pages 79 - 90)

Variation of condition 2 of Planning Permission 14/11441 to allow amended
plan no’s for variation to plot 3

RECOMMENDED:

Grant the variation of condition

Land North of Loperwood Lane, Calmore, Totton (Application 15/11797)
(Pages 91 - 106)

Up to 80 dwellings; open space; drainage (Outline Application with all matters
reserved)

RECOMMENDED:

Refuse

Ringwood Social Club, 19 West Street, Ringwood (Application 15/11824)
(Pages 107 - 124)

Office building; 1 pair of semi-detached houses; 1 terrace of 3 houses;
demolition of existing club extension and single-storey rear extension; external
window and door alterations; parking; access; landscaping

RECOMMENDED:

Planning consent subject to conditions



(k)

(1)

(m)

(n)

(o)

29 Fairview Drive, Hythe (Application 16/10022) (Pages 125 - 136)

Single-storey rear extension; raised decking; fenestration alterations and
handrail to side elevation; access alterations to No. 29; two bungalows;
access; parking

RECOMMENDED:

Planning consent subject to conditions

Site of 14 Salisbury Road, Totton (Application 16/10337) (Pages 137 -
146)

One three-storey block of 4 flats; bin and cycle store; demolition of existing
(part retrospective)

RECOMMENDED:

Planning consent subject to conditions

35 Shaftesbury Street, Fordingbridge (Application 16/10460) (Pages 147 -
164)

Use as 30 seat cinema; 8 flats; bar; terrace; fenestration alterations; external
refurbishment

RECOMMENDED:

Planning consent subject to conditions

Four Acres Farm, Salisbury Road, Calmore, Netley Marsh (Application
16/10508) (Pages 165 - 176)

Temporary siting of agricultural workers’ mobile dwelling with ancillary
agricultural storage sheds (retrospective) and container

RECOMMENDED:

Refuse

35-37 Hampton Lane, Blackfield, Fawley (Application 16/10524) (Pages
177 - 188)

Use of ground floor as 2 flats; single-storey front and rear extensions;
associated alterations; cycle store

RECOMMENDED:

Planning consent subject to conditions



(P)

(@)

(s)

(t)

(u)

Land rear of the Compass Inn, High Street, East End, Damerham
(Application 16/10579) (Pages 189 - 198)

Conversion of barn to dwelling; associated external alterations;
office/cartshed; use of stables as workshop

RECOMMENDED:
Planning consent subject to conditions

Chance, Hare Lane, Hordle (Application 16/10583) (Pages 199 - 206)

Single-storey rear extension, raise ridge height; front and rear dormers in
association with new first floor; detached double garage

RECOMMENDED:

Planning consent subject to conditions

9 Hurst Road, Milford-on-Sea (Application 16/10621) (Pages 207 - 218)
2 pairs of semi-detached houses; parking; access; demolition of existing
RECOMMENDED:

Executive Head of Economy, Housing and Planning authorised to grant
planning consent

49 Old Milton Road, New Milton (Application 16/10626) (Pages 219 - 224)

Display illuminated fascia sign and non-illuminated window and door signs
(Application for Advertisement Consent)

RECOMMENDED:

Grant advertisement consent subject to conditions.

11 St Johns Street, Hythe (Application 16/10658) (Pages 225 - 230)
2 outbuildings (retrospective)

RECOMMENDED:

Refuse

Land at Flaxfields End, Fordingbridge (Application 16/10681) (Pages 231
- 240)

2 pairs of link-attached houses; bike stores; associated parking
RECOMMENDED:

Refuse



(v)

(w)

(x)

(y)

()

(aa)

Land adjacent 30 Barrs Wood Road, New Milton (Application 16/10748)
(Pages 241 - 250)

Bungalow with associated parking; access; landscaping
RECOMMENDED:

Planning consent subject to conditions

1 Knowland Drive, Milford-on-Sea (Application 16/10753) (Pages 251 -
258)

2 detached houses; demolition of existing
RECOMMENDED:

Refuse

45 Barton Court Avenue, Barton-on-Sea, New Milton (Application
16/10758) (Pages 259 - 268)

2 two-storey detached houses; detached garage; access; parking; fencing;
landscaping; demolition of existing

RECOMMENDED:

Planning consent subject to conditions

Church, Fordingbridge Road, Whitsbury (Application 16/10759) (Pages
269 - 282)

Use as 1 residential dwelling; windows; rooflights; minor external alterations;
partial demolition

RECOMMENDED:

Planning consent subject to conditions

52 Doe Copse Way, New Milton (Application 16/10767) (Pages 283 - 288)
Fence (Retrospective)

RECOMMENDED:

Planning consent subject to conditions

13b Junction Road, Totton (Application 16/10792) (Pages 289 - 296)
Use as dwelling; associated external alterations (retrospective)

RECOMMENDED:

Executive Head of Economy, Housing and Planning authorised to grant
planning consent



(bb)

(cc)

(dd)

(ee)

4 Forest Gate Gardens, Pennington, Lymington (Application 16/10820)

(Pages 297 - 304)

Use of garage as ancillary living accommodation; fenestration alterations,

extend driveway

RECOMMENDED:

Planning consent subject to conditions

Harleys, 1 Shaftesbury Street, Fordingbridge (Application 16/10332)

(Pages 305 - 310)

Ancillary smoking area and temporary parasols

RECOMMENDED:

Planning consent subject to conditions

Land of 8 Malthouse Gardens, Marchwood (Application 16/10833) (Pages

311 - 318)

Two-storey extension to form dwelling

RECOMMENDED:

Refuse

Rear of 117 Christchurch Road, Ringwood (Application 16/10854) (Pages

319 - 332)
House; parking; shed

RECOMMENDED:

Planning consent subject to conditions

ANY OTHER ITEMS WHICH THE CHAIRMAN DECIDES ARE URGENT

To:

Councillors:

Mrs D E Andrews (Chairman)
P J Armstrong

Mrs S M Bennison

Mrs F Carpenter

A H G Davis

R L Frampton

L E Harris

D Harrison

Mrs A J Hoare

Mrs M D Holding

Councillors:

J M Olliff-Cooper

A K Penson

W S Rippon-Swaine

Mrs A M Rostand

Miss A Sevier

M H Thierry

R A Wappet

Mrs C V Ward (Vice-Chairman)
M L White

Mrs P A Wyeth



STATUTORY TESTS

Introduction

In making a decision to approve or refuse planning applications, or applications for listed
building consent, conservation area consent and other types of consent, the decision maker
is required by law to have regard to certain matters.

The most commonly used statutory tests are set out below. The list is not exhaustive. In

reaching its decisions on the applications in this agenda, the Committee is obliged to take
account of the relevant statutory tests.

The Development Plan

The Development Plan Section 38

The Development Plan comprises the local development plan documents (taken as a whole)
which have been adopted or approved in relation to that area.

If regard is to be had to the Development Plan for the purpose of any determination to be

made the determination must be made in accordance with the plan unless material
considerations indicate otherwise.

Listed Buildings

Section 66 General duty as respects listed buildings in exercise of planning functions.
Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990

In considering whether to grant planning permission for development which affects a listed
building or its setting, the local planning authority or, as the case may be, the Secretary of
State shall have special regard to the desirability of preserving the building or its setting or
any features or special architectural or historic interest which it possesses.

Conservation Areas

Section 72 General duty as respects conservation areas in exercise of planning functions
Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990

(1) In the exercise, with respect to any buildings or other land in a conservation area, of any
powers under any of the provisions mentioned in subsection (2), special attention shall be
paid to the desirability of preserving or enhancing the character or appearance of that area.

(2) The provisions referred to in subsection (1) are the Planning Acts and Part 1 of the
Historic Buildings and Ancient Monuments Act 1953.



Areas of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB’s)

Section 85. General duty as respects AONB'’s in exercise of any function
Countryside and Rights of Way Act 2000

In exercising or performing any functions in relation to, or so as to affect, land in an area of
outstanding natural beauty, a relevant authority shall have regard to the purpose of
conserving and enhancing the natural beauty of the area of outstanding natural beauty.

Trees

Section 197. Trees
Town and Country Planning Act 1990

It shall be the duty of the local planning authority (a) to ensure, whenever it is appropriate,
that in granting planning permission for any development adequate provision is made, by the
imposition of conditions, for the preservation or planting of trees; and (b) to make such
orders under section 198 as appear to the authority to be necessary in connection with the
grant of such permission, whether for giving effect to such conditions or otherwise.

Biodiversity

Section 40. Duty to conserve biodiversity
Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006

Every public authority must, in exercising its functions, have regard, so far as is consistent
with the proper exercise of those functions, to the purpose of conserving biodiversity.

Conserving biodiversity includes, in relation to a living organism or type of habitat, restoring
or enhancing a population or habitat.

Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2010

Under the provisions of the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2010, the
Council has to ensure that development proposals will not have an adverse impact on the
integrity of a designated or candidate Special Area of Conservation (SAC), classified or
potential Special Protection Area (SPA), or listed Ramsar site and mitigation will be
required.

Any development involving the creation of new residential units within the District will have
such an impact because of the resulting cumulative recreational pressure on these sensitive
sites. Under Policy DM3 of the adopted Local Plan Part 2, the Council's general approach is
to recognise that the impact is adequately mitigated through the payment of contributions for
the provision of alternative recreational facilities, management measures and monitoring.

Equality

The Equality Act 2010 provides protection from discrimination in respect of certain protected
characteristics, namely: age, disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity,
race, religion or beliefs and sex and sexual orientation. It places the Council under a legal
duty to have due regard to the advancement of equality in the exercise of its powers
including planning powers. The Committee must be mindful of this duty inter alia when
determining all planning applications. In particular the Committee must pay due regard to the
need to:



(1) eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct that is
prohibited by or under the Act;

(2) advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic and persons who do not share it; and

(3) foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and
persons who do not share it.

Financial Considerations in Planning

Section 70 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Localism Act
2011 requires all reports dealing with the determination of planning applications to set out
how “local financial considerations” where they are material to the decision have been dealt
with. These are by definition only Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) payments and
government grant in the form of the New Homes Bonus.

New Forest District Council adopted a CIL charging schedule on 14 April 2014. The
implementation date for the charging schedule in 6 April 2015. The New Homes Bonus
Grant is paid to the Council by the Government for each net additional dwelling built in the
District. The amount paid depends on the Council tax banding of the new dwellings and
ranges between £798 and £2,304 per annum for a six year period. For the purposes of any
report it is assumed that all new dwellings are banded D (as we don’t actually know their
band at planning application stage) which gives rise to grant of £1152 per dwelling or £6,912
over six years.

10



Agenda Iltem 3a

Planning Development Control Committee 10 August 2016 Item 3 a

Application Number: 13/11276 Outline Planning Permission
Site: Land south of, LYMINGTON ROAD, NEW MILTON BH25 6PR
Development: ‘4 houses; site of alternative natural green space; access

(Outline Application with details only of access)

Applicant: Mr Chappell
Target Date: 06/12/2013
Extension Date: 30/06/2016
1 REASON FOR COMMITTEE CONSIDERATION

Previous Committee consideration and contrary to policy and to allow additional
considerations that have come about following the initial resolution to be taken
on board. :

2 - DEVELOPMENT PLAN AND OTHER CONSTRAINTS
Built-up area
Landscape Feature
Protected trees

3 DEVELOPMENT PLAN, OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

Core Strateqy

Objectives

1. Special qualities, local distinctiveness and a high quality living environment
3. Housing '
6. Towns, villages and built environment quality

Policies

CS1: Sustainable development principles

CS2: Design quality

CS4: Energy and resource use

CS7: Open spaces, sport and recreation

CS10: The spatial strategy

CS15: Affordable housing contribution requirements from developments
CS24: Transport considerations

CS25: Developers contributions

Sites and Development Management Development Plan Document _

DM2: Nature conservation, biodiversity and geodiversity

DM3: Mitigation of impacts on European nature conservation sites

NMT12: New public open space south of Lymington Road, north of Chestnut
Avenue

Page 1



RELEVANT LEGISLATION AND GOVERNMENT ADVICE

Section 38 Development Plan
Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004
National Planning Policy Framework

RELEVANT SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE AND DOCUMENTS

SPD - New Milton Local Distinctiveness

SPD - Design of Waste Management Facilities in New Development
SPD - Parking Standards

SPD - Mitigation Strategy for European Sites

SPD - Housing Design, Density and Character

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

6.1 Erection of 6 houses and construct new access (54869) Refused on the
1st September 1994

6.2  Erection of 5 houses and construct new access (55862) Refused on the
6th Feb 1995. Appeal dismissed.

PARISH / TOWN COUNCIL COMMENTS

New Milton Town Council: recommend refusal - While the principle of enabling
development on the open space and Site of Alternative Natural Green Space is
accepted

1. The policy objective of providing at least 0.3 hectares of accessible
public open space and SANGS is not met; the extension of the road
and turning head into the western half of the site urbanises around
two thirds of the site such that the area available for delivering open
space and natural green space is too small. Further delivery of a
pedestrian through route for access is uncertain because the
indicative footpaths terminate in private land at the site boundary.

2. Unsafe access onto the A337: there is a lack of confidence in the
recorded wet weather speeds used to determine the appropriate
easterly visibility splay and uncertainty in delivering a suitable
visibility splay due to a lack of control over the necessary land.

3. Protected trees will not be adequately protected; given the absence
of an arboricultural method statement there is a lack of confidence
that the numerous protected trees on the site will be adequately
protected; it is noted that the indicative layout (which could become
subject to condition to implement) sites a garage underneath a
protected tree making that tree vulnerable to future applications for
management to safeguard the building only.

COUNCILLOR COMMENTS
None
CONSULTEE COMMENTS

9.1 Hampshire County Council Highway Engineer: No highway objections

Page 2



10

11

12

13

9.2

9.3

9.4

9.5

9.6

9.7

Tree Officer: No objection
Environmental Design (Urban Design): No objection
Policy: No objection

Ecologist: Recommend refusal (revised comment since previous
consideration of this application

Land Drainage: No objection subject to condition

Councils Valuer - The submitted viability assessment is not acceptable

REPRESENTATIONS RECEIVED

10.1

10 letters of objection concerned that the application only covers half the
site and it should be detailed as to what is happening on the other half of
the land. There should be restrictions on the land for future plans. There
are restrictive covenants on the land. There should be no vehicular
access to this site through our private road. The road is too narrow.
There is no need for two pathways to be marked onto the plan leading to
the existing right of way. Concerns have been expressed about
boundary ownership. Concerns over impact on residential amenity
including noise and disturbance and overlooking There is a pipeline
running through the site.

CRIME & DISORDER IMPLICATIONS

No relevant considerations

LOCAL FINANCE CONSIDERATIONS

If this development is granted permission and the dwellings built, the Council
will receive £4608 in each of the following six years from the dwellings'
completion, and as a result, a total of £27,648 in government grant under the
New Homes Bonus will be received.

WORKING WITH THE APPLICANT/AGENT

In accordance with paragraphs 186 and 187 of the National Planning Policy
Framework and Article 31 of Town and Country Planning (Development
Management Procedure) (England) Order 2010 , New Forest District Council
take a positive and proactive approach, seeking solutions to any problems
arising in the handling of development proposals so as to achieve, whenever
possible, a positive outcome.

This is achieved by

Strongly encouraging those proposing development to use the very
thorough pre application advice service the Council provides.

Working together with applicants/agents to ensure planning
applications are registered as expeditiously as possible.

Advising agents/applicants early on in the processing of an application
(through the release of a Parish Briefing Note) as to the key issues
relevant to the application.

Updating applicants/agents of issues that arise in the processing of
their applications through the availability of comments received on the
web or by direct contact when relevant.

Page 3



Working together with applicants/agents to closely manage the
planning application process to allow an opportunity to negotiate and
accept amendments on applications (particularly those that best
support the Core Strategy Objectives) when this can be done without
compromising government performance requirements.

Advising applicants/agents as soon as possible as to concerns that
cannot be dealt with during the processing of an application allowing for
a timely withdrawal and re-submission or decision based on the scheme
as originally submitted if this is what the applicant/agent requires.

When necessary discussing with applicants/agents proposed conditions
especially those that would restrict the use of commercial properties or
land when this can be done without compromising government
performance requirements.

In this case the concerns raised are significant and are not capable of
resolution through negotiation.

14 ASSESSMENT

14.1

14.1.1

14.1.2

14.1.3

Introduction

Members may recall considering this application for the erection of four
dwellings and two garages together with the provision of an informal
area of open space in the form of a Site of Alternative Natural Green

Space (SANGS) on the 8th October 2014. The Committee's decision
was that the Head of Planning and Transportation was authorised to
grant planning consent subject to the completion of a Section 106

Agreement by the 30th March 2015 to secure a financial contribution for
off-site affordable housing, transportation contributions and a minimum
of 0.3 hectares of land to be used as SANGS/ Open space. The Section
106 Agreement would have required all of the SANGS/ Open space to
be transferred to New Forest District Council.

The Section 106 Agreement was not completed within time and the
Committee's resolution has now expired.

The applicant has continuously maintained the view that the affordable
housing contribution would render the scheme unviable and he
submitted several viability assessments to demonstrate this. However,
the case put forward has not been supported by the Council's Valuer.
The applicants' concern over viability has resulted in significant delays
in reaching a decision. The application is brought back to Committee in
order to reach a conclusion. However, it should be noted that there have
been three significant changes in policy and circumstances at the site,
which are set out below:

e Firstly, on the 6th April 2015, the Community Infrastructure Levy
(CIL) was formally adopted by the Council.

e Secondly, the site is now understood to comprise high quality,
unimproved grassland and the site has been put forward to be
designated as a local wildlife site (Site of Important for Nature
Conservation -SINC).

Page 4



14.1.4

14.1.5

14.1.6

14.1.7

14.1.8

e Thirdly on 19th May 2016 the Government issued planning guidance
setting out the specific circumstances in which contributions for
affordable housing and tariff style planning obligations (section 106
agreements) should not be sought from small scale and self-build
development.

This text below describes how the three changes now affect the
application. Firstly, the adoption of the Community Infrastructure Levy
has implications for how the proposed development can be
implemented through Policy NM12 of the adopted Local Plan Part 2
Sites and Development Plan Document.

Policy NM12 states that the site in question is proposed as a new public
open space to be managed as Suitable Alternative Natural Green
Space (SANGS). The policy seeks to mitigate the impact of recreational
impacts from residential development on the European Nature
Conservation designations and to secure long term public access to this
area. However, in order for this area of open space to be implemented,
the Council may consider a very limited amount of 'enabling
development' on the site provided a minimum of 0.3 hectares of
accessible public open space in the form of natural green space is
provided. The application site is allocated and identified in the adopted
Habitat Mitigation Strategy Document as a SANGS defined as a
relevant infrastructure project.

When the application was originally submitted pre CIL, the proposed
housing was to be provided with the on site public open space and
SANGS and all this land (apart from the housing) would have been
secured on site and subsequently transferred to New Forest District
Council. At the time the application was first considered by this
Committee this would have been secured through a Section 106
Agreement. This is why the proposed development was previously
recommended for approval at the October 2014 Committee as set out in
the Officer's report below (14.2).

However, following the adoption of CIL in April 2015, the regulations
have affected what can actually be secured or provided through a
Section 106 Agreement. CIL regulations prohibit relevant infrastructure
(this relates to all habitat mitigation measures and projects) which is set
out on the CIL schedule from being funded by a Section 106
Agreement. The application site is allocated and identified in the
adopted Habitat Mitigation Strategy Document as a SANGS defined as
a relevant infrastructure project for the purposes of CIL and that is why
this cannot be collected or secured through a Section 106 Agreement.
Accordingly, this would mean that the planning application can no
longer legally secure (through a Section 106 Agreement) the on site
SANGS as required by policy. The proposed housing was only
considered acceptable on the site as enabling development to provide
and secure the on site SANGS and the inability to secure such on site
provision would fail to comply with policy.

Secondly, in relation to the nature conservation issues, the Ecologist
previously raised no objection to the application when it was considered
in 2014. However, subsequent surveys have been undertaken on the
site by Hampshire Biodiversity Information Centre (HBIC) as part of the
alternative open space study and the site has now been assessed as

Page 5



14.1.9

14.1.10

comprising high quality, unimproved grassland. The Ecologist has
stated that such sites are increasingly rare in Hampshire and the UK,
they are identified as priority habitats within Government legislation and
policy which highlight the need for planning authorities to further their
conservation (e.g. National Environment and Rural Communities
(NERC) Act 2006 Section 40). The site would meet criteria to allow it to
be considered a local wildlife site (SINC) and the Hampshire Biodiversity
Information Centre (HBIC) have proposed the site as a SINC. Currently
there is not much variation across the site that would allow lower quality
areas to be identified and enable an area for development to be
identified. The type of habitat present and the information gained by
HBIC demonstrates the land has intrinsic value that has been present
for many years.

Policy DM2 does say development that would damage SINCs or
habitats or species of principal importance will not be permitted unless
the benefits outweigh the harm. The are no overriding benefits that
would outweigh the harm to the nature conservation interests of the site.
While it is accepted that when the application was considered in 2014
no ecological concerns were raised, the Ecologist now provides advice
that overall the habitat is of regional nature conservation value and
comprises a habitat that is recognised in national legislation as
something public bodies have duties to show due regard. It would be
best maintained as a coherent site,and any partial development would
result in impacts on its integrity and loss that would be harmful.

Thirdly in relation to affordable housing contributions, on 19 May 2016
the Government issued planning guidance setting out the specific
circumstances in which contributions for affordable housing and tariff
style planning obligations (section 106 agreements) should not be
sought from small scale and self-build development. This guidance has

been reissued following the order of the Court of Appeal dated 13th May
2016 (West Berkshire District Council and Another v The Secretary of
State for Communities and Local Government). The planning guidance
specifies the circumstances in which contributions should not be sought
as follows:

“Contributions should not be sought from developments of 10 units or
less and which have a maximum combined gross floorspace of no more
than 1,000 sqm;

In designated rural areas, local planning authorities may choose to
apply a lower threshold of 5 units or less...;

Affordable housing and tariff style contributions should not be sought
from any development consisting only of the construction of a
residential annex or extension to an existing house”

This national guidance is at odds with Policy CS15 of the Council’s Core
Strategy. The presumption in favour of the development plan remains,
in that the decision should be taken in accordance with the plan unless
material considerations indicate otherwise. The new guidance is a
material consideration which post-dates the application. However, the
Secretary of State, through his Inspectors can be anticipated to give
greater weight to the Government's national guidance unless there are
reasons to make an exception

Page 6



.14.1.11 Whilst the need for affordable housing in this District is pressing, this in

14.1.12

14.1.13

14.2

14.2.1

14.2.2

itself is unlikely to be considered by the Secretary of State as sufficient
reason for the Council to apply its own development plan policy rather
than applying national policy. Therefore it is recommended that no
affordable housing or tariff style contributions are sought from this
development, in accordance with National Planning Practice Guidance,
contrary to the provisions of Policy CS15 of the Core Strategy

Whilst the need for affordable housing in this District is pressing, this in
itself does not give rise to the sort of circumstances that can be
considered exceptional. Therefore it is recommended that no affordable
housing or tariff style contributions are sought from this development, in
accordance with national Planning Practice Guidance, contrary to the
provisions of Policy CS15 of the Core Strategy.

In conclusion, while the application was previously recommended to be
approved, this was subject to the completion of a legal agreement by
the end of March 2015. The legal agreement was not completed in time,
and because of the adoption of CIL, the proposed on site SANGS can
no longer be secured through a Section 106 Agreement. The main
objective of the policy is to secure and provide the on site SANGS and
due to the lack of a legal ability for this to be secured, the proposal fails
to comply with policy. Moreover, while the proposed development no
longer requires an affordable housing contribution, the delay in
determining the application has led to the nature conservation issues on
the site being re-assessed and it is now considered that the site benefits
from a much higher degree of nature interest on the site which now
prohibits partial housing development.

Officers previous report (8th October 2014)

The application site is a rectangular shaped open piece of grassland
within the built up area of New Milton to the south of Lymington Road.
There are no buildings on the land and currently the site is not used for
any purposes and has the appearance of a paddock. There is currently
a single access into the site from Lymington Road provided by a metal
gate. There are numerous mostly mature trees around the northern,
western and southern boundaries which are protected by a Tree
Preservation Order, with a small woodland to the east. The site lies to
the north of the rear gardens to properties in Chestnut Avenue, which
consist of substantial detached dwellings in generous plots. Smaller
terraced and semi detached properties in Oxey Close abut parts of the
northern site boundary. On the western boundary of the site are
detached properties in Farm Lane North with a public footpath running
parallel to part of the site.

This planning application proposes the erection of four dwellings and
two garages together with the provision of an informal area of open
space in the form of a Site of Alternative Natural Green Space
(SANGS). The application has been made in outline with details only of
access to be considered at this stage. All other matters are reserved.
The planning application has been accompanied by an illustrative site
layout plan showing the positioning of the four dwellings and internal
access road and the area of open space. A minimum of 0.3 hectares of
land on the site will form the area of open space to be used as SANGS.

Page 7



14.2.3

14.2.4

14.2.5

14.2.6

The proposed layout of the site shows an internal access road from
Lymington Road running through the site with two dwellings sited on the
eastern part of the site, and the area of open space to be used as a
SANGS is situated on the western part of the site. The internal access
road leads onto the area of open space and would effectively be
connected to an internal footpath providing a link through the whole site
from Lymington Road to the existing footpath to the west of the site. It
should be noted that whilst the submitted site layout plan is an
illustrative drawing, it does show a possible layout of the site for both
the dwellings and area of open space and the full details of the area of
open space and housing layout would be assessed as part of a
reserved matters application.

There have been previous applications on this site back in 1994 and
1995, which were refused permission and dismissed on appeal. The
application dismissed on appeal involved a development of five large
detached dwellings on the whole of this site with the access to be
provided between two existing residential properties in Chestnut
Avenue. In dismissing the appeal, the Inspector did not raise any
concerns relating to the effect on the character of the area or trees,
however, he was concerned with the impact of the proposed access
road on the living conditions of the adjoining residents at 30 and 32
Chestnut Avenue. In the decision letter, the Inspector stated that it
might be possible to gain access to the site from Lymington Road but it
is a relatively busy principle traffic route and in the absence of any
detailed evidence on this matter, he was not satisfied that such an
access could be provided without prejudicing highway safety.

In assessing this proposal, it is important to start with the policy position.
In the past, this piece of land was identified in the local plan as a
Landscape feature, which is defined as undeveloped areas such as a
small amenity space, gaps between parts of settlements, woodlands
etc, which are areas of visual amenity value and help create a particular
local character. The aim of the policy was to protect the area from
developments which would detract from the contribution they make to
the quality and character of the local environment. Whilst this policy is
still a saved policy, the application site has been removed from its
designation as a landscape feature and has been re- allocated in the
Local Plan Part 2. .

The relevant policy in this case is Policy NM12 of the adopted Local
Plan Part 2 Sites and Development Plan Document, which has
superseded the saved policies in the local plan. Policy NM12 states that
the site in question is proposed as a new public open space to be
managed as Suitable Alternative Natural Green Space (SANGS). The
policy seeks to mitigate the impact of recreational impacts from
residential development on the European Nature Conservation
designations and to secure long term public access to this area.
However, in order for this area of open space to happen and be
implemented, the Council may consider a very limited amount of
'enabling development' on the site provided a minimum of 0.3 hectares
of accessible public open space in the form of natural green space is
provided. The details of the creation of this area of open space which
would be managed as a SANGS is set out in the Councils adopted
Mitigation Strategy. It states that provision of the area of natural green
space is linked to the public right of way to the west of the site.

Page 8



14.2.7

14.2.8

14.2.9

14.2.10

14.2.11

The proposed illustrative layout of the site shows that an area of open
space in the western part of the site which equates to over 0.3 hectares
in size would be provided. The area of open space would be an
informal grassed area with scattered trees with a footpath link through
the site connecting to the existing public footpath to the west in Farm
Lane North to Lymington Road. This would enable people to access and
utilise this area from the surrounding areas and provide a pedestrian
connection through the site. This area of open space would need to be
transferred to the District Council for ownership and control so that it
can be managed as a SANG, together with the land being laid out in
accordance with an approved scheme prior to occupation of the first
dwelling on the site and for public access to this area in perpetuity.
These matters would be secured through the completion of an
acceptably worded legal agreement. It is considered that the provision
of four dwellings on this site together with the internal access road from
Lymington Road enables the implementation of the area of open space
to be accessible to the public and on this basis, it is considered that the
proposal would comply with Policy NM12.

While concerns have been expressed that the proposed internal access
road with its turning head reduces the extent and usable area of open
space, the actual level of open space to be provided for the
development exceeds the policy requirement which is 0.3 hectares.
Accordingly an objection on this basis would not be reasonable and it
should be noted that the length of the turning head has been reduced
further to maximise the level of open space in this area.

Concerns have also been expressed that the proposed internal footpath
links onto a private garden area and does not connect to the existing
public footpath to the west. This is an important point given the need to
provide public access into the site from the existing public right of way
to the west of the site. However, the red line extends up to the
boundary of the footpath and the illustrative plan showing the internal
footpath has now been amended to show a connection and link to the
existing footpath, this would ensure that the open space is accessible to
the public. It should be noted that the proposal is to create a pedestrian
access point onto the existing footpath network.

In terms of visual impact, the actual layout of the site, design of the
buildings, and the layout of the area of open space will be provided in
full in a reserved matters application. The submitted illustrative drawing
demonstrates that the proposed number of houses can be acceptably
accommodated on the site enabling the required area of open space
and also shows a spacious layout with the proposed dwellings
benefiting from good sized gardens and space between the buildings
together with a housing layout that invites the public into the site to use
the area of open space. It should be noted that the proposed area of
open space will require modest improvement for such purposes as
informal amenity, including some bulb planting, a few additional trees,
and some facility for sitting to enjoy the space, but it is not intended to
create formal play areas with its associated equipment.

Accordingly on the basis that the basic concepts, layout and design
principles are followed in the illustrative plans, there is no reason why a
high quality development should not result and if planning permission
were to be granted, there should be a condition which ensures that the
development should reflect the design principles on the illustrative
plans.

Page 9



14.2.12

14.2.13

14.2.14

14.2.15

14.2.16

In terms of residential amenity, it is considered that four dwellings could
be provided on this site without causing significant impact on the
privacy, light and outlook of the adjoining and nearby residents and this
has been demonstrated on the submitted illustrative drawing.
Overlooking would be a matter to be considered in any reserved matters
application when the appearance of the buildings would also be
considered. However, the dwellings are sited and orientated away from
the residents to the south in Chestnut Avenue in which two dwellings
are sited more than 20 metres away from the rear boundary with the
residents. One of the proposed dwellings in the south east part of the
site is closer at a distance of 8 metres which would be acceptable. The
proposed dwellings would be located closer to the residents at Nos. 1
and 2 Oxey Close, however, the distances from the rear elevation of the
proposed dwellings to the rear elevation of the neighbours measures
more than 22 metres which is acceptable.

In terms of tree matters, there are many substantial trees on and
adjacent to the site which are protected by a Tree Preservation Order
and are mainly located around the perimeter of the site. The Tree
Officer considers that there is scope for development of the site which
could include the long term retention of the important trees and the
submitted illustrative layout shows that the distances to the trees and
the level of garden spaces would be acceptable without effecting these
trees. The proposed detached garage would be sited under the canopy
of the tree located on the southern boundary, however, the Tree Officer
considers that the tree is in poor condition and the loss of the tree is
acceptable. Accordingly, the Tree Officer is satisfied that the site could
accommodate 4 dwellings with access from Lymington Road without
undue risk to the protected trees from either construction works or
longer term pressure from occupiers.

With regard to highway safety matters, it is proposed to provide access
onto Lymington Road, which is a classified Road. The applicant
commissioned a speed survey which provided an 85%ile wet weather
speed of 31mph for vehicles travelling in a westerly direction. The
necessary visibility splay required to accommodate this 85%ile speed is
indicated to incorporate the splay, however, it should be noted that the
part of the splay passes over land in the ownership of a third party.

The Highway Authority have raise an objections to the proposal and
considers that on the basis that part of the visibility splays ( in the
eastern direction) passes over unregistered land (a small part of the
visibility splay is outside highway land and the applicants land) the
provision/ retention of the splays cannot be guaranteed by the
imposition of condition.

In response, whilst Officers understand the comments made by the
Highway Authority, a reason for refusal on the grounds that part of the
visibility splay is located on unregistered land would not be reasonable.
Planning permission can still be granted with a condition for the visibility
splays to be provided and it will be the responsibility of the applicant to
ensure that the condition is and can be adhered to. The applicant has
enquired to find out who the owner of this piece of land is, however,
they have had no success. On other highway matters, the proposed
internal access shows a turning head within the layout to ensure refuse
and emergency vehicles can enter and leave the site in a forward gear.
Matters of car parking spaces and provision would be considered as
part of any reserved matters application.

Page 10



14.2.17

14.18

14.2.19

14.2.20

14.2.21

14.2.22

The site does have potential for protected species and an ecological
report has been submitted in support of the application. It is considered
that further survey work is required and this has been requested and will
be the subject of an update before Committee.

In terms of contributions, the proposed development would provide an
area of 0.3 hectares of land to be used as a SANG and area of informal
open space and this would accord with the policy requirement for
habitat mitigation and open space for the site. The SANGS on the site
will have to be provided and laid out in accordance with an approved
scheme as detailed in any reserved matters application and the land
must be transferred to the District Council together with a financial
contribution towards future maintenance and monitoring (a total of
£16,800 and £50 per dwelling). Access to the SANGS through the
housing development for the public to use will have to be secured as
part of the Section 106 Agreement.

The proposed development would also require an off site affordable
housing contribution, in which the final payment figure will be dependant
on the number of bedrooms in the reserved matters application. The
proposed development would also require a contribution towards
transport improvements.

Concerns have been expressed that there are restrictive covenants on
the land, however, this is not a planning matter. Concerns have been
expressed that the red line boundary is not correct in terms of land
ownership. However the applicant in response has confirmed that the
red line boundary is correct. Matters of boundary disputes and
ownership are not planning matters.

In conclusion, the proposal to develop part of the site for four dwellings
would enable the remainder of the site, which equates to 0.3 hectares in
size to be used as an area of informal open space to be used as
SANGS. The illustrative layout shows how the site could be developed
in this context together with a useable area of open space which
connects Lymington Road with the existing public footpath at Farm Lane
North. Whilst concerns have been expressed from the Highway
Authority that part of the visibility splays would be located on
unregistered land, this is a matter for the applicant to resolve and
ensure that the proposed development can achieve acceptable visibility
splays. The applicant has agreed to enter into a Section 106 Agreement
to provide contributions towards affordable housing and transportation
improvements, together with the provision of on site public open space
and its maintenance and monitoring contributions.

Heads of Terms of the Proposed Section 106 Agreement

The transportation contribution would be based on the following as
detailed in the reserved matters application:

For a one bedroom dwelling: £1980
For a two/ three bedroom dwelling: £3745

For a four bedroom dwelling: £5457

Page 11



The affordable housing contribution would be based upon the
following as detailed in the reserved matters application:

For a one bedroom dwelling: £13,750
For a 2 bedroom dwelling: £25,540
For a three bedroom dwelling: £36,720
For a four bedroom dwelling: £38,940

The open space/ SANGS contribution would be based on the following:

A minimum of 0.3 hectares of land to be used as SANGS/ Open space
to be provided within the identified area (to be shown as hatched on a
plan) and all of the SANGS/ Open space must be transferred to New
Forest District Council and laid out in accordance with an agreed
scheme submitted as part of the Reserved Matters Application. The
area of open space/ SANGS must be accessible to the public (right of
way through the site) from Lymington Road through the proposed
housing development and connect to the existing public right of way to
the west in Farm Lane North. The SANGS/ open space maintenance
contribution based on the calculation of £56,000 for every hectare (a
total of £16,800 ) will be required, the payments payable on the Transfer
of land. The SANGS/ open space will have to be made available for use
prior to first occupation of any Dwelling on the land. SANGS monitoring
sum of £50 per dwelling to be payable to NFDC when the land is
transferred.

14.2.23 In coming to this recommendation, consideration has been given to the
rights set out in Article 8 (Right to respect for private and family life) and
Article 1 of the First Protocol (Right to peaceful enjoyment of
possessions) of the European Convention on Human Rights. Whilst it is
recognised that this recommendation, if agreed, may interfere with the
rights and freedoms of the applicant to develop the land in the way
proposed, the objections to the planning application are serious ones
and cannot be overcome by the imposition of conditions. The public
interest and the rights and freedoms of neighbouring property owners
can only be safeguarded by the refusal of permission.

15. RECOMMENDATION

Refuse

Page 12



Reason(s) for Refusal:

1.

Policy NM12 of the adopted Local Plan Part 2 Sites and Development Plan
Document allocates the site as new public open space to be managed as
Suitable Alternative Green Space (SANGS) and the site is also identified as
a specific mitigation project in the Adopted Mitigation Strategy for European
Sites Supplementary Planning Document. The proposed development fails
to secure the on site public open space to be managed as a SANGS and in
the absence of which the recreational impacts of the proposed development
on the New Forest Special Area of Conservation, the New Forest Special
Protection Area, the New Forest Ramsar site, the Solent and Southampton
Water Special Protection Area, the Solent and Southampton Water Ramsar
site, and the Solent Maritime Special Area of Conservation would not be
adequately mitigated and the proposed development would therefore be
likely to unacceptably increase recreational pressures on these sensitive
European nature conservation sites. Moreover, the proposed development
fails to secure to make any contribution to on site provision of informal
public open space to meet the needs of the occupants of the development
for public open space. For these reason, the proposal is contrary to Core
Strategy to Policies CS7 and CS25 of the Core Strategy for the New Forest
District outside the National Park and Policies NM12 and DM3 of the New
Forest District Local Plan Part 2: Sites and Development Management and
adopted Mitigation Strategy for European Sites Supplementary Planning
Document.

The site has been assessed as comprising high quality, unimproved
grassland, which is a type of habitat that has intrinsic value that would meet
criteria to allow it to be considered a local wildlife site (Site of Importance for
Nature Conservation). Local Plan Policy DM2 of the New Forest District
Local Plan Part 2: Sites and Development Management states that
development that would damage SINCs or habitats of species of principle
importance will not be permitted unless the benefits outweigh the harm. The
proposed development would result in the loss of and unacceptably impact
on the integrity, habitat and values of the nature conservation interest of the
site, for which there are no overriding benefits that would outweigh the harm
to the nature conservation interest of the site. For this reason, the proposal
is to Policy CS3 of the Core Strategy for the New Forest District outside the
National Park and Policy DM2 of the New Forest District Local Plan Part 2:
Sites and Development Management Plan and adopted Mitigation Strategy
for European Sites Supplementary Planning Document.

Notes for inclusion on certificate:

In accordance with paragraphs 186 and 187 of the National Planning Policy
Framework and Article 31 of the Town and Country Planning (Development
Management Procedure) (England) Order 2010, New Forest District Council
takes a positive and proactive approach, seeking solutions to any problems
arising in the handling of development proposals so as to achieve,
whenever possible, a positive outcome by giving clear advice to applicants.

In this case the concerns raised one significant and are not capable of
resolution through negotiation.

Page 13



2. This decision relates to amended plans received by the Local Planning
Authority on the 20th March 2014 and the 12th June 2014.

Further Information:

Major Team
Telephone: 023 8028 5345 (Option 1)

Page 14



T T | F—— T T T T I Tt
"o[eos 022920001 Asning eoueuplO 910z siubu sseqejep pue jybuAdoo umoid

0} 89 j0U [|IM }i ‘Jeusiul 8y} T
wioyj ueid sy} Bunuud 3 "g'N

0GCi-1 °feds

Y6v2CZS
9/cLirel

UOHIN MON
peoy uocibulwAT]

40 Yjnos pueT]
eg :ON way

9102 3snbny

29Il [013U0D
juswdojonag Buiuueld

vd.l ev¥OS

1sinypui]

pnoD saneddy

jouno ouysig 1seio4 MeN
jouo) Buipjing pue Buiuueld
1ebeuepy adines

wooi9 pireq

3nAoBiselomeummm
000G 8¢08 £C0 -I°L

TIDNNOD L1D1dlslid

15310, MIN




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 3b

Planning Development Control Committee 10 August 2016 Item 3 b

Application Number: 13/11408 Modification or Discharge of Planning Obligation

Site: MERRYFIELD PARK, DERRITT LANE, SOPLEY BH23 8AU
Development: Proposed amendments to the Section 106 Agreement regarding
the type of Affordable Housing and the removal of Code Level
Four requirements.
Approved Scheme: The erection of up to 80 dwellings with the
retention of up to 11 existing buildings with a total floor area of no
more than 1,309 sqm for B1 uses and a museum all with associated
access point, the provision of SANGS and open space, the provision
of a footpath along Derritt Lane and the demolition of all buildings
and structures on the site with the exception of those retained for the
B1 or museum uses (Outline application with all matters reserved)
Applicant: Merryfield Park
1 REASON FOR COMMITTEE CONSIDERATION
Discretion of Executive Head of Economy, Housing and Planning and Contrary to Local
Plan Policy
2 DEVELOPMENT PLAN AND OTHER CONSTRAINTS
Green Belt
Countryside outside the New Forest
River Valley
Site Special Policies Apply
Archaeological Site
Flood Zone 1, adjacent to Flood zone 2 and 3
HSE Pipeline Cons Zones
Adjacent to New Forest National Park
3 DEVELOPMENT PLAN, OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

Objectives

1. Special qualities, local distinctiveness and a high quality living environment
2. Climate change and environmental sustainability

3. Housing

4. Economy

7. The countryside

8. Biodiversity and landscape

Policies

Page 17



Core Strategy

CS1: Sustainable development principles

CS2: Design quality

CS3: Protecting and enhancing our special environment (Heritage and Nature
Conservation)

CS4: Energy and resource use

CS7: Open spaces, sport and recreation

CS10: The spatial strategy

CS12: Possible additional housing development to meet a local housing need
CS13: Housing types, sizes and tenure

CS14: Affordable housing provision

CS15: Affordable housing contribution requirements from developments
CS17: Employment and economic development

CS24: Transport considerations

CS25: Developers contributions

Local Plan Part 2 Sites and Development Management Plan Document

DM3: Mitigation of impacts on European nature conservation sites
DM2: Nature conservation, biodiversity and geodiversity

DM4: Contaminated land

DM21: Residential development in the countryside

DM23: Employment development in the countryside

RELEVANT LEGISLATION AND GOVERNMENT ADVICE

Section 38 Development Plan
Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

5.1 The erection of up to 80 dwellings with the retention of up to 11 existing buildings
with a total floor area of no more than 1,309 square metres for B1 use and a
museum all with associated access point, the provision of SANGS and open
space, the provision of a footpath along Derritt Lane and the demolition of all
buildings and structures on the site with the exception of those retained for the
B1 or museum uses - Outline application all matters reserved (11408) Granted
with conditions on the 15th December 2014.

5.2  Development of 80 houses, public open space, SANGS, footpaths, allotments,
access roads, landscaping, boundary treatments, demolition of existing
buildings, street lighting - Details of appearance, landscaping, layout, scale and
access to outline planning permission granted under 11408 (10914) GRanted
with conditions on the 28th October 2015.

PARISH / TOWN COUNCIL COMMENTS

Bransgore Parish Council: raise no objections to the provision of starter homes and
affordable property to rent as well as the shared ownership dwelling.

Sopley Parish Council: No comments received to date

Page 18



COUNCILLOR COMMENTS

None

REPRESENTATIONS

None

ASSESSMENT

9.1
9.11

9.1.2

9.14

9.2
9.21

Infroduction

Firstly, it is important to note that this is an application only to modify a Section
106 Agreement, and not a planning application.

The applicants, who are also the Freehold owner of the site, Bellway Homes Ltd,
have applied to modify the (completed) Section 106 Agreement completed in
respect of outline planning approval 13/11408 regarding the type of affordable
housing provision and Code Level 4 requirements.

Outline planning permission was granted on the 15th December 2014, under
reference 13/11408, for the development of the site for up to 80 dwellings with
the retention of up to 11 existing buildings and a museum all with associated
access point, the provision of SANGS and open space, the provision of a
footpath along Derritt Lane and the demolition of all buildings and structures on
the site with the exception of those retained for the B1 or museum uses. The
application was made in outline, with all matters reserved.

An integral part of the outline planning permission was an Agreement under
Section 106 of the Town and County Planning Act 1990, which was completed

on the 15th December 2014. The Agreement secured a number of obligations
and financial contributions which include affordable housing, on site Public Open
Space, SANGS, Allotments, the provision of commercial floor space to be
provided on the site through the retention of existing buildings and a footpath link
to the village.

A subsequent Reserved Matters Application was granted in 2015, under
planning reference 15/ 10914. Construction works are currently under way on the
site to implement the planning permission and although a number of the
approved houses have been constructed, none are occupied.

In relation to the affordable housing, the Section 106 Agreement required 50% of
the total number of dwellings to be constructed on the land to be provided for
affordable housing, of which 60% of the affordable housing dwellings should be
Social Rented Housing and 40% Intermediate Housing, which could either be
Intermediate Rented Housing and/or Shared Ownership units.

The proposal

The applicants propose that certain provisions of the Planning Agreement are
varied solely in relation to the type of affordable housing on the site and the
removal of any reference to Code Level 4 requirements. The effect of the
proposed variations will allow for the introduction of Starter Homes on the site as
part of the mix of Affordable Housing. Technical adjustments to the provisions
dealing with the ability of a mortgagee of a Registered Provider to deal with land
forming part of their security have also been incorporated. It is also proposed to
remove any references to Code 4 for Sustainable Homes.

Page 19



9.2.2

9.2.3

9.3
9.3.1

9.3.2

9.3.3

9.3.4

Other than the affordable housing provision and the removal of any reference to
Code 4 for sustainable homes, all other obligations and financial contributions
within the S106 agreement regarding the provision and future maintenance of
on-site open space and a SANGS, a footpath linking the site to the village and
the provision of allotments will remain unchanged.

The proposed variations to the Agreement would provide for the Affordable
Housing as follows:

50% of the Dwellings provided on Site (40 Dwellings) would comprise Affordable
Housing Dwellings of a type as defined below.

a) 20 of the Dwellings would be Starter Homes
b) 14 of the Dwellings would be Shared Ownership Dwellings and
c) 6 of the Dwellings would be Affordable Rented Dwellings

The Affordable Rent Dwellings (c) are to be made available for rent to a
Registered Provider first approved by the Council at a rent set out in accordance
with the National Rent Regulatory Framework. The Shared Ownership/Affordable
Housing (b) will be either Affordable Rented Housing or Shared Ownership
Housing where a party can purchase part or subsequently all of the equity in the
Property.

Assessment

Firstly, in relation to the removal of any references to Level 4 of the Code for
Sustainable Homes, this would be acceptable. While this is technically contrary
to adopted planning policy CS4 this has now been superseded by new
government policy in which Code Levels are dealt with by Building Regulations.

In relation to the modification to Affordable Housing provision, in determining
outline application 13/11408, the proposed development was required to make
an Affordable Housing contribution of 50% of the total number of units in
accordance with Core Strategy CS15. Although Policy CS15 seeks 70% of the
affordable dwellings to be social rented and 30% intermediate, it was determined
that the tenure split proposed of 60% affordable rented and 40% shared
ownership would be acceptable and was supported by the Councils Strategic
Housing Officer. Of the 40 dwellings, 24 units (60%) would be for social rented
and 16 units (40%) for intermediate housing.

The main reason for the change of approach in this revised Section 106
agreement is to accommodate the Government’s new initiative to promote the
provision of Starter Homes. The Government see Starter Homes as a means to
provide low cost homes for qualifying first time buyers and the Governments
main objective is for at least 20% of dwellings on maijor sites to be built as
Starter Homes. Starter Homes are a new form of Affordable Housing, and will be
offered for sale to qualifying first time buyers between the ages of 23 and 40 at
no more than 80% of open market value, capped at £250,000.

The Housing and Planning Act 2016 was enacted on 12 May 2016, which is now
law. The secondary legislation (meaning Regulations) are needed to bring into
force the provisions of the Act. The first set of Regulations came out on 25 May
2016 (The Housing and Planning Act 2016 (Commencement No.1) Regulations
2016) and the second set of Regulations came out on 11 July 2016 (The
Housing and Planning Act 2016 (Commencement No.2, Transitional Provisions
and Savings) Regulations 2016).

Page 20



10

9.3.5

9.3.6

9.3.7

9.3.8

The Part of the Act that defines Starter Homes as affordable housing (section
159) has not yet come into force, and accordingly, the Government’s current
definition of affordable housing does not include Starter Homes. It is the intention
that Starter Homes will fall within the definition of Affordable Housing and
therefore Starter Homes will count ‘as’ or ‘towards’ the overall affordable housing
provision. Moreover, under the terms of section 4 of the Act, there is a general
duty for Councils to promote the supply of Starter Homes and that will come into
force on 1 October 2016 as a result of the second set of commencement
regulations. Accordingly, the Government’s stance on Starter Homes should be
given significant weight.

For this reason it is considered that New Forest District Council should support
the provision of a substantial proportion of Starter Homes on this site. Whilst
technically this does not accord with our adopted Core Strategy policy CS15,
which does not include Starter Homes, it will become a duty of all Councils to

promote this form of development from 1St October 2016. This is therefore an
ideal opportunity for this Council to welcome the new Government initiative even
though it is not technically in force for another 6 weeks. A proportion of shared
equity and rented homes are still retained under this new approach.

The new legal agreement makes provision for 20 of the houses to be marketed
as Starter Homes to qualifying first time buyers as described in paragraph 9.3.3
above. If a Starter Home cannot be sold as a Starter Home to a qualifying first
time buyer within 9 months of being completed, it will be sold as a shared
ownership property to a Registered Provider and so will remain within the
definition of affordable housing. Starter Homes must be occupied by the first
time buyer as their sole home and cannot be rented out. If the first time buyer
sells the Starter Home within 5 years then some or all of the discount must be
repaid. The developer will also provide 14 shared ownership units and 6
affordable rented units in the scheme.

In balancing out the issues, and in anticipation of the change to the definition of
affordable housing, reflecting the Governments general direction of travel on
Starter Homes, it is recommended that this Committee agree to officers
negotiating a Deed of Variation to the s106 agreement to planning permission
13/11408.

9.4  Conclusion

9.4.1 In summary, whilst the proposal to modify the s106 Agreement is not strictly in
accordance with current local plan policy, Officers consider that the proposal to
provide Starter Homes as part of the Affordable Housing mix would accord with
the Governments objectives to provide Starter Homes, and in anticipation of the
definition of Affordable Housing being amended to include Starter Homes.

RECOMMENDATION

10.1 That the Section 106 agreement be varied in accordance with the details set out

in the preceding paragraphs.

Further Information:

Major Team
Telephone: 023 8028 5345 (Option1)

Page 21



‘9|eos
0} 87 J0U ||IM }I Joulsiul 8y}
wouy ueld sy} Bunuud §| "g'N

000¢:} 9[eds

161178
8ovLi/gl
Asjdog

sueT puIsg
yied pleyhusiy

qg :ON way|

9102 3snbny

sap WO [0JU0D
juawdojaaag buiuueld

vdl €¥0OS

1sinypui]

1noD sane|ddy

jlouno jolsiq 1selo4 MSN
{onuoy Buipjing pue Buiuued
Jsbeuepy 9o1M185

woois) pineq

i AoB1salomaummm
0005 8208 €20 ‘I°L

TIDNNOD 1D21idlsid

15910, MON

P\ WY ™

Nm,wmooor Aaning aoueupIO 910z S1ybu aseqelep pue ybuAdoo umol)

Page 22
age




Agenda Item 3c

Planning Development Control Committee 10 August 2016 Item 3 c

Application Number: 15/10032 Full Planning Permission

Site: 59 STATION ROAD, NEW MILTON BH25 6JA
Development: Second & three-storey extensions to create 10 flats; parking
Applicant: Sheet Anchor Evolve Ltd
Target Date: 13/05/2015
Target Date: 11/08/2015
1 REASON FOR COMMITTEE CONSIDERATION
Contrary to policy and previous committee consideration (19th June 2015 and 9th
March 2016)
2 DEVELOPMENT PLAN AND OTHER CONSTRAINTS
Town Centre
Built up area
Primary Shopping Area
Adjacent protected trees
3 DEVELOPMENT PLAN, OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
Core Strateqy
Objectives
1. Special qualitiés, local distinctiveness and a high quality living environment
3. Housing
6. Towns, villages and built environment quality
Policies
CS2: Design quality
CS7: Open spaces, sport and recreation
CS8: Community services and infrastructure
CS10: The spatial strategy
CS15: Affordable housing contribution requirements from developments
CS17: Employment and economic development
CS20: Town, district, village and local centres
CS24: Transport considerations
CS25: Developers contributions
Local Plan Part 2
DM3: Mitigation of impacts on European nature conservation sites
DM14: Primary shopping frontages
4 RELEVANT LEGISLATION AND GOVERNMENT ADVICE

Section 38 Development Plan
Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004
National Planning Policy Framework

Page 23



RELEVANT SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE AND DOCUMENTS

SPD - Parking Standards

SPD - New Milton Local Distinctiveness
SPD - Mitigation Strategy for European Sites
SPD - Housing Design, Density and Character

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

None of direct relevance

PARISH / TOWN COUNCIL COMMENTS
New Milton Town Council: recommend refusal

(1) Inappropriate design, use of metal cladding and balconies at this important
central site, therefore considered out of character as the building would
become incongruous on the street scene;

(2) Could create the persistent pressure to prune the protected Oak tree.

Members support the principle of having one bedroom homes at this location
(including affordable housing) but require a more aesthetically pleasing design
and more traditional material usage.

COUNCILLOR COMMENTS
None
CONSULTEE COMMENTS

9.1 Hampshire County Council Highway Engineer: No highway objections
subject to condition

9.2 Tree Officer: No objection subject to condition
9.3 Land Drainage Engineer: No objection subject to condition

9.4 Strategic Housing Officer: The proposed development would require 40%
for affordable housing which would equate to 4 units on site to be affordable

9.5 Urban Design Officer: The proposal is acceptable

9.6 Environmental Health (historic land use): No objection

9.7 Southern Water Authority: No objection subject to condition
9.8 Environment Agency: No objection

9.9 Councils Valuer: Accepts the viability appraisal
REPRESENTATIONS RECEIVED

1 letter of objection concerned that New Milton is built on a sand foundation and
already the centre of town is crowded with buildings with poor access for
emergency services. Examining the site there does not seem any available space
for any more building and there is already a car park for the use of shop
owners/lessees.

Page 24



11

12

13

CRIME & DISORDER IMPLICATIONS
No relevant considerations
LOCAL FINANCE CONSIDERATIONS

If this development is granted permission and the dwellings built, the Council will
receive £11520 in each of the following six years from the dwellings' completion,
and as a result, a total of £69120 in government grant under the New Homes
Bonus will be received.

From the 6 April 2015 New Forest District Council began charging the Community
Infrastructure Levy (CIL) on new residential developments. Based on the
information provided at the time of this report this development has a CIL liability
of £61,371.08.

WORKING WITH THE APPLICANT/AGENT

In accordance with paragraphs 186 and 187 of the National Planning Policy
Framework and Article 35 of Town and Country Planning (Development
Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015, New Forest District Council take
a positive and proactive approach, seeking solutions to any problems arising in
the handling of development proposals so as to achieve, whenever possible, a
positive outcome.

This is achieved by

e Strongly encouraging those proposing development to use the very
thorough pre application advice service the Council provides.

» Working together with applicants/agents to ensure planning applications
are registered as expeditiously as possible.

* Advising agents/applicants early on in the processing of an application
(through the release of a Parish Briefing Note) as to the key issues
relevant to the application.

» Updating applicants/agents of issues that arise in the processing of their
applications through the availability of comments received on the web or
by direct contact when relevant.

» Working together with applicants/agents to closely manage the planning
application process to allow an opportunity to negotiate and accept
amendments on applications (particularly those that best support the Core
Strategy Objectives) when this can be done without compromising
government performance requirements.

e Advising applicants/agents as soon as possible as to concerns that
cannot be dealt with during the processing of an application allowing for a
timely withdrawal and re-submission or decision based on the scheme as
originally submitted if this is what the applicant/agent requires.

e When necessary discussing with applicants/agents proposed conditions
especially those that would restrict the use of commercial properties or
land when this can be done without compromising government
performance requirements.

Following discussions with the applicants, revised and additional plans have been

submitted to address design concerns and issues raised by the highway authority
which have enabled a positive recommendation to be made.

Page 25



14

ASSESSMENT

14.1

14.1.1

14.1.2

14.1.3

14.1.4

14.1.5

Introduction

This planning application was considered by this Committee on the 9th
March 2016 when the Executive Head of Planning and Transportation
was authorised to grant planning consent subject to the completion of the
requisite Section 106 Agreement by the 30th October 2016 to secure an
offsite financial contribution towards affordable housing of £74,621 and
habitat mitigation and monitoring contributions of £56550. Unfortunately
the legal agreement has not been completed and this application is now
brought back to the Committee following changes to the government's
policy as set out below.

On 19th May 2016 the Government issued planning guidance setting out
the specific circumstances in which contributions for affordable housing
and tariff style planning obligations (section 106 agreements) should not
be sought from small scale and self-build development. This guidance
has been reissued following the order of the Court of Appeal dated 13th
May 2016 (West Berkshire District Council and Another v The Secretary
of State for Communities and Local Government). The planning
guidance specifies the circumstances in which contributions should not
be sought as follows:

"Contributions should not be sought from developments of 10 units or
less and which have a maximum combined gross floorspace of no more
than 1,000 sqm; ’

In designated rural areas, local planning authorities may choose to apply
a lower threshold of 5 units or less;

Affordable housing and tariff style contributions should not be sought
from any development consisting only of the construction of a residential
annex or extension to an existing house", This national guidance is at
odds with Policy CS15 of the Council's Core Strategy which requires
many small scale housing developments including the current application
proposals to make affordable housing provision.

The presumption in favour of the development plan remains, in that the
decision should be taken in accordance with the plan unless material
considerations indicate otherwise. The new guidance is a material
consideration which post-dates the adoption of the Local Plan. It is for
the Council to decide which should prevail in the determination of a
planning application. However, the Secretary of State, through his
Inspectors can be anticipated to give greater weight to the Government's
national guidance unless there are reasons to make an exception.

While the need for affordable housing in this District is pressing, this in
itself is unlikely to be considered by the Secretary of State as sufficient
reason for the Council to apply its own development plan policy rather
than applying national policy. Therefore it is recommended that no
affordable housing or tariff style contributions are sought from this
development, in accordance with national Planning Practice Guidance,
contrary to the provisions of Policy CS15 of the Core Strategy.

Page 26



14.2

14.2.1

14.2.2

14.2.3

14.2.4

14.2.5

14.2.6

Officers report as set out on the 10th June 2015

The site lies within the built up area of New Milton in the Primary
Shopping Area of the Town Centre. The western part of the site contains
a part single part two storey brick building with flat roof currently in use
as a bank with separate uses including an estate agent offices and a
vacant retail unit with offices on the first floor. Other than a landscape
strip to the front of the site, the rest of it is hard surfaced and in use as a
car park accessed from Ashley Road although the exit is onto Station
Road.

The proposal seeks to create ten residential flats by constructing a
second floor on the existing building and a new three storey extension to
the rear on part of the existing car park. The proposal would create 9 one
bedroom flats and a 1 two bedroom flat. It is proposed to retain the
existing retail and office uses on the ground and first floor of the building.
The proposed second floor would be constructed over the existing first
floor and would be set slightly back from the edge of the building to
enable a outside terrace to be created. The new three storey extension
would rise to the same scale linking into the second floor addition with its
main elevation facing onto Ashley Road.

Visually the proposed structure would be a contemporary flat roof design
constructed predominately with grey metal vertical cladding with part
horizontal timber cladding. A glazed balustrade would be provided
around the perimeter of the terrace facing the two roads. The proposed
extension would be constructed on concrete support columns so that car
and cycle parking can be provided beneath and the extension would be
built over approximately half the car park. Alterations are proposed to the
car parking layout with new tree and soft landscaping provided.

In terms of policy matters, the site lies within the town centre and the
Primary Shopping Frontage. Within this defined area, policies in the local
plan and the National Planning Policy Framework support new residential
uses providing that there is no loss of existing commercial uses and
residential uses are not provided on the ground floor. The proposal
seeks to retain the existing retail, commercial and offices spaces within
the building although there would be some loss of car parking spaces to
these units.

In assessing the proposal against these policies, on the basis that the
existing employment and retail activity is retained, it is considered that
this is supported under Core Strategy Policy CS20 and Local Plan Part 2
Policy DM14. Indeed, the site lies within a town centre location
comprising a large car parking area and the proposal to create additional
residential units would make good use of the site and there are no
policies that prohibit such a proposal. While there would be a loss of
existing car parking spaces that serve the existing retail and commercial
uses, it is considered that the proposed residential development would
provide overriding benefits and that the small loss of spaces would not
be unreasonable on a town centre site nor would it compromise the
attractiveness or viability of these commercial units.

In terms of the effect on the character and appearance of the area, the
site lies within Character Area 1' Town Centre' of the New Milton Local
Distinctiveness Document. The Local Distinctiveness SPD described one
of the key defining features that characterise the town centre as the:
‘Rhythms of built form and features along Station Road”. The guidance

Page 27



14.2.7

14.2.8

14.2.9

seeks that: “Rhythm should be retained through window and facade
patterns, articulation and detail that run vertically through the whole
building and articulation of sky line”. '

The existing building occupies a very prominent position on the corner of
two roads and along the main high street in the town centre. The building
is slightly set back from Station Road compared to other buildings in the
street, and is constructed from brick under a flat roof rising to two
storeys. Along Station Road building types, materials and designs vary
throughout ranging between two and three storeys. Opposite the site
along the west side of Ashley Road, there is a predominant two storey
scale with additional accommodation in the roof space. The building
comprises a single terrace located close to the road frontage with its
ridge running parallel with the road, and the shop fronts and window
patterns are very similar. On the corner of Ashley Road, the building
rises to three storeys where the building makes a statement on this
corner junction and adds interest into the street scene.

Along the east side of Station Road, to the north of the site, the buildings
tend to be more modern developments with residential flats above shops
rising to three storeys with hipped roofs, and glazed canopy's over the
shop units. Some of these modern developments do not positively
contribute to the character of the high street in terms of the design,
massing, scale and appearance. In particular the scale, design and
massing of the building immediately to the north known as Bursledon
House is poor, which extends at three storey level deep into the rear of
the site.

Generally the scale of the buildings along Station Road are two and three
storeys, some with further accommodation in the roof space. There are
also some four storey buildings along Station Road, but building heights
vary throughout. Along Ashley Road there are large three storey
residential flatted buildings. Accordingly, it is considered that there is no
objection to a three storey building in this location subject to design and
respect for the rhythms of built form and features along Station Road.
Moreover, it is considered that the proposal to create a second floor and
a building over the existing car park would make good use of the site in
this town centre location.

14.2.10 The proposed second floor would be constructed over the majority of the

existing building but recessed back from the front elevation to provide an
outside terrace which helps break up the massing of the building. The
extension in the car park would be set back from the road and linked to
the appearance of the second floor extension which is considered to be
the correct design approach. The balconies would provide some outdoor
space for the residents and enables the massing of the building to be
recessive. Using glazed balconies at a low height as shown would be
appropriate in this context. The design of the second floor with its vertical
cladding and fenestration in line with the first floor windows of the
existing building picks up the rhythms in the street and this would accord
with the principles of the New Milton Local Distinctiveness Document.
The proposed use of a darkish metal clad finish would contrast with the
existing brick building, but this is felt to create a contemporary design
approach which would add character and presence to the existing
building that would be acceptable in this location. If the building was
designed with brick materials to match the existing building, this is likely
to exacerbate the scale and massing of the overall building which would

Page 28



14.2.11

be inappropriate in this context. Accordingly, the design approach and
use of materials which link in with the three storey building in the car park
would not unacceptably detract from the character of the area and would
be viewed as an innovative design solution to extend and alter the
building so that it appears as an extension to the original building.

The proposal has very limited private amenity space for the proposed
dwellings, but the residential flats would have outside terraced areas and
balconies which would broadly accord with the councils Supplementary
Planning Document Housing Design Density and Character. New tree
and soft landscaping in the existing car parking area would help soften
the views and outlook from these residential properties.

14.2.12 With regard to residential amenity, the proposed residential properties

that are most likely to be effected are to the north at Bursledon House
and to the rear at Shannock House, 1 Ashley Road.

14.2.13 The building to the north at Bursledon House comprises several

residential flats and has a number of windows on the side elevation at
first, second and third floor level facing the application site. The proposed
second floor to be added to the existing frontage building would have
some impact on the outlook from the residential flats at Bursledon Home.
There is currently a third storey dormer and second floor window nearest
to the proposed extension and both these windows serve bedrooms
which face the existing two storey building. The view from those windows
would be onto the side elevation of the new extension which would
extend approximately 3.7 metres above the existing two storey building.
The distances from the existing windows at Bursledon House to the side
elevation of the proposed second floor building would range from
approximately 5.5 metres to 7 metres. Because of this close relationship
and the design of the building with dark cladding, it is considered that
there would be some loss of outlook from these windows, however the
effect would not be so severe to refuse planning permission. The
windows serve bedrooms and are not main living rooms such as a
lounge and the residential flats have their main windows facing Station
Road or to the rear of the site. It is also considered that a minimum
distance in excess of 5 metres would be reasonable not to result in a
level of impact that would warrant a refusal of planning permission in a
densely developed Town Centre location such as this.

14.2.14 In terms of the three storey extension in the car park, the rear elevation

of the building would have first and second floor windows together with
balconies facing the side elevation to Bursledon House, which has first,
second and third level windows which serve bedrooms, bathrooms and
kitchens facing the application site. The distance from the proposed
windows on the rear elevation would be approximately 11 metres but the
views from the windows would be slightly oblique given that the building
at Bursledon House is set further back from the proposed building in the
car park. There is a high leylandii hedgerow along the boundary which
provides some screening but this landscape feature is very unattractive
and in a poor condition and it is proposed to replace this with some new
trees and hedgerow. Given the distances involved between the
properties and the oblique angled views, it is not considered to result in
unacceptable overlooking. It should also be noted that overlooking is
more apparent in town centre locations where buildings and residential
properties tend to be at a higher density and located closer together.

Page 29



14.2.15 Concerning Shannock House, 1 Ashley Road, there are several first and
second floor windows proposed facing in the direction of these
neighbouring residential flats, although part of the building incorporates
angled windows which predominately face to the front and rear of the
site. In total, there would be eight windows facing east serving bedrooms
and lounge areas. It is considered that there would be an element of
overlooking to the neighbouring residential flats at Shannock House, but
the impact would not be so severe as to justify refusal of planning
permission. The existing windows comprise small kitchen windows rather
than main living or lounge areas. The proposed building would be
approximately 12 metres away from these windows, which is considered
to be an acceptable distance not to result in any loss of light or look in
this Town Centre location.

14.2.16 In terms of public highway safety matters, the proposal would result in
the provision of 10 apartments, (9 x one-bed and 1 x two-bed) together
with 26 car parking spaces and a number of secure cycle spaces.
Parking within the New Forest District (outside the National Park) is
sought in accordance with the NFDC document 'Parking Standards
Supplementary Planning Document (SPD)' which sets a recommended
average provision for residential car parking provision and recommended
car parking provisions for all non-residential use classes. For one-bed
dwellings the recommended provision is 1.4 per unit where
shared/communal rising to 2 spaces where allocated, for two-bed
dwellings the shared/communal recommended provision is 1.5 with the
allocated provision the same as for a one-bed dwelling.

14.2.17 However, given the close proximity of the site to local amenities,
including public transport, together with the fact that the parking SPD
provides a recommended average provision and does not seek to set
minimum or maximum standards, the highway authority consider that an
objection based upon an under provision of car parking for the proposed
residential development would be neither appropriate nor sustainable.
The transport statement indicates that the level of off-street parking
would increase by 2 spaces, with 1 space allocated to each dwelling with
the remainder allocated to the ground floor commercial units, which
represent a loss of 8 spaces for the existing users, i.e. an approximate
reduction of 33% in capacity. In order to substantiate this reduction in car
parking capacity the applicant should provide secure and covered cycle
parking for the existing commercial units, in order to encourage
alternative modes of transport to the private car. The parking SPD
provides minimum standards for both long and short stay cycle parking,
for long stay this 1 space & 1 loop/hoop per one-bed unit whilst the long
stay provision rises to 2 spaces.

14.2.18 Due to the restricted widths of the existing vehicular access the car park
operates under a one-way system with vehicular access being achieved
from Ashley Road and egress onto Station Road. Given that both Ashley
Road and Station Road are classified, together with the close proximity
to the signalised crossroads, the highway authority consider that the
continuation of this one-way system is necessary in highway safety terms
and will need to be controlled and self policing. The plans show spring
loaded recessed plates in the road to self police the one way system.

14.2.19 In terms of tree matters, situated to the east of the car parks entrance on
the sites southern boundary is a large, mature Oak tree that provides a

Page 30



14.2.20

14.2.21

14.2.22

14.2.23

14.2.24

good level of public amenity. The tree is protected by TPO: 0033/13 and
is considered as a constraint to the development of this site. The Tree
Officer does not raise any objections subject to imposition of a condition.

The proposed development would require contributions towards
affordable housing under Policy CS15. The target minimum would be
40% of all dwellings to be for affordable housing which would equate to
4 of the 10 dwellings on site to be affordable. The applicant has
proposed 2 units on site for affordable housing and an off site
contribution of £22,750. Whilst it is considered 4 units should be on site
affordable, on the basis that the applicant is meeting the policy
provision which includes both on site and a financial payment, it is
considered that this approach would be acceptable. In addition a
contribution towards habitats mitigation would be required as set out in
the Contributions table. The other contributions would be dealt with
under CIL. The Section 106 Agreement has not been completed and is
currently being progressed.

On the 28th November 2014 National Planning Practice Guidance was
updated with regard to the charging of contributions for affordable
housing. The changes are not strictly new national policy but they are
“material considerations” when determining a planning application. As
such when determining an application they have to be weighed against
all other material considerations notably locally adopted policies in the
Development Plan. The changes do not apply to Habitat Mitigation
measures or site-specific requirements eg. an improved access on
highway land that will continue to be applied in full. This is a complex
issue. However, New Forest District Council’s evidence shows that
small sites contributions are being varied when appropriate in response
to site specific viability considerations (in accordance with our Local
Plan policy). The loss of affordable housing provision from all small site
developments would result in a reduced supply of affordable housing as
small sites make a major contribution to our housing supply in this area.
Developers not wishing to make a financial contribution do have the
option of making provision on-site for affordable housing, to comply
with the policies in the adopted Local Plan.

In these circumstances, and with an up-to-date Local Plan, it will
generally be appropriate to conclude that the material consideration of
the Government’s recent announcement does not outweigh the
presumption in favour of following the Development Plan.

In conclusion, it is considered that the proposed development would be
acceptable subject to the completion of a Section 106 Agreement for
the required contributions.

In coming to this recommendation, consideration has been given to the
rights set out in Article 8 (Right to respect for private and family life)
and Article 1 of the First Protocol (Right to peaceful enjoyment of
possessions) of the European Convention on Human Rights. Whilst it is
recognised that there may be an interference with these rights and the
rights of other third parties, such interference has to be balanced with
the like rights of the applicant to develop the land in the way proposed.
In this case it is considered that the protection of the rights and
freedoms of the applicant outweigh any possible interference that may
result to any third party.

Page 31



Developers Contributions Summary Table

Proposal:
Type of Contribution | NFDC Policy Developer Difference
Requirement Proposed Provision
Affordable Housing
No. of Affordable 4 0
dwellings
Financial Contribution |0 £0 10
Financial Contribution | £0 £0 0
CIL Contribution Summary Table
Description of GIA New GIA Existing |GIA Net CIL Liability
Class Increase
Dwelling houses 1530 0 1530 £122,400.00

15. RECOMMENDATION

Grant Subject to Conditions

Proposed Conditions:

1.

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of
three years from the date of this permission.

Reason: To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning
Act 1990 as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

The development permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the
following approved plans: 947/12 rev j, 947/10 rev i, 947/20 rev g947/21 rev
h, 947/23 rev h, 947/22 rev h, 947/20 rev c.

Reason: To ensure satisfactory provision of the development.

Before development commences, samples or exact details of the facing and
roofing materials to be used to include the colour finishes to be applied and
the details of the windows, doors and balconies shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shalll
only be implemented in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: To ensure an acceptable appearance of the building in
accordance with policy CS2 of the Core Strategy for the New
Forest District outside the National Park.

Page 32



The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until the
arrangements for parking within its curtilage have been implemented. These
areas shall be kept available for their intended purposes at all times.

Reason: To ensure adequate parking provision is made in the interest of
highway safety.

Prior to commencement of works (including site clearance and any other
preparatory works) a scheme for the protection of trees in accordance with
BS5837:2012 ‘Trees in relation to design, demolition and construction —
Recommendations shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority for
approval. Once approved, the scheme shall be implemented and at least 3
working days notice shall be given to the Local Planning Authority that it has
been installed. Information is required on the:

a) Location of site compound and mixing areas,

b) Routes of underground services,

c) Tree work specification,

d) Position of tree protective fencing/ground protection. The protective
fencing shall be as specified in Chapter 6 and detailed in figures 2 or
3 of BS5837:2012 unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Local
Planning Authority.

e) The submission of further details of the spring loaded recessed
plates proposed at the entrance to the site from Ashley Road to
show the implications for the protected oak tree

Reason: To safeguard trees and natural features which are important to
the visual amenities of the area, in accordance with policy CS2
of the Core Strategy for the New Forest outside the National
Park.

In accordance with the submitted strategic landscape details on Drawing No
947/10 Rev 1, the following additional details shall be submitted to and
approved by the Local Planning Authority:

a) a specification for new planting (species, size, spacing, location, tree
pits, irrigation tubes, cellular systems and root barriers);

b) areas for hard surfacing and the materials to be used:;

c) other means of enclosure, including the external free standing
wall/grill structure which screens the undercroft parking area from
Ashley Road;

d) a method and programme for its implementation and the means to
provide for its future maintenance;

No development shall take place unless these details have been approved
and all planting, seeding or turfing comprised in the approved details of
landscaping shall be carried out in the first planting and seeding seasons
following the occupation of the buildings or the completion of the
development whichever is the sooner. Any trees or plants which within a
period of 5 years from the completion of the development die, are removed
or become seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next
planting season with others of a similar size or species, unless the Local
Planning Authority gives written consent to any variation.

Page 33



Reason: To ensure that the development takes place in an appropriate
way and to prevent inappropriate car parking to comply with
Policy CS2 of the Core Strategy for the New Forest District
outside the National Park.

Before first occupation of the development hereby approved the applicant
must design and install a surface water sustainable system to cater for the
new impermeable areas (i.e. roofs) on the proposed development such that
no additional or increased rate of flow of surface water will drain to any
water body or adjacent land for storms up to 1 in 100 years including climate
change.

Reason: In order to ensure that the drainage arrangements are
appropriate and in accordance with Policy CS2 of the Local
Plan for the New Forest District outside the National Park
(Core Strategy) and the New Forest District Council and New
Forest National Park Authority Strategic Flood Risk
Assessment for Local Development Frameworks.

Prior to commencement of work a trial trench shall be dug in the area
proposed for the foundations of the brick piered wall, in order to establish
the presence and direction of any significant tree roots. The trial trench shall
be hand dug to a depth of no less than 600mm without severing any roots of
more than 20mm in diameter. The applicant shall give the Local Planning
Authority notice of the completion of the trial trench and will allow
reasonable access to the trench by the Council's Tree Officer for a period of
7 days following notification. Details of the design and construction of the
foundations shall then be submitted to the Local Planning Authority having
regard to the presence and orientation of any structural roots and
development shall not proceed until the details have been approved by the
Local Planning Authority. Work shall only take place in accordance with the
approved details. -

Reason: To safeguard trees and natural features which are important
to the visual amenities of the area, in accordance with policy
CS2 of the Core Strategy for the New Forest outside the
National Park.

No development shall be carried out until proposals for the mitigation of the
impact of the development on the New Forest and Solent Coast European
Nature Conservation Sites have been submitted to and approved in writing
by the local planning authority, and the local planning authority has
confirmed in writing that the provision of the proposed mitigation has been
secured. Such proposals must:

a) Provide for mitigation in accordance with the New Forest District
Council Mitigation Strategy for European Sites SPD, adopted in June
2014 (or any amendment to or replacement for this document in
force at the time), or for mitigation to at least an equivalent effect:;

b) Provide details of the manner in which the proposed mitigation is to
be secured. Details to be submitted shall include arrangements for
the ongoing maintenance and monitoring of any Suitable Alternative
Natural Green Spaces which form part of the proposed mitigation
measures together with arrangements for permanent public access
thereto.

Page 34



c) The development shall be carried out in accordance with and subject
to the approved proposals.

Reason: The impacts of the proposed development must be mitigated
before any development is carried out in order to ensure that
there will be no adverse impacts on the New Forest and Solent
Coast Nature Conservation Sites in accordance with Policy
DM3 of the Local Plan Part 2 and the New Forest District
Council Mitigation Strategy for European Sites Supplementary
Planning Document.

Notes for inclusion on certificate:

1. This decision relates to amended / additional plans received by the Local
Planning Authority on the 13th May 2015

2. In accordance with paragraphs 186 and 187 of the National Planning Policy
Framework and Article 35 of the Town and Country Planning (Development
Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015, New Forest District Council
takes a positive and proactive approach, seeking solutions to any problems
arising in the handling of development proposals so as to achieve,
whenever possible, a positive outcome by giving clear advice to applicants.

Following discussions with the applicants, revised and additional plans have
been submitted to address design concerns and issues raised by the
highway authority which have enabled a positive recommendation to be
made.

3. In discharging condition No. 9 above the Applicant is advised that
appropriate mitigation is required before the development is commenced,
either by agreeing to fund the Council’'s Mitigation Projects or otherwise
providing mitigation to an equivalent standard. Further information about
how this can be achieved can be found here
http://www.newforest.gov.uk/article/16478/

Further Information:

Major Team
Telephone: 023 8028 5345 (Option 1)

Page 35



: - v T Vo o
"9|eos 029000} Aanng soueuplQ 910¢ siybu sseqejep pue Jybukdod umoid @

0} 8¢ J0U [IM }I ‘Jaulajul 8y} | ) ‘
woyj ueid siyy Buuud i "g'N

0Gcli 1 o[eds

unod wig

ASNOH UOSIBPY

1502

S6¥2ZS
Z€00L/Sh
UOYIN MON
peoy uonels
65

0¢ :ON Wy

910z }snbny

d9jIwwo) [o3uo0)
juswdojaaaqg Buluuejd

Vd. €¥0OS

1sinypuiy

Hnoy sauejddy

j1ounog jousiqg 19404 MaN
{foiuo) Buipjing pue Buiuueid
lsbeuepy aoinI8g

wooi9 pineq

sbuiping piejieiy

NN°AoB }salomau Mmm
000G 8208 €20 -I°L

TIDNNOD 1D21d1isida

}Sal0{ MIN]




Agenda Iltem 3d

Planning Development Control Committee 10 August 2016 Item 3 d

Application Number: 15/10039 Full Planning Permission

Site: Land adjacent 1 DUKESWOOD DRIVE, DIBDEN PURLIEU,
HYTHE SO45 4NH
Development: Detached house
Applicant: BSP Projects Ltd
Target Date: 27/03/2015
Extension Date: 30/09/2016
1 REASON FOR COMMITTEE CONSIDERATION
Previous Committee consideration and contrary to Policy
2 DEVELOPMENT PLAN AND OTHER CONSTRAINTS
Landscape Feature
Public Open Space Existing
Built up area
Flood Zone 1/2/3
3 DEVELOPMENT PLAN, OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

Core Strateqy

Obijectives

1. Special qualities, local distinctiveness and a high quality living environment
2. Climate change and environmental sustainability

3. Housing

6. Towns, villages and built environment quality

8. Biodiversity and landscape

Policies

Adopted Local Plan First Alteration

Saved Policy DW-E12: Protection of Landscape Features

Core Strategy

CS2: Design quality

CS4: Energy and resource use

CS6: Flood risk

CS7: Open spaces, sport and recreation

CS10: The spatial strategy

CS15: Affordable housing contribution requirements from developments
CS24: Transport considerations

CS25: Developers contributions

Local Plan Part 2

DM3: Mitigation of impacts on European nature conservation sites

Page 37



10

11

RELEVANT LEGISLATION AND GOVERNMENT ADVICE

Section 38 Development Plan
Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004
National Planning Policy Framework

RELEVANT SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE AND DOCUMENTS

SPD - Mitigation Strategy for European Sites
SPD - Parking Standards

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY
6.1 House, access (91624) Granted with conditions on the 6th March 2008

6.2  Erection of a house with integral garage (06811) Refused on the 20th
January 1977

PARISH / TOWN COUNCIL COMMENTS

Hythe Parish Council: Recommend permission but would support a delegated
decision

COUNCILLOR COMMENTS
None
CONSULTED COMMENTS

9.1 Land Drainage: No objection subject to condition
9.2 Environment Agency: No objection subject to condition

9.3 Hampshire County Council Highway Engineer: No comment received to
date

9.4  Tree Officer: No objection subject to condition

9.5  Open Space Officer: Objection. The proposal would result in the loss of
an existing landscape feature and area of public open space.

9.6  Council's Valuer: If the target Affordable Homes contribution is included
in the appraisal, the residential development land value falls below the
current modest Site Value. Therefore it is appropriate to reduce the
Affordable Homes contribution in this case. If the Affordable Housing
contribution is adjusted to £14,265 the residual development site value is
in equilibrium with the threshold Site Value.

9.7  Policy: Objection. The proposal would result in the loss of an existing
landscape feature and area of public open space.

REPRESENTATIONS RECEIVED
None
CRIME & DISORDER IMPLICATIONS

No relevant considerations

Page 38



12

13

14

LOCAL FINANCE CONSIDERATIONS

If this development is granted permission and the dwellings built, the Council will
receive £1152 in each of the following six years from the dwellings' completion,
and as a result, a total of £6912 in government grant under the New Homes
Bonus will be received. From the 6 April 2015 New Forest District Council began
charging the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) on new residential
developments. Based on the information provided at the time of this report this
development has a CIL liability of £12,048.80

WORKING WITH THE APPLICANT/AGENT

In accordance with paragraphs 186 and 187 of the National Planning Policy
Framework and Article 31 of Town and Country Planning (Development
Management Procedure) (England) Order 2010 , New Forest District Council
take a positive and proactive approach, seeking solutions to any problems
arising in the handling of development proposals so as to achieve, whenever
possible, a positive outcome.

This is achieved by

e Strongly encouraging those proposing development to use the very
thorough pre application advice service the Council provides.

e Working together with applicants/agents to ensure planning applications
are registered as expeditiously as possible.

e Advising agents/applicants early on in the processing of an application
(through the release of a Parish Briefing Note) as to the key issues
relevant to the application.

e Updating applicants/agents of issues that arise in the processing of their
applications through the availability of comments received on the web or
by direct contact when relevant.

e Working together with applicants/agents to closely manage the planning
application process to allow an opportunity to negotiate and accept
amendments on applications (particularly those that best support the
Core Strategy Obijectives) when this can be done without compromising
government performance requirements.

e Advising applicants/agents as soon as possible as to concerns that
cannot be dealt with during the processing of an application allowing for
a timely withdrawal and re-submission or decision based on the scheme
as originally submitted if this is what the applicant/agent requires.

* When necessary discussing with applicants/agents proposed conditions
especially those that would restrict the use of commercial properties or
land when this can be done without compromising government
performance requirements.

In this case, the proposal was acceptable as submitted.

ASSESSMENT

141 Introduction

14.1.1  The application was considered by this Committee on the 9th March
2016 and the resolution was for the Executive Head of Economy,
Housing and Planning be authorised to Grant Permission subject to
the completion by 30th September 2016, of a planning obligation

entered into by way of an Agreement pursuant to Section 106 of the
Town and Country Planning Act 1990 to secure an affordable housing

Page 39



contribution of £14,625. The legal agreement has not been completed
and this application is now referred to the Committee following
changes to government policy as set out below.

14.1.2  On 19th May 2016 the Government issued planning guidance setting
out the specific circumstances in which contributions for affordable
housing and tariff style planning obligations (section 106 agreements)
should not be sought from small scale and self-build development.
This guidance has been reissued following the order of the Court of
Appeal dated 13th May 2016 (West Berkshire District Council and
Another v The Secretary of State for Communities and Local
Government). The planning guidance specifies the circumstances in
which contributions should not be sought as follows:

"Contributions should not be sought from developments of 10 units or
less and which have a maximum combined gross floorspace of no
more than 1,000 sqm;

In designated rural areas, local planning authorities may choose to
apply a lower threshold of 5 units or less;

14.1.3  Affordable housing and tariff style contributions should not be sought
from any development consisting only of the construction of a
residential annex or extension to an existing house", This national
guidance is at odds with Policy CS15 of the Council's Core Strategy
which requires many small scale housing developments including the
current application proposal to make affordable housing provision

14.1.4  The presumption in favour of the development plan remains, in that
the decision should be taken in accordance with the plan unless
material considerations indicate otherwise. The new guidance is a
material consideration which post-dates the adoption of the Local Plan.
It is for the Council to decide which should prevail in the determination
of a planning application. However, the Secretary of State, through his
Inspectors, can be anticipated to give greater weight to the
Government's national guidance unless there are reasons to make an
exception.

14.1.5  While the need for affordable housing in this District is pressing, this in
itself is unlikely to be considered by the Secretary of State as sufficient
reason for the Council to apply its own development plan policy rather
than applying national policy. Therefore it is recommended that no
affordable housing or tariff style contributions are sought from this
development, in accordance with national Planning Practice Guidance,
contrary to the provisions of Policy CS15 of the Core Strategy.

14.2 Previous Committee Report

14.2.1  The site lies on the corner of Whitewater Rise and Dukeswood Drive
within the built up area of Hythe. There are no buildings or structures
on the site, which is currently vacant. At one time the site possibly
formed part of the residential curtilage to No 1 Dukeswood Drive. The
site is a square shaped piece of land with dense vegetation and trees
to the west, north and south boundaries. The land is on a much lower
level than Dukeswood Drive. To the north of the site is a stream and
footpath running through a line of trees and the site lies within a high
risk flood zone. Part of the site is located within land identified as a
Landscape Feature, existing public open space.

Page 40




14.2.2

14.2.3

14.2.4

14.2.5

14.2.6

14.2.7

The character of the surrounding area is residential and comprises
detached, semi-detached and terraced housing (linked by garages).
Along Dukeswood Drive, the residential properties range from two
storey dwellings to chalet style dwellings. For the most part, the
dwellings have their ridge lines running parallel to the road, but some
of the properties are designed with front gables. To the front of the
properties there are no front boundary walls or enclosures. Rear
garden areas are typically small with a dense line of trees lining their
rear boundaries.

The proposal is to construct a detached dwelling with attached garage
on this site with access from Dukeswood Drive. The main elevation of
the proposed dwelling would front onto Dukeswood Drive and the
proposed layout would incorporate a side and rear garden area. The
majority of the existing trees along the site boundary would be
removed and new tree planting is proposed around the perimeter of
the site. Visually the proposed dwelling would be a conventional two
storey dwelling with a pitched roof with part front gable end.

Planning permission was granted on this site in 2008 for a detached
dwelling, which comprised a building which would have fronted onto
Dukeswood Drive. That permission has now expired. That approval
involved the dwelling having a front and rear garden and the majority
of the land to the west of the site where there is dense tree coverage
being retained.

In assessing the effect on the character and appearance of the area,
the site lies within the built up area and part of the site lies within an
area designated as a Landscape feature and existing public open
space. The landscape feature and public open space designation
extends along the stream to the north of the site and the western half
of the site on the corner of Dukeswood Avenue and Whitewater Rise.
It should be noted that the site is not in public ownership.

Saved Policy DW-E12 of the Local Plan ( First Alteration) relates to the
protection of landscape features and states that development will not
be permitted which would cause the loss of, or irreparable damage to,
open areas or other landscape features, which contribute to the
character or setting of a defined built-up area and/ or screen
development which would otherwise have an unacceptable visual
impact. The subtext to the policy states that within and adjoining the
defined built-up areas, there are undeveloped areas and landscape
features, such as small amenity spaces, gaps between parts of
settlements, woodlands, ponds etc, which are of visual amenity value,
and help to create a particular local character and identity. This policy
seeks to protect them from developments which would detract from
the contribution they make to the quality and character of the local
environment. Where appropriate the local planning authority will also
encourage management initiatives to maintain and enhance them.

In terms of the loss of open space, part of the site is allocated in the
local plan as existing open space (exactly the same area which is
identified as a landscape feature). The land has not been developed
as public open space and there is no direct access for the public to
use this land. The Council's Open Space Officer is concerned that
although the land is not currently used as open space, it is allocated

Page 41



14.2.8

14.2.9

14.2.10

14.2.11

14.2.12

for such purposes and the loss of this area would affect the Council’s
overall open space requirements and the proposal would also result in
the loss of the landscape feature. :

In response, the proposed dwelling and rear garden area does not
extend into these areas. It is the proposed side garden area which
would extend into the designated areas. Given that the land has never
been laid out as open space or made available for public use, it is very
unlikely that it would ever become available for public open space in
the foreseeable future. This is not to say that every piece of land which
is designated as a landscape feature or area of public open space
which is in private ownership can be developed. However, it is felt that
in this case, the extent of the area is very small, and it will not be
available for public use in the future. The land to the north of the site
along the stream is also defined as public open space, however, in this
area there is a footpath and it is available for the public to use.

Moreover, it is clear that there are a number of trees and vegetation
along the western and northern boundaries of the site, some of which
are in a poor condition and over the years it would appear that the
density of the vegetation has been reduced. None of these trees are
protected. The applicant seeks to create a much improved tree
planting proposal with a 6 metre screen around the perimeter of the
site and this could include a mixture of field maple, scots pine and
birch trees. The final details can be dealt with by a suitably worded
planning condition.

In assessing this proposal, while some of the proposed side garden
encroaches into the land designated as a landscape feature, this is
only a small area and the proposal seeks to provide a much enhanced
landscaped area with a better tree planting scheme extending to 6
metres deep around the perimeter of the site. It is felt that the 6 metre
landscape buffer would ensure that a sufficient area of the landscape
feature would be retained and a planning condition can also be
imposed to prevent sheds or outbuildings in the side garden without
the prior approval of the Local Authority. On balance it is considered
that any harm from the removal of some trees and vegetation will be
improved by an enhanced planting proposal, which would screen the
development and retain the important landscape feature on the
entrance to Dukeswood Drive.

Visually, the proposed dwelling is a different design to some of the
other properties in the street, which predominantly have their ridge
lines running parallel to the street. However the proposed dwelling has
been designed to a high standard and because of its detached form
would add interest to this part of the street and would not have a
harmful impact on the character of the area.

With regard to residential amenity, the first floor windows on the south
elevation would face in the direction of Dukeswood Drive, which would
be acceptable and would not have any adverse impact in terms of
overlooking. In terms of the effect on the resident at No 87 Highlands
Way, there is a dense woodland area that separates the proposed
north side elevation from the rear garden of that resident. The distance
from the proposed bathroom window to the rear boundary of No 87
measures around 12.5 metres, and given the screening, this is unlikely
to unacceptably impact on that resident. Indeed the back to back

Page 42



14.2.13

14.2.14

14.2.15

14.2.16

14.2.17

14.2.18

distance is 25 metres, which is acceptable. Concerning the resident at
No 1 Dukeswood Drive the proposed development is located close to
the conservatory and side elevation of that property. The proposed
attached garage would be sited adjacent to the conservatory, which
would help reduce the impact on this neighbouring property.

In terms of highway safety matters and car parking, the site layout
shows a car parking space and integral garage, which is sufficient for
the size of the dwelling. It is also not anticipated that the proposal
would prejudice public highway safety.

In terms of flooding matters, the application has been submitted with a
Flood Risk Assessment. Based upon the Environment Agency flooding
maps, the site is in part located within Flood Zone 2/3, which is
defined as a high risk flooding area and to the rear of the site is a
stream which is approximately 4 metres below the ground level of the
site. The Flood Risk Assessment states that if the building has a
suspended ground floor level at 21.60 metres Above Ordnance Datum
(AOD), this would be 0.6 metres above the highest predicted level on
the site during the 100 year event. This would effectively mean that the
proposed dwelling would be sited in Flood Zone 1 which would be
outside the high risk flood areas and on this basis, the Sequential Test
would not be applicable. The Environment Agency raises no objection
to the proposal provided that the building is built to this 21.60 metres
AOD.

The proposed development requires an affordable housing
contribution, which is considered fair and reasonable. In this case, the
required affordable housing contribution equates to £25,070. The
applicants have submitted a viability appraisal which concludes that if
the full affordable housing contribution was made, the proposed
development would be unviable.

The Council's Valuer has assessed the submitted viability appraisal
and states that if the target Affordable Homes contribution is included
in the appraisal, the residential development land value falls below the
current modest Site Value. Accordingly, it is appropriate to reduce the
Affordable Homes contribution to £14,625.

In accordance with the Habitat Regulations 2010 an assessment has
been carried out of the likely significant effects associated with the
recreational impacts of the residential development provided for in the
Local Plan on both the New Forest and the Solent European Nature
Conservation Sites. It has been concluded that likely significant
adverse effects cannot be ruled out without appropriate mitigation
projects being secured. In the event that planning permission is
granted for the proposed development, a condition is recommended
that would prevent the development from proceeding until the
applicant has secured appropriate mitigation, either by agreeing to
fund the Council's Mitigation Projects or otherwise providing mitigation
to an equivalent standard.

In conclusion, it is considered that the proposed development would
not have an adverse impact on the character of the area or living
conditions of the adjoining residents and subject to the completion of a
Section 106 Agreement to secure contributions towards affordable
housing the proposal would be acceptable.

Page 43



14.2.19 In coming to this recommendation, consideration has been given to

the rights set out in Article 8 (Right to respect for private and family
life) and Avrticle 1 of the First Protocol (Right to peaceful enjoyment of
possessions) of the European Convention on Human Rights. Whilst it
is recognised that there may be an interference with these rights and
the rights of other third parties, such interference has to be balanced
with the like rights of the applicant to develop the land in the way
proposed. In this case it is considered that the protection of the rights
and freedoms of the applicant outweigh any possible interference that
may result to any third party.

15. RECOMMENDATION

Grant Subject to Conditions

Proposed Conditions:

1.

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of
three years from the date of this permission.

Reason:  To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning
Act 1990 as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

The development permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the
following approved plans: site identification plans Rev A, adp/1424/p/101,
adp/1424/p/102 Rev a, ADP/1424/P/100 rev a.

Reason:  To ensure satisfactory provision of the development.

Before development commences, samples or exact details of the facing and
roofing materials to be used shall be submitted to and approved in writing by
the Local Planning Authority. The development shall only be implemented in
accordance with the approved details.

Reason:  To ensure an acceptable appearance of the building in
accordance with policy CS2 of the Core Strategy for the New
Forest District outside the National Park.

The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until the spaces
shown on plan ADP/1424/P/100 A for the parking and garaging of motor
vehicles have been provided. The spaces shown on plan ADP/1424/P/100 A
for the parking and garaging or motor vehicles shall be retained and kept
available for the parking [and garaging] of motor vehicles for the dwellings
hereby approved at all times.

Reason:  To ensure adequate parking provision is made in the interest of
highway safety and in accordance with Policy CS2 and CS24 of
the Local Plan for the New Forest outside of the National Park
(Core Strategy).

Page 44



Before development commences a scheme of landscaping of the site shall
be submitted for approval in writing by the Local Planning Authority. This
scheme shall include :

(a) the existing trees and shrubs which have been agreed to be
retained,;

(b) a specification for new planting (species, size, spacing and location);

(c) areas for hard surfacing and the materials to be used;

(d) other means of enclosure;

(e) a method and programme for its implementation and the means to
provide for its future maintenance.

No development shall take place unless these details have been approved
and all planting, seeding or turfing comprised in the approved details of
landscaping shall be carried out in the first planting and seeding seasons
following the occupation of the buildings or the completion of the
development whichever is the sooner. Any trees or plants which within a
period of 10 years from the completion of the development die, are removed
or become seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next
planting season with others of a similar size or species, unless the Local
Planning Authority gives written consent to any variation.

Reason: -~ To ensure that the development takes place in an appropriate
way and to prevent inappropriate car parking to comply with
Policy CS2 of the Local Plan for the New Forest District outside
the National Park (Core Strategy).

No buildings, structures, fencing or other hardstanding shall be erected or
installed within the landscaped feature as shown on Drawing No
ADP/1424/P/100 Rev B unless otherwise agreed by the Local Planning
Authority.

Reason: This area of land provides an important landscaped feature
and buffer to the entrance to Dukeswood Drive and Partridge
Road, and it is important to ensure that the landscaping and
tree planting is not further removed and replaced with
buildings, hardstanding, and additional garden areas in the
future in accordance with Policy DW-E12 of the adopted New
Forest District Local Plan First Alteration and CS2 of the Core
Strategy for the New Forest outside the National Park.

The finished floor levels of the dwelling hereby approved shall be set no
lower than 21.60 metres Above Ordnance Datum (AOD) as shown on the
submitted plan reference ADP/1424/P/102 A or unless otherwise agreed by
the Local Planning Authority.

Reason:  To reduce the risk of flooding in accordance with policy CS6 of
the Core Strategy for the New Forest District outside the
National Park.

Before first occupation of the development hereby approved the applicant
must design and install a surface water sustainable system to cater for the
new impermeable areas (i.e. roofs) on the proposed development such that
no additional or increased rate of flow of surface water will drain to any
water body or adjacent land for storms up to 1 in 100 years including climate
change.

Page 45



10.

Reason:  In order to ensure that the drainage arrangements are
appropriate and in accordance with Policy CS2 of the Local Plan
for the New Forest District outside the National Park (Core
Strategy) and the New Forest District Council and New Forest
National Park Authority Strategic Flood Risk Assessment for
Local Development Frameworks.

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General
Permitted Development) Order 2015 (or any re-enactment of that Order) no
extension (or alterations) otherwise approved by Classes A, B or C of Part 1
of Schedule 2 to the Order, garage or other outbuilding otherwise approved
by Class E of Part 1 of Schedule 2 to the Order, or means of enclosure
otherwise approved by Class A of Part 2 of Schedule 2 to the Order shall be
erected or carried out without express planning permission first having been
granted.

Reason:  In view of the physical characteristics of the plot, the Local
Planning Authority would wish to ensure that any future
development proposals do not adversely affect the visual
amenities of the area and the amenities of neighbouring
properties, contrary to Policy CS2 of the Local Plan for the New
Forest District outside the National Park (Core Strategy).

No development shall be carried out until proposals for the mitigation of the
impact of the development on the New Forest and Solent Coast European
Nature Conservation Sites have been submitted to and approved in writing
by the local planning authority, and the local planning authority has
confirmed in writing that the provision of the proposed mitigation has been
secured. Such proposals must:

(a) Provide for mitigation in accordance with the New Forest District Council
Mitigation Strategy for European Sites SPD, adopted in June 2014 (or
any amendment to or replacement for this document in force at the
time), or for mitigation to at least an equivalent effect;

(b) Provide details of the manner in which the proposed mitigation is to be
secured. Details to be submitted shall include arrangements for the
ongoing maintenance and monitoring of any Suitable Alternative Natural
Green Spaces which form part of the proposed mitigation measures
together with arrangements for permanent public access thereto.

(c) The development shall be carried out in accordance with and subject to
the approved proposals.

Reason:  The impacts of the proposed development must be mitigated
before any development is carried out in order to ensure that
there will be no adverse impacts on the New Forest and Solent
Coast Nature Conservation Sites in accordance with Policy DM3
of the Local Plan Part 2 and the New Forest District Council
Mitigation Strategy for European Sites Supplementary Planning
Document.

Page 46



Notes for inclusion on certificate:

1. In accordance with paragraphs 186 and 187 of the National Planning Policy
Framework and Article 35 of the Town and Country Planning (Development
Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015, New Forest District Council
takes a positive and proactive approach, seeking solutions to any problems
arising in the handling of development proposals so as to achieve,
whenever possible, a positive outcome by giving clear advice to applicants.

In this case all the above apply and as the application was acceptable as
submitted no specific further actions were required.

2. This decision relates to amended plans received by the Local Planning
Authority on the 10th December 2015.

3. In discharging condition No.10 above the Applicant is advised that
appropriate mitigation is required before the development is commenced,
either by agreeing to fund the Council’s Mitigation Projects or otherwise
providing mitigation to an equivalent standard. Further information about
how this can be achieved can be found here
http://www.newforest.gov.uk/article/16478/

Further Information:

Major Team
Telephone: 023 8028 5345 (Option 1)

Page 47



J A\ WY \ \ T 1T T 17 T

"9leos 022920001 Aaning soueuplO 910z s1ybu sseqgeiep pue 1ybuAdoo umold o
0} 99 10U [|IM }I ‘JBulsiul sy} -/ v ..o [

woyj ueld sy} Bupuud §i "g'N \ Q

<
Y
QY

0G¢lL:1 ofeds

90L¥NS
6E00L/GL

naijing uspdig
aALIg poomsayng
| Ipy pued

pE ON way|

910z 3snbny

99 IWILIOY [0JJU0D
juswdojaaaqg Buluue|d

Vd. €¥0S

1SInypui

Hno) sans|ddy

jouno) oS }S9404 MeN
{onuo) Buipjing pue Bujuueld
1abeuepy 90iAI8S

wools) pineq

{n°AOB }sai0MmaU MMM
000G 8208 €20 ‘Bl
TIDNNOD 1LDoi¥lisid

15910 MAN]




Agenda Item 3e

Planning Development Control Committee 10 August 2016 Item 3 e

Application Number: 15/11264 Full Planning Permission

Site:

40 HOBART ROAD, NEW MILTON BH25 6EG

Development: Two-storey dwelling; parking

Applicant: Murrays (Stationers) Limited
Target Date: 17/11/2015
Extension Date: 30/06/2016

REASON FOR COMMITTEE CONSIDERATION
Contrary to Policy

DEVELOPMENT PLAN AND OTHER CONSTRAINTS
Built up area

DEVELOPMENT PLAN, OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

Core Strateqy
Obijectives

1. Special qualities, local distinctiveness and a high quality iiving environment
3. Housing
6. Towns, villages and built environment quality

Policies

Core Strategy

CS2: Design quality

CS4: Energy and resource use

CS10: The spatial strategy

CS15: Affordable housing contribution requirements from developments
CS17: Employment and economic development

CS24: Transport considerations

CS25: Developers contributions

Local Plan Part 2

DM3: Mitigation of impacts on European nature conservation sites

RELEVANT LEGISLATION AND GOVERNMENT ADVICE
Section 38 Development Plan

Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004
National Planning Policy Framework

Page 49



10

11

12

RELEVANT SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE AND DOCUMENTS
SPD - Parking Standards

SPD - New Milton Local Distinctiveness

SPD - Mitigation Strategy for European Sites

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

6.1 Erection of garage and store (Lyb 14211) Granted with conditions on the
15th Dec 1972

6.2 Erection of additional offices (Lyb 6990) Granted on the 23rd Dec 1960
6.3  Erection of office (Lyb 4546) Granted on the 12th March 1958

PARISH / TOWN COUNCIL COMMENTS

New Milton Town Council: acceptable

COUNCILLOR COMMENTS

None

CONSULTEE COMMENTS

9.1 Hampshire County Council Highway Engineer: no highway objection
subject to condition

9.2  Land Drainage: No objection subject to condition

REPRESENTATIONS RECEIVED

None

CRIME & DISORDER IMPLICATIONS

No relevant considerations

LOCAL FINANCE CONSIDERATIONS

If this development is granted permission and the dwellings built, the Council will
receive (net increase in dwellings x £1152) in each of the following six years
from the dwellings' completion, and as a result, a total of £x (figure above x 6) in

government grant under the New Homes Bonus will be received.

From the 6 April 2015 New Forest District Council began charging the
Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) on new residential developments.

Based on the information provided at the time of this report this development
has a CIL liability of £6,351.41.

Tables setting out all contributions are at the end of this report.

Page 50



13 WORKING WITH THE APPLICANT/AGENT

In accordance with paragraphs 186 and 187 of the National Planning Policy
Framework and Article 35 of the Town and Country Planning (Development
Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015, New Forest District Council
take a positive and proactive approach, seeking solutions to any problems
arising in the handling of development proposals so as to achieve, whenever
possible, a positive outcome.

This is achieved by

Strongly encouraging those proposing development to use the very
thorough pre application advice service the Council provides.

Working together with applicants/agents to ensure planning applications
are registered as expeditiously as possible.

Advising agents/applicants early on in the processing of an application
(through the release of a Parish Briefing Note) as to the key issues
relevant to the application.

Updating applicants/agents of issues that arise in the processing of their
applications through the availability of comments received on the web or
by direct contact when relevant.

Working together with applicants/agents to closely manage the planning
application process to allow an opportunity to negotiate and accept
amendments on applications (particularly those that best support the
Core Strategy Objectives) when this can be done without compromising
government performance requirements.

Advising applicants/agents as soon as possible as to concerns that
cannot be dealt with during the processing of an application allowing for
a timely withdrawal and re-submission or decision based on the scheme
as originally submitted if this is what the applicant/agent requires.

When necessary discussing with applicants/agents proposed conditions
especially those that would restrict the use of commercial properties or
land when this can be done without compromising government
performance requirements.

Revised plans have been submitted which has addressed the concerns
previously raised. The proposal is now supported by Officers.

14 ASSESSMENT

14.1.1

The application site lies to the rear of a two storey semi detached
dwelling at No 42 Hobart Road and currently comprises a collection of
single storey buildings (with first floor accommodation in part) which
was previously used as a workshop and stores. The buildings occupy
a large part of the rear of the site (around 230 square metres) with a
small area used in front of the buildings for vehicular access and car
parking. The buildings comprise a flat roof structure to the front and a
taller building extending to the rear boundary which incorporates a
pitched roof. Glimpses of these buildings can be seen from Hobart
Road, but the north boundary is bounded by Arnewood School playing
fields. To the front of the site is the semi detached dwelling which
appears to be two residential properties and this does not form part of
the site. Apart from a small front and rear garden, these residential
properties do not have any other outside amenity space.

Page 51



14.1.2

14.1.3

14.1.4

14.1.5

14.1.6

14.1.7

The character of the area is predominately residential with detached
and semi detached dwellings fronting onto Hobart Road with their rear
gardens backing onto the Arnewood School. For the most part, the
rear residential properties along Hobart Road have relatively deep rear
garden areas with outbuildings and sheds and the car parking spaces
are generally provided to the side of the buildings. There are some
community facilities opposite and nearby but along the northern side of
Hobart Road the context is residential.

This proposal seeks to demolish the existing buildings and to construct
a detached dwelling. The dwelling has been designed to appear as a
'‘Coach House' with front and rear gables and the proposed building
would occupy a similar siting compared to the existing building,
although it would have a smaller footprint. The layout of the site would
provide for car parking spaces and front and rear garden areas.

In policy terms, the site is not allocated for any purposes and is a site
which lies within the built up area. Policy CS17 relates to employment
and economic development and the policy seeks to keep all existing
employment sites and allocations for employment use. The existing
buildings are not currently used for any employment use, and it is the
only employment building in this location. When the building was
previously in use, it is understood that two to three people were
employed. Given the poor condition and unattractive nature of the
existing buildings, and its location situated amongst residential
properties, it is considered that a residential use would be appropriate
and would not undermine the policy to retain employment uses.

Indeed, there is a clear opportunity to enhance the character of the
area and the living conditions of the neighbouring residential
properties and this current proposal would achieve this. The proposed
dwelling would be of a traditional design with a simple roof form and
although it would be taller than the existing building, the overall ground
covered by buildings would be considerably reduced. Moreover, whilst
the dwelling would be sited in a backland position, given that there is
already a large building in this location,there are no objections to this
particular location for a dwelling. Overall it is considered that the
proposed development would make a positive enhancement to the
character and appearance of the area.

With regard to residential amenity, although the proposed dwelling
would be taller in scale compared to the existing building, it would have
a smaller footprint. Moreover, a single residential property would result
in less activity and disturbance compared to an employment use and
generally the proposal would create an improved relationship with the
neighbouring properties.

The proposed rooflights on the side elevation serve bathrooms and
secondary windows to bedrooms. In order to mitigate against
overlooking these windows will need to be fitted with obscure glass
and fixed shut. The first floor window on the front elevation would also
require the lower panels to be glazed with obscure glass to maintain a
reasonable level of privacy.

Page 52



14.1.8

14.9

14.10

14.11

14.12

The car parking is solely to serve the proposed dwelling. The level of
car parking accords with the recommended car parking guidance set
out in the Councils adopted Supplementary Planning Document. The
layout also provides a turning circle to enable cars to leave the site in a
forward gear. The Highway Authority does not raise any objections to
the proposal.

On 19th May 2016 the Government issued planning guidance setting
out the specific circumstances in which contributions for affordable
housing and tariff style planning obligations (section 106 agreements)
should not be sought from small scale and self-build development.
This guidance has been reissued following the order of the Court of
Appeal dated 13th May 2016 (West Berkshire District Council and
Another v The Secretary of State for Communities and Local
Government). The planning guidance specifies the circumstances in
which contributions should not be sought as follows:

"Contributions should not be sought from developments of 10 units or
less and which have a maximum combined gross floorspace of no
more than 1,000 sgm;

In designated rural areas, local planning authorities may choose to
apply a lower threshold of 5 units or less;

Affordable housing and tariff style contributions should not be sought
from any development consisting only of the construction of a
residential annex or extension to an existing house", This national
guidance is at odds with Policy CS15 of the Council's Core Strategy
which requires many small scale housing developments including the
current application proposal to make affordable housing provision.

The presumption in favour of the development plan remains, in that
the decision should be taken in accordance with the plan unless
material considerations indicate otherwise. The new guidance is a
material consideration which post-dates the adoption of the Local Plan.
It is for the Council to decide which should prevail in the determination
of a planning application. However, the Secretary of State, through his
Inspectors, can be anticipated to give greater weight to the
Government's national guidance unless there are reasons to make an
exception.

While the need for affordable housing in this District is pressing, this in
itself is unlikely to be considered by the Secretary of State as sufficient
reason for the Council to apply its own development plan policy rather
than applying national policy. Therefore it is recommended that no
affordable housing or tariff style contributions are sought from this
development, in accordance with national Planning Practice
Guidance, contrary to the provisions of Policy CS15 of the Core
Strategy.

In accordance with the Habitat Regulations 2010 an assessment has
been carried out of the likely significant effects associated with the
recreational impacts of the residential development provided for in the
Local Plan on both the New Forest and the Solent European Nature
Conservation Sites. It has been concluded that likely significant
adverse effects cannot be ruled out without appropriate mitigation
projects being secured. In the event that planning permission is

Page 53



granted for the proposed development, a condition is recommended
that would prevent the development from proceeding until the
applicant has secured appropriate mitigation, either by agreeing to
fund the Council's Mitigation Projects or otherwise providing mitigation
to an equivalent standard.

14.13  In conclusion it is considered that the proposal to replace an
unattractive employment use to the rear of residential gardens with a
new dwelling would be acceptable. Whilst strictly not in accordance
with policy that seeks to retain employment uses, given the location of
the site and the small loss of employment space, a residential use
would be reasonable. The design and layout of the proposal is
acceptable and overall the proposal would make improvements to the
character of the area and the relationship with neighbouring
properties.

14.14  In coming to this recommendation, consideration has been given to
the rights set out in Article 8 (Right to respect for private and family
life) and Avrticle 1 of the First Protocol (Right to peaceful enjoyment of
possessions) of the European Convention on Human Rights. Whilst it
is recognised that there may be an interference with these rights and
the rights of other third parties, such interference has to be balanced
with the like rights of the applicant to develop the land in the way
proposed. In this case it is considered that the protection of the rights
and freedoms of the applicant outweigh any possible interference that
may result to any third party.

CIL Summary Table

Description of GIA New GIA Existing |GIA Net CIL Liability
Class Increase
Dwelling houses 76.17 76.17 £6,351.41*

15. RECOMMENDATION

Grant Subject to Conditions

Proposed Conditions:

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of
three years from the date of this permission.

Reason: To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning

Act 1990 as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

2. The development permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the
following approved plans: Drawing 3

Reason: To ensure satisfactory provision of the development.

Page 54



Before development commences, the proposed slab levels in relationship to
the existing ground levels set to an agreed datum shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Development shall only
take place in accordance with those details which have been approved.

Reason: To ensure that the development takes place in an appropriate
way in accordance with policy CS2 of the Local Plan for the
New Forest District outside the National Park (Core Strategy).

Before development commences, samples or exact details of the facing and
roofing materials to be used shall be submitted to and approved in writing by
the Local Planning Authority. The development shall only be implemented
in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: To ensure an acceptable appearance of the building in
accordance with policy CS2 of the Core Strategy for the New
Forest District outside the National Park.

The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until the spaces
shown on plan reference 3 for the parking of motor vehicles have been
provided. The spaces shown on plan reference 3 for the parking or motor
vehicles shall be retained and kept available for the parking of motor
vehicles for the dwellings hereby approved at all times.

Reason: To ensure adequate parking provision is made in the interest of
highway safety and in accordance with Policy CS2 and CS24
of the Local Plan for the New Forest outside of the National
Park (Core Strategy).

Before development commences a scheme of landscaping of the site shall
be submitted for approval in writing by the Local Planning Authority. This
scheme shall include :

(a) the existing trees and shrubs which have been agreed to be
retained;

(b) a specification for new planting (species, size, spacing and location);

(c) areas for hard surfacing and the materials to be used;

(d) other means of enclosure;

(e) a method and programme for its implementation and the means to
provide for its future maintenance.

No development shall take place unless these details have been approved
and then only in accordance with those details.

Reason: To ensure that the development takes place in an appropriate
way and to prevent inappropriate car parking to comply with
Policy CS2 of the Local Plan for the New Forest District outside
the National Park (Core Strategy).

The first floor windows (rooflights) on the side [ north and south ] elevations
of the approved building shall at all times be glazed with obscure glass and
fixed shut.

Page 55



10.

Reason: To safeguard the privacy of the adjoining neighbouring
properties in accordance with policy CS2 of the Local Plan for
the New Forest District outside the National Park (Core
Strategy).

The lower window panels on the first floor windows on the front [east]
elevation of the approved dwelling shall at all times be glazed with obscure
glass and fixed shut.

Reason: To safeguard the privacy of the adjoining neighbouring
properties in accordance with policy CS2 of the Core Strategy
for the New Forest District outside the National Park.

No development shall be carried out until proposals for the mitigation of the
impact of the development on the New Forest and Solent Coast European
Nature Conservation Sites have been submitted to and approved in writing
by the local planning authority, and the local planning authority has
confirmed in writing that the provision of the proposed mitigation has been
secured. Such proposals must:

(a) Provide for mitigation in accordance with the New Forest District
Council Mitigation Strategy for European Sites SPD, adopted in June
2014 (or any amendment to or replacement for this document in
force at the time), or for mitigation to at least an equivalent effect;

(b) Provide details of the manner in which the proposed mitigation is to
be secured. Details to be submitted shall include arrangements for
the ongoing maintenance and monitoring of any Suitable Alternative
Natural Green Spaces which form part of the proposed mitigation
measures together with arrangements for permanent public access
thereto.

(c) The development shall be carried out in accordance with and subject
to the approved proposals.

Reason: The impacts of the proposed development must be mitigated
before any development is carried out in order to ensure that
there will be no adverse impacts on the New Forest and Solent
Coast Nature Conservation Sites in accordance with Policy
DM3 of the Local Plan Part 2 and the New Forest District
Council Mitigation Strategy for European Sites Supplementary
Planning Document.

Before first occupation of the development hereby approved the applicant
must design and install a surface water sustainable system to cater for the
new impermeable areas (i.e. roofs) on the proposed development such that
no additional or increased rate of flow of surface water will drain to any
water body or adjacent land for storms up to 1 in 100 years including climate
change.

Reason: In order to ensure that the drainage arrangements are
appropriate and in accordance with Policy CS2 of the Local
Plan for the New Forest District outside the National Park
(Core Strategy) and the New Forest District Council and New
Forest National Park Authority Strategic Flood Risk
Assessment for Local Development Frameworks.

Page 56



Notes for inclusion on certificate:

1. In accordance with paragraphs 186 and 187 of the National Planning Policy
Framework and Article 35 of the Town and Country Planning (Development
Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015, New Forest District Council
takes a positive and proactive approach, seeking solutions to any problems
arising in the handling of development proposals so as to achieve,
whenever possible, a positive outcome by giving clear advice to applicants.

Revised plans have been submitted which has addressed the concerns
previously raised. The proposal is now supported by Officers.

2. This decision relates to amended / additional plans received by the Local
Planning Authority on the 8th May 2016.

3. In discharging condition No. 9 above the Applicant is advised that
appropriate mitigation is required before the development is commenced,
either by agreeing to fund the Council’s Mitigation Projects or otherwise
providing mitigation to an equivalent standard. Further information about
how this can be achieved can be found here
http://www.newforest.gov.uk/article/16478/

Further Information:

Major Team
Telephone: 023 8028 5345 (Option 1)

Page 57



7

mocmcEO 9102 mEmr aseqejep pue 1ybuAdoo umoid @

i \ /

7

0¢c9co00L

>®>5w

"9|eos
0} 8q J0U [|IM I ‘Joutajul 8y}
woJy ueld siy} Bunuud § "g'N

0G¢l:1 °feds

\ pistd Buikejd

¥6€CZS
YocL LGl
UOHIN MaN
peoy HeqoH
0)74

a¢ :ON way|

Page 5Q
3\1 \AYJ

910z i3snbny

P9JIWIWIon [01JU0D
juswdojaaaq Buiuueld

Vd.l €v0OS

}sinypui]

Jnog sanejddy

jIouNoY Jousi( 159104 MON
jonuo) Buipjing pue Buiuueld
Jebeuepy 9o1nI8g

woolis) pined

{ansuagaidison)
10040g poomawiy auy . *

NN AoB jsalopmau MMM
000G 8208 €20 I’BL

TIDNNOD 1Do1d¥lsia

}S910] MIN




Agenda Item 3f

Planning Development Control Committee 10 August 2016 Item 3 f

Application Number: 15/11276 Full Planning Permission

Site:

Land of 115 EASTFIELD LANE, RINGWOOD BH24 1UW

Development: Bungalow; access and parking alterations, demolition of

existing garage

Applicant: Mr Man
Target Date: 23/11/2015
Extension Date: 29/07/2015

REASON FOR COMMITTEE CONSIDERATION
Contrary to Policy

DEVELOPMENT PLAN AND OTHER CONSTRAINTS
Built up area

DEVELOPMENT PLAN, OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

Core Strateqy

Objectives

1. Special qualities, local distinctiveness and a high quality living environment
3. Housing

6. Towns, villages and built environment quality

Policies

Core Strateqy

CS2: Design quality

CS10: The spatial strategy

CS15: Affordable housing contribution requirements from developments
CS24: Transport considerations

CS25: Developers contributions

Local Plan Part 2 Sites and Development Management Development Plan
Document _

DM3: Mitigation of impacts on European nature conservation sites
RELEVANT LEGISLATION AND GOVERNMENT ADVICE
Section 38 Development Plan

Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004
National Planning Policy Framework

Page 59



10

11

12

13

RELEVANT SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE AND DOCUMENTS
SPD - Mitigation Strategy for European Sites

SPD - Parking Standards

SPD - Ringwood Local Distinctiveness
RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

None

PARISH / TOWN COUNCIL COMMENTS
Ringwood Town Council: Recommend permission.
COUNCILLOR COMMENTS

None

CONSULTEE COMMENTS

9.1 Hampshire County Council Highway Engineer: No highway objection
subject to conditions

9.2  Tree Officer: No objection

9.3  Land Drainage: No objection subject to condition
9.4  Ecologist: No objection subject to condition
REPRESENTATIONS RECEIVED

None

CRIME & DISORDER IMPLICATIONS

No relevant considerations

LOCAL FINANCE CONSIDERATIONS

If this development is granted permission and the dwellings built, the Council will

receive £1152 in each of the following six years from the dwellings' completion,
and as a result, a total of £6912 in government grant under the New Homes
Bonus will be received.

From the 6 April 2015 New Forest District Council began charging the
Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) on new residential developments.

Based on the information provided at the time of this report this development
has a CIL liability of £4,367.20.

WORKING WITH THE APPLICANT/AGENT
In accordance with paragraphs 186 and 187 of the National Planning Policy
Framework and Article 35 of the Town and Country Planning (Development

Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015, New Forest District Council
take a positive and proactive approach, seeking solutions to any problems

Page 60



arising in the handling of development proposals so as to achieve, whenever
possible, a positive outcome.

This is achieved by

Strongly encouraging those proposing development to use the very
thorough pre application advice service the Council provides.

Working together with applicants/agents to ensure planning applications
are registered as expeditiously as possible.

Advising agents/applicants early on in the processing of an application
(through the release of a Parish Briefing Note) as to the key issues
relevant to the application.

Updating applicants/agents of issues that arise in the processing of their
applications through the availability of comments received on the web or
by direct contact when relevant.

Working together with applicants/agents to closely manage the planning
application process to allow an opportunity to negotiate and accept
amendments on applications (particularly those that best support the
Core Strategy Objectives) when this can be done without compromising
government performance requirements.

Advising applicants/agents as soon as possible as to concerns that
cannot be dealt with during the processing of an application allowing for
a timely withdrawal and re-submission or decision based on the scheme
as originally submitted if this is what the applicant/agent requires.

When necessary discussing with applicants/agents proposed conditions
especially those that would restrict the use of commercial properties or
land when this can be done without compromising government
performance requirements.

In this case all the above apply and as the application was acceptable as
submitted no specific further actions were required.

14 ASSESSMENT

14.1

14.2

14.3

The site is roughly a square shaped open piece of land fronting onto
Eastfield Lane, which previously formed part of the rear garden area to
a detached bungalow at No 115 Eastfield Lane, however, the land has
now been severed and is currently enclosed by timber fencing. The
plot is flat and largely overgrown with grass and shrubs. The existing
property at No 115 is a detached bungalow and has its access and car
parking via Ash Grove. A public footpath runs along the eastern
boundary of the site and there is a grass verge adjacent to Eastfield
Lane with no pavements or footpaths along this side of the road.

The site lies on the eastern side of Eastfield Lane and is located
amongst a comprehensive residential development in Ash Grove
consisting of terraced housing and semi-detached housing laid out in a
uniform manner. Immediately to the south of the site there is a garage
courtyard serving the residential properties in Ash Grove.

On the opposite side of the road, there are predominately bungalows
and chalet style bungalows fronting onto Eastfield Lane. Plot sizes
along this part of the road vary throughout and some of the dwellings
are built close to the road frontage. Further along Eastfield Lane, the
character changes to predominately detached bungalows and chalet
style bungalows set in large plots with long deep rear garden areas
backing onto open fields.

Page 61




14.4

14.5

14.6

14.7

14.8

14.9

The proposal is to construct a detached bungalow on this site, which
would front onto Eastfield Lane. The existing detached garage fronting
onto Ash Grove would be demolished and this area would form the car
parking spaces for the existing dwelling at No 115 and the proposed
dwelling. Visually, the proposed dwelling would be a modest
conventional bungalow design with a hipped roof, centrally positioned
on the site.

In assessing the effect on the character and appearance of the area, it
is apparent that the site could physically accommodate a dwelling, with
sufficient garden space which would not appear cramped. A generous
front, side and rear garden would be provided and the space between
the proposed building and the existing dwelling at No 115 would be
sufficient. The existing dwelling at No 115 currently has a much smaller
garden area, but it is noted that the land has already been severed and
an objection on the size of the garden area to the existing dwelling
cannot be sustained.

The proposed dwelling would appropriately front onto Eastfield Lane
and would be sited in line with the existing dwelling at No 115. Visually
the proposed dwelling would be modest in scale and form which would
appear to be acceptable in this location. Overall it is considered that
the proposal would be in keeping with the character and appearance of
the area and would accord with local plan policies and the Ringwood
Local Distinctiveness Document.

With regard to residential amenity, the only neighbouring properties
which would be impacted on by the proposal are No 115 Eastfield Lane
and No 38 Ash Grove. The neighbouring property at No 115 has
windows on the side ( south elevation) which would be effected by the
proposed building. There is an existing fence which is sited against
these windows which already results in some loss of light and outlook
to those rooms. The proposed dwelling would be sited over 4 metres
away from that neighbouring property and the design of the dwelling
would incorporate a hipped roof sloping away from that neighbour.
Overall it is considered that the proposal would not have a detrimental
impact on the living conditions of that neighbouring property.

In terms of the neighbouring property at No 38 Ash Grove, this
property has its side elevation and garden area facing the application
site. On the side elevation of the property there is a single first floor
window which appears to serve a landing area. Given that the
proposed dwelling is a single storey building, and the distance from the
building to the boundary of that neighbour would be over 9 metres, the
proposal would not have a detrimental impact on the living conditions
of that neighbouring property.

Concerning public highway safety matters, the proposal is to enlarge
the existing car parking area fronting onto Ash Grove, with a total of 4
car parking spaces to serve the existing dwelling at No 115 and the
proposed dwelling. The level of car parking spaces shown to be
provided would broadly accord with the recommended car parking
standards as set out in the Councils adopted car parking
Supplementary Planning Document. The Highway Authority does not
raise any objections to the proposal.

Page 62



14.10

14.11

14.12

14.13

14.14

14.15

In terms of tree matters, situated adjacent to the sites rear, eastern
boundary are two mature Ash trees. The Tree Officer considers that
these tree are not suitable for protection by a Tree Preservation Order
and are not considered as a material constraint to the development of
the site.

In terms of ecological matters, an ecological report has been submitted
with the application and the Ecologist raises no objection subject to
development taken place in accordance with the recommendations in
the report.

On 19th May 2016 the Government issued planning guidance setting
out the specific circumstances in which contributions for affordable
housing and tariff style planning obligations (section 106 agreements)
should not be sought from small scale and self-build development.
This guidance has been reissued following the order of the Court of
Appeal dated 13th May 2016 (West Berkshire District Council and
Another v The Secretary of State for Communities and Local
Government). The planning guidance specifies the circumstances in
which contributions should not be sought as follows:

"Contributions should not be sought from developments of 10 units or
less and which have a maximum combined gross floorspace of no
more than 1,000 sqm; In designated rural areas, local planning
authorities may choose to apply a lower threshold of 5 units or less;

Affordable housing and tariff style contributions should not be sought
from any development consisting only of the construction of a
residential annex or extension to an existing house", This national
guidance is at odds with Policy CS15 of the Council's Core Strategy
which requires many small scale housing development including the
current application proposals to make affordable housing provision.

The presumption in favour of the development plan remains, in that the
decision should be taken in accordance with the plan unless material
considerations indicate otherwise. The new guidance is a material
consideration which post-dates the adoption of the Local Plan. It is for
the Council to decide which should prevail in the determination of a
planning application. However, the Secretary of State, through his
Inspectors, can be anticipated to give greater weight to the
Government's national guidance unless there are reasons to make an
exception.

While the need for affordable housing in this District is pressing, this in
itself is unlikely to be considered by the Secretary of State as sufficient
reason for the Council to apply its own development plan policy rather
than applying national policy. Therefore it is recommended that no
affordable housing or tariff style contributions are sought from this
development, in accordance with national Planning Practice Guidance,
contrary to the provisions of Policy CS15 of the Core Strategy.

In accordance with the Habitat Regulations 2010 an assessment has
been carried out of the likely significant effects associated with the
recreational impacts of the residential development provided for in the
Local Plan on both the New Forest and the Solent European Nature
Conservation Sites. It has been concluded that likely significant
adverse effects cannot be ruled out without appropriate mitigation

Page 63



projects being secured. In the event that planning permission is
granted for the proposed development, a condition is recommended
that would prevent the development from proceeding until the applicant
has secured appropriate mitigation, either by agreeing to fund the
Council's Mitigation Projects or otherwise providing mitigation to an
equivalent standard.

14.16  In conclusion, it is considered that the site is of sufficient size to
accommodate the proposed dwelling which has been designed as a
modest bungalow which would be in keeping with the mixed character
of the area and would provide an acceptable relationship to the host
dwelling at No 115.

14.17  In coming to this recommendation, consideration has been given to the
rights set out in Article 8 (Right to respect for private and family life)
and Article 1 of the First Protocol (Right to peaceful enjoyment of
possessions) of the European Convention on Human Rights. Whilst it
is recognised that there may be an interference with these rights and
the rights of other third parties, such interference has to be balanced
with the like rights of the applicant to develop the land in the way
proposed. In this case it is considered that the protection of the rights
and freedoms of the applicant outweigh any possible interference that
may result to any third party.

Section 106 Contributions Summary Table

Proposal:

Type of Contribution NFDC Policy Developer Proposed | Difference
Requirement Provision

No. of Affordable
dwellings

Habitats Mitigation
Financial Contribution

CIL Summary Table

Description of GIA New GIA Existing |GIA Net Increase | CIL Liability
Class
Dwelling houses  154.59 0 54.59 £4,367.20

15. RECOMMENDATION

Grant Subject to Conditions

Proposed Conditions:

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of
three years from the date of this permission.

Page 64



Reason: To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning
Act 1990 as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

The development permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the
following approved plans 4275/PL/100 Rev A, 4275/PL/101, 4275/PL/102:

Reason:  To ensure satisfactory provision of the development.

Before development commences, the proposed slab levels in relationship to
the existing ground levels set to an agreed datum shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Development shall only
take place in accordance with those details which have been approved.

Reason: To ensure that the development takes place in an appropriate
way in accordance with policy CS2 of the Local Plan for the
New Forest District outside the National Park (Core Strategy).

Before development commences, samples or exact details of the facing and
roofing materials to be used shall be submitted to and approved in writing by
the Local Planning Authority. The development shall only be implemented
in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: To ensure an acceptable appearance of the building in
accordance with policy CS2 of the Core Strategy for the New
Forest District outside the National Park.

Before development commences a scheme of landscaping of the site shalll
be submitted for approval in writing by the Local Planning Authority. This
scheme shall include :

(a) the existing trees and shrubs which have been agreed to be
retained;

(b) a specification for new planting (species, size, spacing and location);

(c) areas for hard surfacing and the materials to be used:;

(d) other means of enclosure and boundary treatments;

(e) a method and programme for its implementation and the means to
provide for its future maintenance.

No development shall take place unless these details have been approved
and then only in accordance with those details.

Reason: To ensure that the development takes place in an appropriate
way and to prevent inappropriate car parking to comply with
Policy CS2 of the Local Plan for the New Forest District outside
the National Park (Core Strategy).

No development shall be carried out until proposals for the mitigation of the
impact of the development on the New Forest and Solent Coast European
Nature Conservation Sites have been submitted to and approved in writing
by the local planning authority, and the local planning authority has
confirmed in writing that the provision of the proposed mitigation has been
secured. Such proposals must:

Page 65



(a) Provide for mitigation in accordance with the New Forest District
Council Mitigation Strategy for European Sites SPD, adopted in June
2014 (or any amendment to or replacement for this document in
force at the time), or for mitigation to at least an equivalent effect;

(b) Provide details of the manner in which the proposed mitigation is to
be secured. Details to be submitted shall include arrangements for
the ongoing maintenance and monitoring of any Suitable Alternative
Natural Green Spaces which form part of the proposed mitigation
measures together with arrangements for permanent public access
thereto.

(c) The development shall be carried out in accordance with and subject
to the approved proposals.

Reason: The impacts of the proposed development must be mitigated
before any development is carried out in order to ensure that
there will be no adverse impacts on the New Forest and Solent
Coast Nature Conservation Sites in accordance with Policy
DM3 of the Local Plan Part 2 and the New Forest District
Council Mitigation Strategy for European Sites Supplementary
Planning Document.

Before first occupation of the development hereby approved the applicant
must design and install a surface water sustainable system to cater for the
new impermeable areas (i.e. roofs) on the proposed development such that
no additional or increased rate of flow of surface water will drain to any
water body or adjacent land for storms up to 1 in 100 years including climate
change.

Reason: In order to ensure that the drainage arrangements are
appropriate and in accordance with Policy CS2 of the Local
Plan for the New Forest District outside the National Park
(Core Strategy) and the New Forest District Council and New
Forest National Park Authority Strategic Flood Risk
Assessment for Local Development Frameworks.

The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until the spaces
shown on plan 4275/PL/100 Rev A for the parking of motor vehicles have
been provided. The spaces shown on plan 4275/PL/100 Rev A for the
parking or motor vehicles shall be retained and kept available for the
parking of motor vehicles for the existing dwelling at No 115 Eastfield Lane
and the dwelling hereby approved at all times.

Reason: To ensure adequate parking provision is made in the interest of
highway safety and in accordance with Policy CS2 and CS24
of the Local Plan for the New Forest outside of the National
Park (Core Strategy).

The works hereby approved shall be undertaken in strict accordance with
the Ecological Survey methodology, details and mitigation and enhancement
measures set out by Lindsay Carrington Ecological Services LTD dated
November 2015 unless otherwise first agreed in writing with the Local
Planning Authority.

Page 66




Reason: To safeguard protected species in accordance with Policy
CS3 of the Local Plan for the New Forest District outside of
the National Park (Core Strategy) and Policy DM2 of the
Local Plan for the New Forest District outside the National
Park (Part 2 : Sites and Development Management).

10. Before use of the development is commenced the existing second
pedestrian access (most southernly)from the site to Eastfield Lane shall be
permanently stopped up and effectively closed with the verge reinstated,
and until the access, including the footway and/or verge crossing shall be
constructed in accordance with details which have been submitted to and
approved by the Planning Authority. No development shall start on site shall
be constructed in accordance with the approved plans.

Reason: In the interest of highway safety and in accordance with Policy
CS2 and CS24 of the Local Plan for the New Forest District
outside of the National Park (Core Strategy).

Notes for inclusion on certificate:

1. In accordance with paragraphs 186 and 187 of the National Planning Policy
Framework and Article 35 of the Town and Country Planning (Development
Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015, New Forest District Council
takes a positive and proactive approach, seeking solutions to any problems
arising in the handling of development proposals so as to achieve,
whenever possible, a positive outcome by giving clear advice to applicants.

In this case all the above apply and as the application was acceptable as
submitted no specific further actions were required.

2. In discharging condition No 6 above the Applicant is advised that
appropriate mitigation is required before the development is commenced,
either by agreeing to fund the Council’s Mitigation Projects or otherwise
providing mitigation to an equivalent standard. Further information about
how this can be achieved can be found here
http://www.newforest.gov.uk/article/16478/

3, This decision relates to amended / additional plans received by the Local
Planning Authority on the 25th November 2015.

4, The applicant should be aware of the requirement to apply to the highway
authority for the appropriate licence in respect of the access and verge
reinstatement works within the highway.

Further Information:

Major Team
Telephone: 023 8028 5345 (Option 1)

Page 67



"9|eos
0} 89 JoU ||IM }I Joulsiul 8y}
woly ued siy} Buguud §| "g'N

0GCl-1 ®[eds

S09LNs
9/cLi/gl
poombBury
sueT] pjleies
Gl jo pueq

J€ -ON w9y

910z }snbny

99 IO [043U0D)
juswdojanaqg Buluueld

Vd.l €¥0S

1SinypuiT

HnoJ saneddy

j1ouncy jouysi 19404 MaN
tfonuo) Buipjing pue Buiuueld
1sBeuepy aoini8g

wooi9 pireq

3N AoB }salopmau mmm
0006 8¢08 €20 ‘IBL

FTIDNNOD 131¥1sid

1S910,] MIN]

- 022920001 Asn

7

—

INg 8oUBUPIO 910Z S1ybu aseqeiep pue 1ybBLAdos umoiD ©

T \ A \

N

EouyHodo 3L

il

a0

e0g




Agenda Iltem 3¢

Planning Development Control Committee 10 August 2016 ltem3g

Application Number: 15/11590 Full Planning Permission

Site:

Land of 46 & 48 HAMMONDS GREEN, TOTTON SO40 3HT

Development: Bungalow; parking; access off Brackley Way

Applicant: Ray Hall Building Services Ltd
Target Date: 24/12/2015
Extension Date: 11/08/2015

REASON FOR COMMITTEE CONSIDERATION
Contrary to Policy

DEVELOPMENT PLAN AND OTHER CONSTRAINTS
Built up area

DEVELOPMENT PLAN, OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

Core Strateqy

Objectives

1. Special qualities, local distinctiveness and a high quality living environment
3. Housing
6. Towns, villages and built environment quality

Policies

Core Strategy

CS2: Design quality

CS10: The spatial strategy

CS15: Affordable housing contribution requirements from developments
CS24: Transport considerations

CS25: Developers contributions

Local Plan Part 2 Sites and Development Management Development Plan
Document _

DM3: Mitigation of impacts on European nature conservation sites

RELEVANT LEGISLATION AND GOVERNMENT ADVICE
Section 38 Development Plan

Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004

National Planning Policy Framework

RELEVANT SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE AND DOCUMENTS

SPD - Mitigation Strategy for European Sites
SPD - Parking Standards

Page 69



10

11

12

13

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

6.1 Two houses, access, demolition of existing (99412) Refused on the 4th
January 2013. Appeal allowed.

PARISH / TOWN COUNCIL COMMENTS

Totton and Eling Town Council: Recommended permission but would accept the
decision reached by the District Council's Officers under their delegated powers.
Although the plot is rather small, the proposed detached bungalow sits well
within its surroundings and is in keeping with the street scene. While the low
profile of the roof allows neighbours in close proximity to be largely unaffected

COUNCILLOR COMMENTS
None
CONSULTEE COMMENTS

9.1 Hampshire County Council Highway Engineer: no highway objection
subject to conditions

9.2 Land Drainage: No objection subject to condition
REPRESENTATIONS RECEIVED

10.1 1 letter from neighbouring property concerned with the numerous
incidents of obstruction and inconvenience by the builders on the recent
development at the site. There is no objection to a bungalow of the
proposed size and design on the condition that the gravel path which as
I've previously said is the sole access to Russell Place is not used to
access the site or for deliveries of materials to the site.

CRIME & DISORDER IMPLICATIONS

No relevant considerations

LOCAL FINANCE CONSIDERATIONS

If this development is granted permission and the dwellings built, the Council will
receive £1152 in each of the following six years from the dwellings' completion,
and as a result, a total of £6912 in government grant under the New Homes

Bonus will be received.

From the 6 April 2015 New Forest District Council began charging the
Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) on new residential developments.

Based on the information provided at the time of this report this development
has a CIL liability of £7,203.20.

Tables setting out all contributions are at the end of this report.
WORKING WITH THE APPLICANT/AGENT
In accordance with paragraphs 186 and 187 of the National Planning Policy

Framework and Article 35 of the Town and Country Planning (Development
Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015, New Forest District Council

Page 70



14

take a positive and proactive approach, seeking solutions to any problems
arising in the handling of development proposals so as to achieve, whenever
possible, a positive outcome.

This is achieved by

Strongly encouraging those proposing development to use the very
thorough pre application advice service the Council provides.

Working together with applicants/agents to ensure planning applications
are registered as expeditiously as possible.

Advising agents/applicants early on in the processing of an application
(through the release of a Parish Briefing Note) as to the key issues
relevant to the application.

Updating applicants/agents of issues that arise in the processing of their
applications through the availability of comments received on the web or
by direct contact when relevant.

Working together with applicants/agents to closely manage the planning
application process to allow an opportunity to negotiate and accept
amendments on applications (particularly those that best support the
Core Strategy Objectives) when this can be done without compromising
government performance requirements.

Advising applicants/agents as soon as possible as to concerns that
cannot be dealt with during the processing of an application allowing for
a timely withdrawal and re-submission or decision based on the scheme
as originally submitted if this is what the applicant/agent requires.

When necessary discussing with applicants/agents proposed conditions
especially those that would restrict the use of commercial properties or

land when this can be done without compromising government

performance requirements.

In this case all the above apply and as the application was acceptable as
submitted no specific further actions were required.

ASSESSMENT

14.1

14.2

14.3

The proposal relates to a corner plot on Hammond's Green within
Totton's Built-up Area and is characterised by residential development
of single and two-storey construction. The site forms the rear garden
of a detached bungalow and the rear garden areas of a pair of
semi-detached houses recently constructed at 48 Hammonds Green.
The boundary is defined by a high close boarded timber fence to the
sides and front.

The proposal is for is a detached bungalow with a hipped roof design,
reflecting that of the existing dwelling on the site. Vehicular access
and a parking space would be provided to the front and a small garden
area to the rear. The proposed building would adhere to the
established building line.

Visually the proposed bungalow would have a fully hipped roof which
would reflect the types of properties along Brackley Way and would
appear in keeping with the character of the area. There would be
reasonable space and gaps between the side elevation and No 46 and
the recently constructed pair of houses so as to not to appear
cramped. The front of the site would have two car parking spaces
which would appear rather harsh but there is space for a front grassed

Page 71



14.4

14.5

14.6

14.7

14.8

lawn and some soft landscaping, which would help soften the impact
of the development from the road. It is also noted that there is an
unattractive timber fence running adjacent to the road, which does not
contribute to the character and the removal of the section of fencing
would be a slight improvement.

The existing dwelling at No 46 and the recently built dwellings at No 48
would have reasonable garden sizes comparable to the surrounding
properties. The proposed dwelling would have a reasonable sized rear
garden area and the plot size is similar to the other dwellings in
Brackley Way. Overall it is considered that there is sufficient space to
acceptably accommodate a bungalow and it would not appear out of
character with the area.

With regard to residential amenity the proposed dwelling would be
single storey and its ground floor windows would be screened by
existing and proposed boundary fencing. The bulk of the building
would be sited close to No.1 which has a bathroom and kitchen on its
side elevation facing the application site. There would be a gap of
around 5 metres between the proposed side elevation and No 1 and
given the design of the bungalow with its low profile pitched roof, this
would help reduce the impact on this neighbouring property.
Accordingly it is not considered that the proposal would unacceptably
compromise the available light or outlook of that neighbour. The
neighbouring properties to the rear at 1 and 2 Russell Place are
located a sufficient distance away not to be unacceptably impacted

~ upon by the proposed bungalow.

Two car parking spaces would be provided for the proposed dwelling,
which would broadly accord with, the recommended car parking
standards set out in the Councils Supplementary Planning Document.
The existing dwelling at No 46 would retain car parking to the front of
the site. The Highway Authority does not raise any objections to the
proposal.

Concerns have been expressed that construction at the recent
development at No 48 Hammonds Green, caused numerous incidents
of obstruction and inconvenience by the builders and delivery lorries
on the only access to the properties in Russell Place. Concerns
expressed state that the pathway is rutted and dirty with mud from the
site and the sole access to Russell Place should not be used to access
the site or for deliveries of materials to the site. In response, while it is
appreciated that the construction of approved development can cause
disruption, any damage caused by development on highway land such
as road verges or footways (in the highway authorities ownership)
should be dealt with by the developer. If this occurs on land not in the
Highway Authorities ownership, this is a civil matter.

This planning application has only been referred to this Committee
because of the following changes to Central Government Policy in
respect of affordable housing.

On 19th May 2016 the Government issued planning guidance setting
out the specific circumstances in which contributions for affordable
housing and tariff style planning obligations (section 106 agreements)
should not be sought from small scale and self-build development.
This guidance has been reissued following the order of the Court of

Page 72



14.9

14.10

14.11

14.12

14.13

Appeal dated 13th May 2016 (West Berkshire District Council and
Another v The Secretary of State for Communities and Local
Government). The planning guidance specifies the circumstances in
which contributions should not be sought as follows:

"Contributions should not be sought from developments of 10 units or
less and which have a maximum combined gross floorspace of no
more than 1,000 sqm;

In designated rural areas, local planning authorities may choose to
apply a lower threshold of 5 units or less...;

Affordable housing and tariff style contributions should not be sought
from any development consisting only of the construction of a
residential annex or extension to an existing house", This national
guidance is at odds with Policy CS15 of the Council's Core Strategy
which requires many small scale housing developments including the
current application proposal to make affordable housing provision

The presumption in favour of the development plan remains, in that
the decision should be taken in accordance with the plan unless
material considerations indicate otherwise. The new guidance is a
material consideration which post-dates the adoption of the Local Plan.
It is for the Council to decide which should prevail in the determination
of a planning application. However, the Secretary of State, through his
Inspectors can be anticipated to give greater weight to the
Government's national guidance unless there are reasons to make an
exception.

While the need for affordable housing in this District is pressing, this in
itself is unlikely to be considered by the Secretary of State as sufficient
reason for the Council to apply its own development plan policy rather
than applying national policy. Therefore it is recommended that no
affordable housing or tariff style contributions are sought from this
development, in accordance with national Planning Practice
Guidance, contrary to the provisions of Policy CS15 of the Core
Strategy.

In accordance with the Habitat Regulations 2010 an assessment has
been carried out of the likely significant effects associated with the
recreational impacts of the residential development provided for in the
Local Plan on both the New Forest and the Solent European Nature
Conservation Sites. It has been concluded that likely significant
adverse effects cannot be ruled out without appropriate mitigation
projects being secured. In the event that planning permission is
granted for the proposed development, a condition is recommended
that would prevent the development from proceeding until the
applicant has secured appropriate mitigation, either by agreeing to
fund the Council's Mitigation Projects or otherwise providing mitigation
to an equivalent standard.

In conclusion, the proposed development would be compatible with the
character and appearance of the area and would not have any
adverse impact on the living conditions of the adjoining neighbouring
properties. The Highway Authority does not raise any objections to the
proposal.

Page 73



14.14

In coming to this recommendation, consideration has been given to
the rights set out in Article 8 (Right to respect for private and family
life) and Article 1 of the First Protocol (Right to peaceful enjoyment of
possessions) of the European Convention on Human Rights. Whilst it
is recognised that there may be an interference with these rights and
the rights of other third parties, such interference has to be balanced
with the like rights of the applicant to develop the land in the way
proposed. In this case it is considered that the protection of the rights
and freedoms of the applicant outweigh any possible interference that
may result to any third party.

Section 106 Contributions Summary Table

Habitats Mitigation £4050

Financial Contribution

CIL Summary Table

Class

Description of GIA New GIA Existing |GIA Net Increase |CIL Liability

Dwelling houses 106 15.96 90.04 £7,203.20

15. RECOMMENDATION

Grant Subject to Conditions

Proposed Conditions:

1.

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of
three years from the date of this permission.

Reason: To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning
Act 1990 as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

The development permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the
following approved plans:1/RH/15 Rev A.

Reason: To ensure satisfactory provision of the development.

Before development commences, samples or exact details of the facing and
roofing materials to be used shall be submitted to and approved in writing by
the Local Planning Authority. The development shall only be implemented
in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: To ensure an acceptable appearance of the building in

accordance with policy CS2 of the Core Strategy for the New
Forest District outside the National Park.

Page 74




Before development commences, the proposed slab levels in relationship to
the existing ground levels set to an agreed datum shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Development shall only
take place in accordance with those details which have been approved.

Reason: To ensure that the development takes place in an appropriate
way in accordance with policy CS2 of the Local Plan for the
New Forest District outside the National Park (Core Strategy).

Before first occupation of the development hereby approved the applicant
must design and install a surface water sustainable system to cater for the
new impermeable areas (i.e. roofs) on the proposed development such that
no additional or increased rate of flow of surface water will drain to any
water body or adjacent land for storms up to 1 in 100 years including climate
change.

Reason: In order to ensure that the drainage arrangements are
appropriate and in accordance with Policy CS2 of the Local
Plan for the New Forest District outside the National Park
(Core Strategy) and the New Forest District Council and New
Forest National Park Authority Strategic Flood Risk
Assessment for Local Development Frameworks.

The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until the spaces
shown on plan 1/RH/15 Rev A for the parking of motor vehicles have been
provided. The spaces shown on plan1/RH/15 Rev A for the parking or motor
vehicles shall be retained and kept available for the parking of motor
vehicles for the dwellings hereby approved at all times.

Reason: To ensure adequate parking provision is made in the interest of
highway safety and in accordance with Policy CS2 and CS24
of the Local Plan for the New Forest outside of the National
Park (Core Strategy).

Before development commences a scheme of landscaping of the site shall
be submitted for approval in writing by the Local Planning Authority. This
scheme shall include :

(a) the existing trees and shrubs which have been agreed to be
retained,;

(b) a specification for new planting (species, size, spacing and location);

(c) areas for hard surfacing and the materials to be used:

(d) other means of enclosure to include boundary treatments;

(e) a method and programme for its implementation and the means to
provide for its future maintenance.

No development shall take place unless these details have been approved
and then only in accordance with those details.

Reason: To ensure that the development takes place in an appropriate
way and to prevent inappropriate car parking to comply with
Policy CS2 of the Local Plan for the New Forest District outside
the National Park (Core Strategy).

Page 75



8. No development shall be carried out until proposals for the mitigation of the
impact of the development on the New Forest and Solent Coast European
Nature Conservation Sites have been submitted to and approved in writing
by the local planning authority, and the local planning authority has
confirmed in writing that the provision of the proposed mitigation has been
secured. Such proposals must:

(a) Provide for mitigation in accordance with the New Forest District
Council Mitigation Strategy for European Sites SPD, adopted in June
2014 (or any amendment to or replacement for this document in
force at the time), or for mitigation to at least an equivalent effect;

(b) Provide details of the manner in which the proposed mitigation is to
be secured. Details to be submitted shall include arrangements for
the ongoing maintenance and monitoring of any Suitable Alternative
Natural Green Spaces which form part of the proposed mitigation
measures together with arrangements for permanent public access
thereto.

(c) The development shall be carried out in accordance with and subject
to the approved proposals.

Reason: The impacts of the proposed development must be mitigated
before any development is carried out in order to ensure that
there will be no adverse impacts on the New Forest and Solent
Coast Nature Conservation Sites in accordance with Policy
DM3 of the Local Plan Part 2 and the New Forest District
Council Mitigation Strategy for European Sites Supplementary
Planning Document.

Notes for inclusion on certificate:

1. In discharging condition No 8 above the Applicant is advised that
appropriate mitigation is required before the development is commenced,
either by agreeing to fund the Council’s Mitigation Projects or otherwise
providing mitigation to an equivalent standard. Further information about
how this can be achieved can be found here
http://www.newforest.gov.uk/article/16478/

2. In accordance with paragraphs 186 and 187 of the National Planning Policy
Framework and Article 35 of the Town and Country Planning (Development
Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015, New Forest District Council
takes a positive and proactive approach, seeking solutions to any problems
arising in the handling of development proposals so as to achieve,
whenever possible, a positive outcome by giving clear advice to applicants.

In this case all the above apply and as the application was acceptable as
submitted no specific further actions were required.

3. This decision relates to amended plans received by the Local Planning
Authority on 16th December 2015.

Further Information:

Major Team
Telephone: 023 8028 5345 (Option 1)

Page 76



0} 89 JoU [[IM } ‘JouIsiul 8y}
wouj ueld siy; Bupuud §j "g'N

0Gcl:-1 ofeds

eLrens

06GLL/SL

uoyoL

usalo) spuoliweH
8% *® 9% Jo pue]

Bg :oN w9y

910z }snbny

SolIWILIOY [O13U0D
juswdojaaaqg Buluueld

Vd. €¥0S

1sinypuiy

1no) saie|ddy

jlounoy jousiqg 31s9Jo4 MeN
{fonuo) Buipjing pue Buiuue|d
JsBeuepy 9oin18g

wooi) pineq

3N AoB-jsalomeummm
0006 8¢08 €20 ‘1Bl

TIDNNOD 1D21d1s1a

1S910,] MAN]

&

gjeos | *

022920001 Aaning asueuplO 910z siubu asegelep pue JybuAdos umold ©




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 3h

Planning Development Control Committee 10 August 2016 Item 3 h

Application Number: 15/11765 Variation / Removal of Condition

Site:

POLICE STATION, 68-74 OLD MILTON ROAD,
NEW MILTON BH25 6DX

Development: Variation of condition 2 of Planning Permission 14/11441 to allow

amended plan no's for variation to plot 3

Applicant: Perbury (Developments) Ltd
Target Date: 12/02/2016
Extension Date: 11/08/2016

REASON FOR COMMITTEE CONSIDERATION
Contrary to Policy and previous Committee consideration.
DEVELOPMENT PLAN AND OTHER CONSTRAINTS

Built up area
Town Centre

DEVELOPMENT PLAN, OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

Core Strategy

Objectives

1. Special qualities, local distinctiveness and a high quality living environment
3. Housing
6. Towns, villages and built environment quality

Policies

CS2: Design quality

CS10: The spatial strategy

CS15: Affordable housing contribution requirements from developments
CS24: Transport considerations

CS25: Developers contributions

Local Plan Part 2 Sites and Development Management Development Plan
Document

DM3: Mitigation of impacts on European nature conservation sites
RELEVANT LEGISLATION AND GOVERNMENT ADVICE
Section 38 Development Plan

Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004
National Planning Policy Framework

Page 79



10

11

12

13

RELEVANT SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE AND DOCUMENTS
SPD - Housing Design, Density and Character
SPD - Parking Standards

SPD - Mitigation Strategy for European Sites
SPD - New Milton Local Distinctiveness

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY
6.1 Development of 7 dwellings comprised of 1 two storey block of 4 flats, 1

two storey block of 2 flats and 1 detached dwelling, parking and
landscaping (11441) Granted with conditions on the 14th October 2015
PARISH / TOWN COUNCIL COMMENTS
New Milton Town Council: acceptable
COUNCILLOR COMMENTS
None
CONSULTEE COMMENTS
None
REPRESENTATIONS RECEIVED
None
CRIME & DISORDER IMPLICATIONS
No relevant considerations
LOCAL FINANCE CONSIDERATIONS
If this development is granted permission and the dwellings built, the Council will
receive £8064 in each of the following six years from the dwellings' completion,
and as a result, a total of £48384 in government grant under the New Homes

Bonus will be received.

From the 6 April 2015 New Forest District Council began charging the
Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) on new residential developments.

Based on the information provided at the time of this report this development
has a CIL liability of £7,670.55.

Tables setting out all contributions are at the end of this report.
WORKING WITH THE APPLICANT/AGENT

In accordance with paragraphs 186 and 187 of the National Planning Policy
Framework and Article 35 of the Town and Country Planning (Development
Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015, New Forest District Council
take a positive and proactive approach, seeking solutions to any problems
arising in the handling of development proposals so as to achieve, whenever
possible, a positive outcome.

Page 80




14

This is achieved by

Strongly encouraging those proposing development to use the very
thorough pre application advice service the Council provides.

Working together with applicants/agents to ensure planning applications
are registered as expeditiously as possible.

Advising agents/applicants early on in the processing of an application
(through the release of a Parish Briefing Note) as to the key issues
relevant to the application.

Updating applicants/agents of issues that arise in the processing of their
applications through the availability of comments received on the web or
by direct contact when relevant.

Working together with applicants/agents to closely manage the planning
application process to allow an opportunity to negotiate and accept
amendments on applications (particularly those that best support the
Core Strategy Objectives) when this can be done without compromising
government performance requirements.

Advising applicants/agents as soon as possible as to concerns that
cannot be dealt with during the processing of an application allowing for
a timely withdrawal and re-submission or decision based on the scheme
as originally submitted if this is what the applicant/agent requires.

When necessary discussing with applicants/agents proposed conditions
especially those that would restrict the use of commercial properties or
land when this can be done without compromising government
performance requirements.

In this case all the above apply and as the application was acceptable as
submitted no specific further actions were required.

ASSESSMENT

14.1

14.2

14.3

Planning permission has been granted for the redevelopment of this
site for a total of 7 dwellings under planning reference 15/11441. The
only work that has taken place on the site is the clearance of the
buildings and the site is now prepared for development. There is no
other evidence to indicate that planning permission 15/11441 has been
implemented.

This application seeks consent to vary condition 2 of planning
permission 15/11441 to allow a slight change to the size and design of
the dwelling on plot 3. The changes entail the width of the rear
projection being increased from 4.5 metres to 5.4 metres at ground
floor level with a cat slide roof. The first floor window on the south west
elevation would be relocated and fitted with obscure glass. No other
changes are proposed.

Firstly in assessing applications to vary planning conditions, in effect, if
approved, it would result in the issue of a new planning permission.
This means that all planning issues have to be considered in light of
policy, whether there has been any changes in circumstances at the
site and any legal obligations. In this case, a Section 106 Agreement
previously secured affordable housing and habitat mitigation
contributions. All conditions previously imposed need to be
re-considered and applied where necessary.

Page 81



14.4

14.5

14.6

14.7

14.8

In assessing the proposed changes to plot 3, it is considered that the
amendments to the size of the dwelling are very minor and would not
have any adverse impact on the character of the area and living
conditions of the adjoining neighbouring properties.

In accordance with the Habitat Regulations 2010 an assessment has
been carried out of the likely significant effects associated with the
recreational impacts of the residential development provided for in the
Local Plan on both the New Forest and the Solent European Nature
Conservation Sites. It has been concluded that likely significant
adverse effects cannot be ruled out without appropriate mitigation
projects being secured. In the event that planning permission is
granted for the proposed development, a condition is recommended
that would prevent the development from proceeding until the applicant
has secured appropriate mitigation, either by agreeing to fund the
Council's Mitigation Projects or otherwise providing mitigation to an
equivalent standard.

On 19th May 2016 the Government issued planning guidance setting
out the specific circumstances in which contributions for affordable
housing and tariff style planning obligations (section 106 agreements)
should not be sought from small scale and self-build development.
This guidance has been reissued following the order of the Court of
Appeal dated 13th May 2016 (West Berkshire District Council and
Another v The Secretary of State for Communities and Local
Government). The planning guidance specifies the circumstances in
which contributions should not be sought as follows:

"Contributions should not be sought from developments of 10 units or
less and which have a maximum combined gross floorspace of no
more than 1,000 sqm; In designated rural areas, local planning
authorities may choose to apply a lower threshold of 5 units or less;

Affordable housing and tariff style contributions should not be sought
from any development consisting only of the construction of a
residential annex or extension to an existing house", This national
guidance is at odds with Policy CS15 of the Council's Core Strategy
which requires many small scale housing developments including the
current application proposal to make affordable housing provision

The presumption in favour of the development plan remains, in that the
decision should be taken in accordance with the plan unless material
considerations indicate otherwise. The new guidance is a material
consideration which post-dates the adoption of the Local Plan. It is for
the Council to decide which should prevail in the determination of a
planning application. However, the Secretary of State, through his
Inspectors can be anticipated to give greater weight to the
Government's national guidance unless there are reasons to make an
exception.

Whilst the need for affordable housing in this District is pressing, this in
itself is unlikely to be considered by the Secretary of State as sufficient
reason for the Council to apply its own development plan policy rather
than applying national policy. Therefore it is recommended that no
affordable housing or tariff style contributions are sought from this
development, in accordance with national Planning Practice
Guidance, contrary to the provisions of Policy CS15 of the Core
Strategy. '

Page 82



14.9

14.10

In conclusion, the current application to vary condition 2 in relation to
the design and size of plot 3 is acceptable and would have no adverse
impact on the character of the area and living conditions of the
adjoining neighbouring properties. This application would essentially
result in a new permission for the redevelopment of the site.

In coming to this recommendation, consideration has been given to the
rights set out in Article 8 (Right to respect for private and family life)
and Article 1 of the First Protocol (Right to peaceful enjoyment of
possessions) of the European Convention on Human Rights. Whilst it
is recognised that there may be an interference with these rights and
the rights of other third parties, such interference has to be balanced
with the like rights of the applicant to develop the land in the way
proposed. In this case it is considered that the protection of the rights
and freedoms of the applicant outweigh any possible interference that
may result to any third party.

Section 106 Contributions Summary Table

Proposal:
Type of Contribution | NFDC Policy Developer Proposed | Difference
Requirement Provision
Habitats Mitigation
Financial Contribution
CIL Summary Table
Description of GIA New GIA Existing |GIA Net CIL Liability
Class Increase
Dwelling houses 91.99 0 91.99 £7,670.55 *

15. RECOMMENDATION

GRANT the VARIATION of CONDITION

Proposed Conditions:

1.

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of
three years from the date of this permission.

Reason: To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning

Act 1990 as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

The development permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the
following approved plans: 15/1870/100B. 13/1870/102C,13/1870/105 A,
13/1870/104 A, 13/1870/101 B

Reason:  To ensure satisfactory provision of the development.

Page 83



The development hereby approved shall only be constructed from the
following materials unless otherwise agreed by the Local Planning Authority:

Plots 1 and 2
Existing materials reused and supplemented

Plots 3, 4 and 6-9 _

Facing Brick: Ibstock Thakenham red multi

Detail: Warnham Teracotta Stock

Roofing: Sandtoft Plain Tiles, Dark Heather Smooth with matching hips and
ridges

Windows: White UPVC Cottage style as detailed on Drawing No
13/1870/101 B

RW Goods: UPVC Black

Rear Dormer to plos 4 and 5t: Lead roof

Bay windows to plots 6 and 7 only: K Render buttermilk or similar

Balcony: Powder coated steel frame and hand rail. Glass guarding. Framing
colour dark grey

Cycle store

Steel frame and mesh with sheet roof.

Reason: To ensure an acceptable appearance of the building in
accordance with policy CS2 of the Core Strategy for the New
Forest District outside the National Park.

The slab levels in relationship to the existing ground levels set to an agreed
datum shall only take place in accordance with those details shown on
Drawing No 15/1870/100B unless otherwise agreed by the Local Planning
Authority.

Reason: To ensure that the development takes place in an appropriate
way in accordance with policy CS2 of the Local Plan for the
New Forest District outside the National Park (Core Strategy).

The first floor windows on the side [ north east ] elevation of the approved
building identified as unit 9 shall be obscurely glazed and other than fan light
opening fixed shut at all times.

Reason:  To safeguard the privacy of the adjoining neighbouring
properties in accordance with policy CS2 of the Core Strategy
for the New Forest District outside the National Park.

No other first floor windows other than those hereby approved shall be
inserted into the rear elevation (north west) of the building identified as Unit
3 unless express planning permission has first been granted.

Reason: To safeguard the privacy of the adjoining neighbouring

properties in accordance with policy CS2 of the Core Strategy
for the New Forest District outside the National Park.

Page 84



10.

11.

The first floor window serving the bedroom/study on the rear (north west)
elevation of the building identified as unit 3 shall at all times have a cill
height of no lower than 1.7m above the floor of the room in which the
window is installed.

Reason: To safeguard the privacy of the adjoining neighbouring
properties in accordance with policy CS2 of the Core Strategy
for the New Forest District outside the National Park.

The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until the spaces
shown on plan 15/1870/100B for the parking of motor vehicles and cycles
have been provided. The spaces shown on plan 15/1870/100B for the
parking or motor vehicles and cycles shall be retained and kept available for
the parking of motor vehicles and cycles for the dwellings hereby approved
at all times.

Reason: To ensure adequate parking provision is made in the interest of
highway safety and in accordance with Policy CS2 and CS24
of the Local Plan for the New Forest outside of the National
Park (Core Strategy).

The landscaping scheme (hard and soft) shall be implemented in
accordance with the submitted TGD Landscaping drawing 1515-0101;
Landscape Maintenance plan 1515-401; 15/1870/101A

by the end of the first planting and seeding seasons following the
completion of development. Any trees or plants which within a period of 5
years from the completion of the development die, are removed or become
seriously damaged or diseased, shall be replaced in the next planting
season with others of similar size or species, unless the Local Planning
Authority gives written consent to any variation.

Reason: To ensure the achievement and long term retention of an
appropriate quality of development and to comply with Policy
CS2 of the Local Plan for the New Forest District outside the
National Park (Core Strategy).

The disposal of surface water from the site shall only take place in
accordance with Drawing No 64919/05 Rev C and calculations, unless
otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In order to ensure that the drainage arrangements are
appropriate and in accordance with Policy CS2 of the Local
Plan for the New Forest District outside the National Park
(Core Strategy) and the New Forest District Council and New
Forest National Park Authority Strategic Flood Risk
Assessment for Local Development Frameworks.

Unless otherwise agreed by the Local Planning Authority, development
other than that required to be carried out as part of an approved scheme of
remediation must not commence until conditions relating to contamination
no 12 to 13 have been complied with.

Page 85



12.

13.

If unexpected contamination is found after development has begun,
development must be halted on that part of the site affected by the
unexpected contamination to the extent specified by the Local Planning
Authority in writing until condition 14 relating to the reporting of unexpected
contamination has been complied with in relation to that contamination.

Reason:  To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users
of the land and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to
controlled waters, property and ecological systems, and to ensure that the
development can be carried out safely without unacceptable risks to
workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors in accordance with policy
CS5 of the Core Strategy for the New Forest District outside the
National Park.

A detailed remediation scheme to bring the site to a condition suitable for
the intended use by removing unacceptable risks to human health, buildings
and other property and the natural and historical environment must be
prepared, and is subject to the approval in writing of the Local Planning
Authority. The scheme must include all works to be undertaken, proposed
remediation objectives and remediation criteria, timetable of works and site
management procedures. The scheme must ensure that the site will not
qualify as contaminated land under Part 2A of the Environmental Protection
Act 1990 in relation to the intended use of the land after remediation.

Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future
users of the land and neighbouring land are minimised,
together with those to controlled waters, property and
ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be
carried out safely without unacceptable risks to workers,
neighbours and other offsite receptors in accordance with
policy CS5 of the Core Strategy for the New Forest District
outside the National Park.

The approved remediation scheme must be carried out in accordance with
its terms prior to the commencement of development other than that
required to carry out remediation, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the
Local Planning Authority. The Local Planning Authority must be given two
weeks written notification of commencement of the remediation scheme
works. Following completion of measures identified in the approved
remediation scheme, a verification report that demonstrates the
effectiveness of the remediation carried out must be produced, and is
subject to the approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority.

Reason:  To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users
of the land and neighbouring land are minimised, together with
those to controlled waters, property and ecological systems, and
to ensure that the development can be carried out safely without
unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite
receptors in accordance with policy CS5 of the Core Strategy
for the New Forest District outside the National Park.

Page 86



14.

15.

16.

In the event that contamination is found at any time when carrying out the
approved development that was not previously identified it must be reported
in writing immediately to the Local Planning Authority. An investigation and
risk assessment must be undertaken in accordance with the requirements of
condition 11, and where remediation is necessary a remediation scheme
must be prepared in accordance with the requirements of condition 12,
which is subject to the approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority.
Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation
scheme a verification report must be prepared, which is subject to the
approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority in accordance with
condition 13.

Reason:  To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users
of the land and neighbouring land are minimised, together with
those to controlled waters, property and ecological systems, and
to ensure that the development can be carried out safely without
unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite
receptors in accordance with policy CS5 of the Core Strategy for
the New Forest District outside the National Park.

A monitoring and maintenance scheme to include monitoring the long-term
effectiveness of the proposed remediation over a period of years as stated
in the remediation scheme, and the provision of reports on the same must
be prepared, both of which are subject to the approval in writing of the Local
Planning Authority. Following completion of the measures identified in that
scheme and when the remediation objectives have been achieved, reports
that demonstrate the effectiveness of the monitoring and maintenance
carried out must be produced, and submitted to the Local Planning
Authority. This must be conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the
Environment Agency’s ‘Model Procedures for the Management of Land
Contamination, CLR 11,

Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future
users of the land and neighbouring land are minimised,
together with those to controlled waters, property and
ecological systems, and to ensure that the development
can be carried out safely without unacceptable risks to
workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors in
accordance with policy CS5 of the Core Strategy for the
New Forest District outside the National Park.

No development shall be carried out until proposals for the mitigation of the
impact of the development on the New Forest and Solent Coast European
Nature Conservation Sites have been submitted to and approved in writing
by the local planning authority, and the local planning authority has
confirmed in writing that the provision of the proposed mitigation has been
secured. Such proposals must:

(a) Provide for mitigation in accordance with the New Forest District
Council Mitigation Strategy for European Sites SPD, adopted in June
2014 (or any amendment to or replacement for this document in
force at the time), or for mitigation to at least an equivalent effect;

Page 87



(b) Provide details of the manner in which the proposed mitigation is to
be secured. Details to be submitted shall include arrangements for
the ongoing maintenance and monitoring of any Suitable Alternative
Natural Green Spaces which form part of the proposed mitigation
measures together with arrangements for permanent public access
thereto.

(c) The development shall be carried out in accordance with and subject
to the approved proposals.

Reason: The impacts of the proposed development must be mitigated
before any development is carried out in order to ensure that
there will be no adverse impacts on the New Forest and Solent
Coast Nature Conservation Sites in accordance with Policy
DM3 of the Local Plan Part 2 and the New Forest District
Council Mitigation Strategy for European Sites Supplementary
Planning Document.

Notes for inclusion on certificate:

In accordance with paragraphs 186 and 187 of the National Planning Policy
Framework and Article 35 of the Town and Country Planning (Development
Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015, New Forest District Council
takes a positive and proactive approach, seeking solutions to any problems
arising in the handling of development proposals so as to achieve,
whenever possible, a positive outcome by giving clear advice to applicants.

In this case all the above apply and as the application was acceptable as
submitted no specific further actions were required.

In discharging condition No 16 above the Applicant is advised that
appropriate mitigation is required before the development is commenced,
either by agreeing to fund the Council’'s Mitigation Projects or otherwise
providing mitigation to an equivalent standard. Further information about
how this can be achieved can be found here
http://www.newforest.gov.uk/article/16478/

Further Information:

Major Team

Telephone: 023 8028 5345 (Option 1)

Page 88



"9|eos
0} 8¢ JOU |[IM }I ‘JouIsiUl BU}
woyj ueld sy Bunuud § "g'N

0gcl:l ofeds

V6€2ZS
G9/LLISL

UOHI| MON

peoy UolIN PIO /-89
uonje}s a91jod

yg :ON Wy

9102 y}snbny

a3 IIwon |0I3U0D
juawdojonaq Buluueld

vd. e¥0S

}sinypui]

Hnog sane|ddy

jlounog JousIq 159404 MeN
jonuoy Buipjing pue Bujuue|d

Woois) pireq

3N AoBjSalomau MMM
000G 8208 €20 ‘oL

TIDNNOD 1o1d1isida

}S9I0J MAN] |

isbeuej 9oin8g |7

T

0c

7 7~ 7 7

2920001 Aaning aoueupIO 910T siUbu aseqelep p
< ~/ 7

777 J
ue 1ybuAdos um

X
0ID B!




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 3i

Planning Development Control Committee 10 August 2016 Item 3 i

Application Number: 15/11797 Outline Planning Permission

Site: Land North of LOPERWOOD LANE, CALMORE,
TOTTON S040 2RL
Development: Up to 80 dwellings; open space; drainage
(Outline Application with all matters reserved)
Applicant: Howard Sharp & Partners LLP ’
Target Date: 18/03/2016
Extension Date: 19/08/2016
1 REASON FOR COMMITTEE CONSIDERATION
Discretion of Executive Head of Economy, Housing and Planning
2 DEVELOPMENT PLAN AND OTHER CONSTRAINTS
Countryside
3 DEVELOPMENT PLAN, OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

Core Strategy

Obijectives
1. Special qualities, local distinctiveness and a high quality living environment

3. Housing
6. Towns, villages and built environment quality
8. Biodiversity and landscape

Policies

CS1: Sustainable development principles

CS2: Design quality

CS3: Protecting and enhancing our special environment (Heritage and Nature
Conservation)

CS7: Open spaces, sport and recreation

CS9: Settlement hierarchy

CS10: The spatial strategy

CS15: Affordable housing contribution requirements from developments
CS24: Transport considerations

CS25: Developers contributions

Local Plan Part 2 Sites and Development Management Development Plan
Document

DM1: Heritage and Conservation

DM2: Nature conservation, biodiversity and geodiversity

DM3: Mitigation of impacts on European nature conservation sites
DM20: Residential development in the countryside

Page 91



RELEVANT LEGISLATION AND GOVERNMENT ADVICE

Section 38 Development Plan
Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004
National Planning Policy Framework

RELEVANT SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE AND DOCUMENTS

SPD - Housing Design, Density and Character
SPD - Mitigation Strategy for European Sites
SPD - Parking Standards

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

6.1 Development of land for social housing (53182) - refused 10/8/94

6.2 Development of land for social housing (57320) - refused 28/9/95

6.3 Residential Development (65846) - refused 21/4/99 - appeal dismissed
PARISH / TOWN COUNCIL COMMENTS

Totton & Eling Town Council: recommend refusal - the site layout shows that the
site is capable of comfortably incorporating the proposed houses whilst
remaining green and spacious and in keeping with the surrounding area.
However, the site is not within the settlement boundary and is not allocated. No
compelling reason has been given as to why this application should be allowed
whilst being clearly contrary to policy

COUNCILLOR COMMENTS

8.1 ClIr Britton: objects - conflict with policy as the site lies outside the
settlement boundary; unsuitable access; additional traffic would cause
highway safety problems; concerns that the proposal could cause
additional flooding problems; increased pressures on local schools and
health services.

8.2 Clir Penman: objects - contrary to policy; proposal could increase
flooding problems in local area; proposal will generate significant
additional traffic resulting in congestion and highway safety issues;
increased pressures on local schools and health services; this part of
Calmore cannot take the number of homes proposed.

CONSULTEE COMMENTS

9.1 Hampshire County Council Highway Engineer: No objection subject to
condition

9.2  Natural England: No objection - agree with the view reached in the
applicant's Habitat Regulations Assessment (that needs to be adopted
by the LPA as competent authority) that the proposal is not likely to have
significant effects on the New Forest SPA/SAC/Ramsar/SSSI. LPA
needs to ensure that the proposal provides mitigation measures in
accordance with its own SPD / policy.

9.3  Land Drainage:- No objection - the lead Local Flood Authority (HCC)
would deal with any planning application

Page 92



9.4

9.5

9.6

9.7

9.8

9.9

9.10

9.11

9.12

9.13

9.14

9.15

9.16

9.17

Hampshire County Council (Flood Management):- the general principles
of the surface water drainage proposals are acceptable; more detail will
be needed for a full planning application; a revised drainage strategy
should be submitted before development commences

Hampshire County Council (Education):- No objection subject to paying a
contribution of £5630,136 towards an expansion project in the Totton
area to mitigate the impact of the development on educational
infrastructure.

Ministry of Defence:- No safeguarding objections

Waste & Recycling Manager:- advise that the internal access must be
wide enough to accommodate a 26t refuse collection vehicle; appropriate
turning heads should be provided; properties must have rear access to
their gardens to enable refuse to be transferred.

Tree Officer:- No objection subject to tree protection condition

Urban Design:- No design objection - the design is well thought out and
is likely to provide a place that is likely to be contextually appropriate,
practical and attractive.

Ecologist:- No objection subject to details of biodiversity mitigation and
enhancement being secured by condition

Policy:- The proposal is contrary to policies CS10 and CS22. The site is
not required on the basis of a lack of housing land supply; the application
seeks to pre-empt the Local Plan Review process; the proposal should
secure 50% affordable housing and on-site SANGS provision at the rate
of 8 hectares per thousand people.

Archaeologist:- No objection subject to condition
Environmental Health:- No comment

New Forest Access for All:- Access to dwellings should be flat, level and
without steps; development should be designed to allow easy access for
wheelchair users / people on scooters.

Southern Water:- cannot accommodate the needs of the development
without additional local infrastructure; requests a condition if
development is approved.

New Forest National Park Authority:- the proposal is contrary to the
Council's adopted development plan; no weight can be given to the site's
possible allocation through the Local Plan Review 2016-2036 due to the
very early stage in the plan-making process and due to the fact that the
allocation includes a range of uses including greenspace provision and
employment land and therefore it is far from clear that the site would be
allocated for housing development; the application is highly premature;
do not accept the applicant's interpretation for calculating 5 year housing
land supply; the applicant's LVIA does not adequately assess impacts on
the National Park.

Southern Gas:- advise of site's proximity to gas main

Page 93



10

11

12

13

9.18 Conservation Officer:- No objection - considers that 80 dwellings could
be successfully achieved without adversely compromising the setting of
the adjacent Listed Building

9.19  Environmental Health (pollution):- No concerns raised

9.20 Landscape Officer: no objection subject to conditions. The indicative
layout, incorporating the existing landscape features using the
topography effectively and recognising the benefits of maintaining green
margins in association with existing boundary features will provide a
framework for development that can retain some of the visual aspects of
the rural character of the adjacent landscape.

REPRESENTATIONS RECEIVED

10.1 69 letters of objection from local residents to original plans and 33 further
objections to amended plans:- Development in this countryside location
would be contrary to Local Plan policy; loss of greenspace; adverse
landscape and visual impact; loss of village / rural character; 80
dwellings would be overdevelopment of the site; dwellings would be too
high; development would have an overbearing impact on other nearby
dwellings; additional light pollution; increased traffic creating additional
congestion to detriment of highway safety; suggested access would not
be safe due to poor visibility; proposal would result in increased parking
on local roads to detriment of highway safety; development would result
in increased flood risk to adjacent land; additional noise pollution;
adverse impact on local wildlife; contrary to conditions of a will; additional
pressures on local schools, health services and local infrastructure;
adverse impact on setting of Listed Building; lack of need; inadequate
sewerage system; design will encourage antisocial behaviour; adverse
impact on amenities of local residents.

CRIME & DISORDER IMPLICATIONS

See Assessment Report below

LOCAL FINANCE CONSIDERATIONS

If this development is granted permission and the dwellings built, the Council will
receive up to £92,160 in each of the following six years from the dwellings'
completion, and as a result, a total of up to £552,960 in government grant under

the New Homes Bonus will be received.

From the 6 April 2015 New Forest District Council began charging the
Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) on new residential developments.

Based on the information provided at the time of this report, it is not possible to
determine the CIL liability associated with the proposed development. This
would need to determined as reserved matters stage.

Tables setting out all contributions are at the end of this report.

WORKING WITH THE APPLICANT/AGENT

In accordance with paragraphs 186 and 187 of the National Planning Policy

Framework and Article 35 of the Town and Country Planning (Development
Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015, New Forest District Council

Page 94



14

take a positive and proactive approach, seeking solutions to any problems
arising in the handling of development proposals so as to achieve, whenever
possible, a positive outcome.

This is achieved by

 Strongly encouraging those proposing development to use the very
thorough pre application advice service the Council provides.

e Working together with applicants/agents to ensure planning applications
are registered as expeditiously as possible.

* Advising agents/applicants early on in the processing of an application
(through the release of a Parish Briefing Note) as to the key issues
relevant to the application.

» Updating applicants/agents of issues that arise in the processing of their
applications through the availability of comments received on the web or
by direct contact when relevant.

e Working together with applicants/agents to closely manage the planning
application process to allow an opportunity to negotiate and accept
amendments on applications (particularly those that best support the
Core Strategy Objectives) when this can be done without compromising
government performance requirements.

e Advising applicants/agents as soon as possible as to concerns that
cannot be dealt with during the processing of an application allowing for
a timely withdrawal and re-submission or decision based on the scheme
as originally submitted if this is what the applicant/agent requires.

* When necessary discussing with applicants/agents proposed conditions
especially those that would restrict the use of commercial properties or
land when this can be done without compromising government
performance requirements.

In this case, there have been pre-application discussions with the applicants.
There have also been lengthy discussions with the applicants since the
application was first registered and this has enabled a number of detailed
concerns to be satisfactorily addressed. However, given the in-principle
objection to residential development of this land (of which the applicant is aware)
it is not felt possible to negotiate on this application to secure an acceptable
outcome.

ASSESSMENT
Introduction

14.1  The application site is an area of farmland that is situated between
Loperwood Lane to the south and Loperwood to the north. The A326
Totton western bypass is situated to the west side of the site beyond a
public footpath which runs adjacent to the site's western boundary. The
site is bounded on its eastern side by the King George Recreation
Ground and play area. Beyond the north-eastern corner of the site, a
new residential development comprised of 24 dwellings is currently being
constructed.

14.2  The site extends to 4.41 hectares and is gently sloping, with the higher
parts set on the site's western boundary, and the lowest parts are
located adjacent to the site's south-eastern boundary which abuts the
rear gardens of a number of dwellings along Calmore Road. The site is
fairly open and is currently grazed by horses. There are, however, some
isolated mature trees as well as a more significant area of scrub and

Page 95



14.3

14.4

14.5

trees around a small pond within the central part of the site. Some of
these trees are protected by a Tree Preservation Order. The site's
boundaries are typically marked by thick hedgerows and mature trees.
The site's eastern boundary in particular has a significant number of
mature trees that are protected by a Tree Preservation Order.

To the south side of Loperwood Lane, facing the application site, is
Calmore Cottage, which is a Grade Il Listed thatched property. Other
residential properties to the south side of the site comprise a mix of
mainly mid-twentieth century dwellings set within fairly generous sized
garden plots.

The submitted application is an outline application that seeks to build up
to 80 dwellings on the site, including public open space and drainage.
The application does not seek approval of any matters of detail. The
application is, however, accompanied by an illustrative layout plan and by
detailed supporting documents that address a number of detailed site
and policy issues. It should be noted that the application proposals have
been amended since the application was first registered, the number of
proposed units having been reduced.

It should also be noted that a number of applications for residential
development of this site were refused during the 1990s, the most recent
of which was also dismissed at appeal, with the appeal inspector
concluding that the development was unjustified residential development
in the countryside that would have caused material harm to the local
landscape.

Policy Considerations

14.6

14.7

14.8

The application site falls outside the defined built-up area of Totton and
Eling, and is therefore subject to countryside policies. The proposed
development would be contrary to Local Plan Part 2 Policy DM20, which
does not allow for new residential dwellings in this countryside location.
Planning permission should therefore be refused for this proposal unless
there are material considerations that would justify a departure from

policy.

The applicants recognise that their proposals are contrary to policy.
However, they believe that a decision contrary to policy is justified.
Specifically, they are of the view that a five year supply of housing
cannot be demonstrated within the District. Furthermore, they consider
that the Council's Core Strategy policies on housing are out of date, are
inconsistent with the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF), and
do not adequately reflect current needs. Because, in their view, the
Council does not have an up-to-date plan setting out a housing
requirement for the district, they consider that little weight should be
attached to the site's countryside location, and instead they consider the
application should be considered in terms of the presumption in favour of
sustainable development as set out in Paragraph 14 of the NPPF.

Based on objectively assessed housing needs, which have identified a
need for between 11,600 and 13,000 extra homes for the period
2006-26, the applicants have calculated that New Forest District (outside
the National Park) have a housing supply of just 1.08 to 1.25 years.
They therefore consider there to be a serious shortfall in housing land
supply assessed against need, and consequently, they consider this
supports the immediate release and development of the site, noting that

Page 96



14.9

14.10

14.11

previous Local Plan inspectors have recommended that the site be
allocated for housing.

Currently, the Local Planning Authority calculates its housing land supply
against Core Strategy Housing requirements. On this basis, the Council
has 8.45 years of housing land supply, which is well in excess of the 5
year housing land supply that Central Government expects Local
Planning Authorities to provide for. Therefore, based on the housing land
supply requirements that are set out in the Core Strategy there would be
no justification to release this site for housing.

In response to NPPF requirements, the Council has produced a Strategic
Housing Market Assessment (SHMA), which was published in
September 2014. For the years 2011-2031 this suggests that 587-687
houses a year will be needed in order to meet objectively assessed
housing needs. However, the SHMA makes it clear that the identified
figures take no account of land supply or development constraints within
the District, including Green Belt, the National Park, Areas of
Outstanding Natural Beauty and areas subject to European nature
conservation designations. The NPPF and Planning Practice Guidance
are clear that these constraints will affect the potential supply of land for
housing and are relevant factors in determining policies for housing
provision. Furthermore, a government statement issued in December
2014 makes it quite clear that:-

"the outcome of a Strategic Housing Market Assessment is untested and
should not be seen as a proxy for a final housing requirement in Local
Plans. It does not in itself invalidate housing numbers in existing Local
Plans."

Accordingly, objectively assessed housing needs that are identified
through a SHMA are only a starting point in determining future housing
provision. They do not invalidate housing numbers set out in the
Council's adopted Core Strategy / Local Plan, and they cannot in
themselves justify a development that is contrary to current development
plan policies.

The Council has commenced a Local Plan Review which will identify
suitable sites to meet objectively assessed housing needs. The levels of
need identified by the Council's SHMA should be tested through the Plan
Examination process, as should potential allocations which are proposed
to meet identified needs. The Council has in its recently published
Document "Local Plan Review 2016-2036 Part 1: Planning Strategy
Initial Proposals for Public Consultation (July 2016)" actually proposed
that the application site be considered for future allocation for housing
development as part of a much larger area to the north of Totton.
However, it must be stressed that this is only a consultation document
that carries no weight at the present time. The possibility that the land
could be allocated for housing development in the future is not a reason
to allow the land to be developed now. The correct way of establishing
what sites should be allocated and developed for housing is to allow the
Local Plan Review to follow its due process, and until this Review is
sufficiently advanced, there can be no justification for permitting
development in a countryside location, contrary to policy, taking into
account that the Council has a 5 year land supply based on its adopted
Core Strategy, and having regard to the government advice referred to
above.

Page 97



Landscape and Design Considerations

14.12

14.13

14.14

14.15

14.16

14.17

14.18

Any residential development of this site will inevitably result in a
significant urbanisation of the area that will be to the detriment of the
site's existing rural character, and harmful to the site's status as an area
of countryside on the edge of Totton.

Assessed against the Council's own Landscape Character Assessment
(LCA), the site exhibits many of the key characteristics and features of
the Copythorne Forest Farmlands Landscape Character Area. As such,
the site is one of the vary last remaining pieces of land in Totton that still
link the town with the forest, and this is fundamental to the distinctive
character of Calmore, enabling it to be considered more as a village type
neighbourhood than simply part of the suburban town. If residential
development were to be accepted in this location, then it is important that
the site's landscape character and rural edge context should inform the
scale, layout and density of any such development.

The applicants have carried out their own Landscape and Visual Impact
Assessment (LVIA) to support their proposals. This is a detailed
document which concludes that the development will respect local
landscape character, and will contribute well to the overall setting of
Loperwood and the edge of Totton.

The Council's Design / landscape team have not fully considered the
applicant's LVIA, and therefore, at the time of writing, they have yet to
give detailed feedback on the LVIA. However, they have given detailed
consideration to the applicant's Design and Access Statement and the
associated illustrative supporting information. Their conclusion is that the
design of the development has been well thought out and is likely to
provide a place that is contextually appropriate, practical and attractive.

From the applicant's submissions and supporting illustrative material, it is
clear that significant green infrastructure would be at the heart of the
scheme, providing high quality new green space for the enjoyment of the
new residents and the wider area. The illustrative plans indicate that the
new greenspaces would be well integrated with the existing public open
space to the east and with the public footpath to the west. The illustrative
plans also indicate a development with significant cumulative garden
groups where taller shrubs and some trees could be provided to retain a
rural edge character. As a whole, the high proportion of open space and
greenery that would be provided on this development would ensure that
it has the capacity to be an attractive development, appropriate to its
rural edge.

The Council's Urban Design Officer has expressed some concern with
certain aspects of the applicant's SANGS creation and management
plan, and is particularly concerned that areas of SANGS should not be
fenced off, (which could have the effect of severing the SANGS and
reducing its value as green infrastructure). Having regard to the
submitted landscape strategy drawing, which has some sensible ideas, it
is felt that these are matters that could be reasonably resolved through a
reserved matters application.

The illustrative layout would offer a hierarchy of connected routes and

pedestrian friendly streets, including streets with relatively green
frontages where there would be scope to plant trees for shade and to

Page 98



14.19

14.20

break down the dominance of hard surfacing. The illustrative layout
suggests streets with good natural surveillance. When viewed in
combination with the areas of open space that would be created, it is felt
that the applicants have adequately demonstrated that it would be
possible to provide a high quality and contextually appropriate layout with
a development of up to 80 dwellings.

The applicant has submitted a storey heights plan, which indicates that
the development would be overwhelmingly 2-storeys high, but with a
significant proportion of those dwellings being 1 and a half storeys high.
The suggested scale of development would respect the rural edge and
would appear to draw on more traditional building forms nearby. A
'Storyboard' drawing suggests the use of good quality materials and
detailing that would respect local distinctiveness. The applicant has,
therefore provided sufficient supporting information to be able to
conclude that a development of up to 80 dwellings could be acceptable
in terms of its scale and appearance.

Overall, the applicants have satisfactorily demonstrated that up to 80
dwellings could be provided on the site in a way that would be well
designed and with an acceptable change to landscape character, were
the principle of development to be accepted. However, given the
proposal is not acceptable in principle, the balance must be very much in
favour of maintaining the existing rural landscape character, which would
inevitably be harmed by any significant development (as recognised in
the 1999 appeal decision).

Arboricultural Considerations

14.21

The submitted illustrative layout plan and tree protection plan suggests
that all of the key protected trees (including a number of particularly fine,
mature oak trees) will be retained, and that dwellings could be set
sufficiently far away from these trees as not to compromise the future
health of these trees. Therefore, subject to conditions, the proposal
would be acceptable from an aboricultural perspective.

Heritage Considerations

14.22

Notwithstanding the more modern twentieth century development around
it, Calmore Cottage still sits within its context of a rural lane with an open
countryside outlook to the north. The cottage has visible and tangible
breathing space within the landscape which contributes heavily to its
setting. Development on the application site would sit much higher in the
landscape than Calmore Cottage. The illustrative layout suggests a small
green to the front of Calmore Cottage that would be overlooked by
houses in the new development. With their illustrative material, the
applicants have adequately demonstrated that a development of up to 80
dwellings could be accommodated on this site without harming the
setting of the Listed Building. Obviously, much more detailed information
would need to be submitted at reserved matters stage to ensure that the
development's relationship to the Listed Building is an acceptable one.

Habitat Mitigation Contributions

14.23 In line with Local Plan Part 2 Policy DM3, new residential development

provided for in the Local Plan is expected to mitigate potential
recreational impacts on both the New Forest and the Solent European

Page 99



Nature Conservation Sites. Specifically, for schemes of more than 50
dwellings, there is a requirement to provide Suitable Alternative Natural
Greenspaces (SANGS) on the site or close to it based on a standard of 8
hectares of SANGS per 1000 population. In this case, it must be noted
that the proposed development is not provided for in the Local Plan and
therefore the mitigation measures required by the Local Plan cannot
necessarily be assumed to be enough. This is because the mitigation
requirements that have been drawn up by the Council in its Local Plan
and related Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) are designed only
to mitigate the development provided for in the Local Plan.

14.24 The applicant has submitted a Shadow Appropriate Assessment in
support of their proposals. They have put forward some detailed
mitigation measures, the most important of which is the provision of
on-site SANGS. The applicant's supporting statement indicates that 1.62
hectares of SANGS is needed for a development of 80 dwellings (based
on the Council's Local Plan Part 2 Policy DM3). The applicant suggests
that they are able to provide 1.62 hectares of SANGS, as is confirmed by
the supporting illustrative layout plan. Natural England have raised no
objection to the application, accepting that the proposed illustrative
layout plan would be likely to be successful in mitigating the recreational
impacts of the new development on designated European sites.

14.25 Natural England have indicated that, as the competent authority, it is the
Local Planning Authority's responsibility to produce a Habitats
Regulations Assessment (HRA). Their advice that the proposal will not
be likely to have significant effects on the New Forest
SPA/SAC/RAMSAR/SSSI is on the basis that the Local Planning
Authority adopt the HRA/ Shadow Appropriate Assessment produced by
the applicants. Therefore, it is confirmed that the Local Planning
Authority accepts and adopts the applicant's Shadow Appropriate
Assessment, but with the caveat that there be a degree of flexibility on
path surfaces and fencing (2 concerns raised by the Council's deign
team) to ensure that the SANGS complement the design of the whole
development. It is not felt such flexibility would affect the fundamental
conclusion that the development is one that could be provided without
having significant effects on the relevant European sites. However, the
on-site habitat mitigation measures needed to comply with policy do
need to be secured within a Section 106 legal agreement. The applicants
are agreeable to entering into a such an agreement, although at the time
of writing it remains to be completed.

14.26 It should be noted that as well as providing on-site SANGS, there is a
policy requirement for new residential development to secure SANGS
maintenance contributions (based on a rate of £56,000 per hectare of
SANGS land) and a SANGS monitoring sum (based on a rate of £50 per
dwelling). These contributions would also need to be secured through a
Section 106 legal agreement. At the time of writing, the contributions
remain to be secured.

Public Open Space

14.27 In line with Core Strategy Policy CS7, the development is one that would be
expected to secure provision towards public open space. As the
development site is in excess of 0.5 hectares, appropriately designed
informal public open space and children's play space should be provided on

Page 100



the site. As the number of bedrooms in the development is not yet known,
the precise public open space requirement cannot currently be determined,
although the applicant's illustrative plans show appropriate areas of public
open space being provided through a combination of SANGS land and
additional areas of public open space land.

14.28 The Local Planning Authority allows for the on-site public open space
requirement to be met in part through the on-site SANGS provision.
However, not all informal open space areas will be suitable for inclusion as
SANGS, and more formal children's play areas should not normally be
contiguous with SANGS areas. Nonetheless, the submitted plans give
sufficient assurances that the necessary level of public open space
(including areas for children's play) could be provided in an acceptable
manner in connection with the level of development proposed. Ultimately,
the public open space requirement and contributions towards its future
maintenance will need to be secured through a Section 106 legal agreement.
The applicants are agreeable to entering into such a legal agreement in
respect of these matters, although at the time of writing the legal agreement
remains to be completed. Until such time as the legal agreement is
completed, the development would not accord with the requirements of Core
Strategy Policy CS7.

Affordable Housing

14.29 Because the development is not an allocated site and is within the
countryside, there is no policy that expressly covers the amount of affordable
housing that should be provided on the site. In line with the requirements of
Core Strategy Policy CS15, there is no doubt that development of this site
should make provision towards affordable housing, the question is how
much? As the development is a greenfield site, it is felt that part a) of Core
Strategy Policy CS15 best fits the application proposals, and on this basis it
is considered that 50% of the proposed dwellings should be provided as
affordable housing. This would reflect the affordable housing requirement on
the adjacent land that is currently under development. It is understood that
the applicants are agreeable to securing half the dwellings for affordable
housing, of which 35% of the total dwellings would be for social rented
housing and 15% of the total dwellings would be for intermediate housing.
However, at the time of writing a Section 106 legal agreement remains to be
completed to secure any affordable housing.

Transportation & Highway Considerations

14.30 The application is accompanied by a detailed Transport Assessment. The
Highway Authority have confirmed that this Assessment adequately
demonstrates that the existing highway network would be able to absorb
safely any additional vehicular movements generated by the proposals. The
Highway Authority are satisfied that more detailed access / parking related
issues can be left to a reserved matters application.

Residential Amenity Considerations

14.31 The application will have some impact on the amenities of nearby properties
with the neighbouring dwelling "The Oaks" and 291-299 Calmore Road (odd
numbers) being the most affected due to their common boundaries with the
application site. Because the application is only outline, the precise position
of dwellings is not known. However, 291-299 Calmore Road all have long
gardens (30 to 40 metres in depth) and therefore, even though layout is not

Page 101



14.32

a matter for detailed approval at this stage, it is felt that there is no reason
why the development could not be designed so as to avoid adversely
affecting the privacy and amenities of these neighbouring dwellings.
Likewise, with careful positioning of first floor windows there should be no
reason why an acceptable relationship to the neighbouring dwelling at "The
Oaks" should not be achievable. The development would inevitably generate
additional noise, but not to a level that would be detrimental to the amenities
of existing residents.

Because of the site's proximity to the A326, there is potential for occupants
of the proposed residential development to be affected by noise. The
application is accompanied by a noise impact assessment, which concludes
that occupants of the proposed development would have acceptable levels
of amenity, subject to appropriate mitigation measures being incorporated
into the development. The Council's environmental health officer has not
raised any concerns.

Drainage & Flooding issues

14.33

The application site is within Flood Zone 1, and is therefore within a low flood
risk area. The applicants have indicated that they intend to dispose of
surface water through a Sustainable Drainage System (SUDS) and they
have also submitted a Flood Risk Assessment to support their proposals.
The County Council Flood and Water Management Team have considered
this document. They indicate that the general principles for the disposal of
surface water are acceptable. More information would be needed at
reserved matters stage including detailed information on exceedance flows
and the routing of these. More information will also be needed on the final
drainage design together with details on maintenance, noting that Southern
Water have indicated that they are unable to accept the proposed flows in
their systems. However, these are matters that could be reasonably resolved
through conditions and at reserved matters stage. For now, the applicants
have provided adequate information on drainage and flooding issues. It can
be reasonably concluded that the development could be provided with an
acceptable (and sustainable) drainage system, without causing additional
flooding elsewhere.

Other concerns

14.34

14.35

14.36

The application is accompanied by an ecology report. The Ecologist
indicates that surveys carried out to date have not revealed any significant
impact on protected species, although there would be some loss of
semi-improved grassland habitat. However, this would be justified subject to
appropriate mitigation and compensation measures being provided. Overall,
itis not considered the development would adversely affect the ecological
interest of the site.

The application is accompanied by an archaeological desk based
assessment, which concludes, on the balance of probabilities, that
archaeological remains are unlikely to be encountered on the site. The
conclusions of this report are accepted by the County Archaeologist. As
such, the application does not raise any archaeological concerns.

The New Forest National Park lies to the west side of the A326, and is
therefore in close proximity to the application site. The A326 and the
vegetation growing between this road and the application site does provide a
strong visual buffer to the National Park. While development on the

Page 102




14.37

14.38

14.39

application site would not be without impact on the National Park, and while
the National Park Authority's comments on the applicant's LVIA are noted, it
is felt that the development would not have a material adverse impact on the
special qualities of the National Park (at least in visual terms) given the
existing visual buffer.

Concerns about crime and antisocial behaviour would be most appropriately
considered at reserved matters stage, when a detailed layout is known.

A number of local residents have indicated that the proposed development
would be contrary to the terms of a will. However, this is a civil / legal matter
that falls outside the scope of planning control.

The County Council Education department have requested a significant
education contribution. However, they have not been able to clearly
demonstrate where and how the requested money would be spent and how
this would be related to the impact of the development. On this basis, it is
not felt that there would be an adequate justification to require the applicants
to make an education contribution.

Summary & Conclusions

14.40

14.41

The overriding issue is whether there are material considerations to justify a
departure from the Council's adopted Local Plan policies. It is not disputed
that the National Planning Policy Framework and National Planning Policy
Guidance must carry significant weight. However, in considering whether
there is a case to release this site for housing now, it is considered that the
applicants have not given sufficient weight to the government's advice in its
ministerial letter issued in December 2014, which makes it clear that housing
numbers in existing local plans are not invalidated by Strategic Housing
Market Assessments. Accordingly, it is not accepted that the Council's
Development Plan policies are in material conflict with National Planning
policies. Having regard to all relevant material considerations, it is not
considered that there is a clear or compelling case to permit the proposed
residential development at the current time contrary to policy, and as such,
the application is recommended for refusal, taking into account also the lack
of a Section 106 legal agreement to secure specific policy requirements.

In coming to this recommendation, consideration has been given to the
rights set out in Article 8 (Right to respect for private and family life) and
Article 1 of the First Protocol (Right to peaceful enjoyment of possessions) of
the European Convention on Human Rights. Whilst it is recognised that this
recommendation, if agreed, may interfere with the rights and freedoms of the
applicant to develop the land in the way proposed, the objections to the
planning application are serious ones and cannot be overcome by the
imposition of conditions. The public interest and the rights and freedoms of
neighbouring property owners can only be safeguarded by the refusal of
permission.

Page 103



Section 106 Contributions Summary Table

dwellings

Proposal:

Type of Contribution | NFDC Policy Developer Proposed | Difference
Requirement Provision

Affordable Housing

No. of Affordable 50%

Financial Contribution

Habitats Mitigation

Financial Contribution 8 ha / 1000 population

15. RECOMMENDATION

Refuse

Reason(s) for Refusal:

1.

The proposed development would result in the inappropriate and unjustified
residential development of an area of land that is outside the defined
settlement boundary and which is therefore within the countryside. As such,
this significant proposal would result in the unwarranted and harmful
urbanisation of this countryside area, contrary to Policy CS10 of the Core
Strategy for New Forest District outside of the National Park and Policy
DM20 of the Local Plan Part 2: Sites and Development Management.

In the absence of a completed Section 106 legal agreement to secure
appropriate habitat mitigation measures, the proposed development would
constitute an unsustainable form of development that would be contrary to
Policy CS1 of the Core Strategy for the New Forest outside of the National
Park and the Policies of the National Planning Policy Framework in that the
recreational impacts of the proposed development on the New Forest
Special Area of Conservation, the New Forest Special Protection Area the
New Forest Ramsar site, the Solent and Southampton Water Special
Protection Area, the Solent and Southampton Water Ramsar site, the Solent
Maritime Special Area of Conservation would not be adequately mitigated.
The proposed development would therefore be likely to unacceptably
increase recreational pressures on these sensitive European nature
conservation sites, contrary to Policy DM3 of the New Forest Local Plan Part
2: sites and Development Management.

In the absence of a completed Section 106 legal agreement to secure any
on-site public open space or any provision towards its future maintenance,
the proposed development would fail to adequately secure any contribution
towards the creation, enhancement and management of public open space
to meet the needs of the occupants of the development for public open
space. The proposal would therefore be contrary to an objective of the Core
Strategy for the New Forest District outside the National Park 2009 and with
the terms of Policies CS7 and CS25 of the Core Strategy.

Page 104




In the absence of a completed Section 106 legal agreement to secure any
affordable housing, the proposed development would fail to secure any
contribution toward addressing the substantial need for affordable housing
in the District. The proposal would therefore conflict with an objective of the
Core Strategy for the New Forest District outside the National Park 2009
and with the terms of Policies CS15 and CS25 of the Core Strategy.

Notes for inclusion on certificate:

In accordance with paragraphs 186 and 187 of the National Planning Policy
Framework and Avrticle 35 of the Town and Country Planning (Development
Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015, New Forest District Council
takes a positive and proactive approach, seeking solutions to any problems
arising in the handling of development proposals so as to achieve,
whenever possible, a positive outcome by giving clear advice to applicants.

In this case, there have been pre-application discussions with the
applicants. There have also been lengthy discussions with the applicants
since the application was first registered and this has enabled a number of
detailed concerns to be satisfactorily addressed. However, given the
in-principle objection to residential development of this land it was not
possible to negotiate on this application to secure an acceptable outcome.

Further Information:

Major Team

Telephone: 023 8028 5345 (Option 1)

Page 105



“A\ .‘/ P RN = e — 7 T ] 777 R LT T TS A TSNS S ANT WA VA7 N3

"9[eos m. \ \ Aaning e@oueupIO 9102 Siybu o
0} 8Q J0U [|IM }I ‘JaulsiuUl 8y} AR — R¥ / <
woy ueld sy} Bunupd §| "g'N

000¢-1 o[eds

vleens

G9/LLL/G1

uojo| siowen

aueT poomiadoT]
30 ypiou pueT

Ig ON W9y =

910z 3snbny

sapwuwon [oJjuoD
juswdojansg bBuiuueld

vd. ev¥0S

1sinypui

Hno) sans|ddy

j1ouno) JouISIq 158104 MBN
{onuoy Buipjing pue Buiuued
1sbeuepy 9oiNI8S

woois) pineqd

3" AoB }sai0MaU MMM
000G 8208 £¢0 1Bl

TIDNNOD 1D1dlsida

}S9I0] MON

&




Agenda Item 3]

Planning Development Control Committee 10 August 2016 Item 3 j

Application Number: 15/11824 Full Planning Permission

Site: RINGWOOD SOCIAL CLUB, 19 WEST STREET,
RINGWOOD BH24 1DY
Development: Office building; 1 pair of semi-detached houses; 1 terrace of 3
houses; demolition of existing club extension & single-storey rear
extension; external window & door alterations; parking; access;
landscaping
Applicant: Ringwood Social Club
Target Date: 07/06/2016
Target Date: 12/08/2016
1 REASON FOR COMMITTEE CONSIDERATION
Contrary to Policy
2 DEVELOPMENT PLAN AND OTHER CONSTRAINTS
Built-up area, Conservation Area
3 DEVELOPMENT PLAN, OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

Core Strateqy

Objectives
1. Special qualities, local distinctiveness and a high quality living environment

3. Housing
6. Towns, villages and built environment quality
9. Leisure and recreation

Policies

CS1: Sustainable development principles

CS2: Design quality

CS3: Protecting and enhancing our special environment (Heritage and Nature
Conservation)

CS6: Flood risk

CS15: Affordable housing contribution requirements from developments
CS20: Town, district, village and local centres

CS24: Transport considerations

CS25: Developers contributions

Local Plan Part 2 Sites and Development Management Development Plan
Document

DM1: Heritage and Conservation

DM3: Mitigation of impacts on European nature conservation sites

DM15: Secondary shopping frontages

DM16: Within town centres, outside Primary Shopping Areas and Secondary
Shopping Frontages

Page 107



RELEVANT LEGISLATION AND GOVERNMENT ADVICE

Section 38 Development Plan
Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004
National Planning Policy Framework

RELEVANT SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE AND DOCUMENTS

SPD - Ringwood Local Distinctiveness
SPD - Mitigation Strategy for European Sites
SPD - Parking Standards

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

6.1 Use of listed building as 6 flats; one terrace of 4 three-storey houses; bin
store; parking; refurbish social club; fenestration alterations; render;
separate club from listed building; extension to create internal staircase.
(13/11324) - withdrawn 19/12/13

6.2  Office building; 1 pair of semi-detached houses; 1 terrace of 3 houses;
demolition of existing club extension & single-storey rear extension;
external window & door alterations; parking; access; landscaping
(15/10322) - refused 10/6/15

PARISH / TOWN COUNCIL COMMENTS

Ringwood Town Council:- Recommend permission - value the importance of
Ringwood Social Club as an amenity within the community and as such,
recommends that affordable housing contributions should be waived as an
exception to policy to enable investment in the Listed Building.

COUNCILLOR COMMENTS
None
CONSULTEE COMMENTS

9.1 Hampshire County Council Highway Engineer:- no objection subject to
parking condition

9.2  Environment Agency:- no objection subject to condition
9.3  Natural England:- no objection subject to contributions and conditions
9.4  Land Drainage:- no objection subject to conditions

9.5  Ecologist:- no objection subject to conditions, although advise it would be
preferable for further bat survey work to be undertaken and submitted to
the Council prior to determination

9.6  Southern Gas:- advise of site's proximity to gas main
9.7  Conservation Officer:- no objection subject to conditions

9.8  Archaeologist:- no objection subject to archaeological conditions

9.9  Tree Officer:- no objection

Page 108



10

11

12

13

9.10 District Valuer Services:- considers it likely that the development would
be unviable if required to make any contributions towards affordable
housing.

REPRESENTATIONS RECEIVED

10.1 6 letters of support from local residents / social club members:- proposal
would be sympathetic and beneficial to the local community and the
Listed Buildings

10.2  Ringwood Society:- Welcomes the renovation; recommends conditions to
ensure development is to a high standard; queries whether there is an
opportunity to set land aside for a riverside walk.

CRIME & DISORDER IMPLICATIONS
No relevant considerations
LOCAL FINANCE CONSIDERATIONS

If this development is granted permission and the dwellings built, the Council will
receive £5760 times 5 in each of the following six years from the dwellings'
completion, and as a result, a total of £34,560 in government grant under the
New Homes Bonus will be received.

From the 6 April 2015 New Forest District Council began charging the
Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) on new residential developments.

Based on the information provided at the time of this report this development
has a CIL liability of £30,583.81.

Tables setting out all contributions are at the end of this report.
WORKING WITH THE APPLICANT/AGENT

In accordance with paragraphs 186 and 187 of the National Planning Policy
Framework and Article 35 of the Town and Country Planning (Development
Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015, New Forest District Council
take a positive and proactive approach, seeking solutions to any problems
arising in the handling of development proposals so as to achieve, whenever
possible, a positive outcome.

This is achieved by

» Strongly encouraging those proposing development to use the very
thorough pre application advice service the Council provides.

e Working together with applicants/agents to ensure planning applications
are registered as expeditiously as possible.

e Advising agents/applicants early on in the processing of an application
(through the release of a Parish Briefing Note) as to the key issues
relevant to the application.

» Updating applicants/agents of issues that arise in the processing of their
applications through the availability of comments received on the web or
by direct contact when relevant.

Page 109



14

Working together with applicants/agents to closely manage the planning
application process to allow an opportunity to negotiate and accept
amendments on applications (particularly those that best support the
Core Strategy Objectives) when this can be done without compromising
government performance requirements.

Advising applicants/agents as soon as possible as to concerns that
cannot be dealt with during the processing of an application allowing for
a timely withdrawal and re-submission or decision based on the scheme
as originally submitted if this is what the applicant/agent requires.

When necessary discussing with applicants/agents proposed conditions
especially those that would restrict the use of commercial properties or
land when this can be done without compromising government
performance requirements.

In this case, the application proposals have been the subject of lengthy
negotiations both before the application was submitted and during the
application process and this has enabled a positive recommendation to be

made.

ASSESSMENT

14.1

14.2

17-19 West Street are a pair of Grade Il Listed Buildings which date from
the 18th Century. The buildings are 3-storeys high under pitched roofs
and are positioned at the back edge of the West Street pavement.
Attached to the rear of the Listed Buildings is a large 2-storey flat-roofed
structure dating from the early 1970s. To the rear of this is a large
parking area, which is accessed from Strides Lane. The site has been
occupied by Ringwood Social Club since the 1960s, although it is
understood that the premises have not been open since May 2011. The
now vacated accommodation includes a snooker hall, bar, kitchen, skittle
alley, dance floor, first floor function room and bar, committee meeting
room, and office. To the east side of the buildings (within the site) there
is a private pedestrian access way which links the West Street frontage
with areas at the back of the site, while to the west side of the site is a
private access (outside the site) that provides access to a private
commercial car park. The area is characterised by a mix of commercial
and residential uses including a 3-storey residential building at 1-9 New
Court, which is set to the east side of the existing rear car parking area.

The application site was the subject of a withdrawn application in 2013.
More recently, an application to demolish the 1970s flat roofed addition;
to extend, alter and make good the retained Grade Il Listed Building;
and to build a new office building and 2 pairs of semi-detached houses
to the rear was refused planning permission in June 2015. The
alterations to the Listed Building were deemed harmful to their heritage
interest; the new buildings to the rear were deemed to be harmful to the
setting of the retained Listed Buildings and the character and
appearance of the Ringwood Conservation Area; the proposed units at
the back of the site were deemed harmful to the amenities of
neighbouring properties at 1-9 New Court; the development failed to
address ecological interests or secure adequate cycle parking; and the
proposal failed to secure contributions to affordable housing or secure
any habitat mitigation measures.

Page 110



14.3

14.4

14.5

14.6

14.7

As with the recently refused application, this latest proposal also seeks
to demolish the existing 1970s addition to the rear of the Listed Building.
The rear of the Listed Building is proposed to be made good, which
includes window and door alterations, as well as the addition of a mainly
single-storey extension. To the rear of the restored Listed Building it is
proposed to erect 3 new buildings comprised of a 2-storey office
building, a terrace of 3 houses, and a pair of semi-detached houses. The
application also proposes parking and landscaping with access from
Strides Lane to the rear. This application aims to address the key
objections to the scheme that was refused last year, and is therefore a
materially different design to that development. It should be noted that
amended plans have been submitted since the application was first
registered in order to try to address some outstanding concerns with the
initial submission.

The whole of the application site is within the Ringwood Town Centre
boundary, and the front part is within a Secondary Shopping Frontage
location. There is considered to be no policy objection to a smaller social
club, which would still be a viable size. With respect to the proposed
office building, policy does allow for appropriate non-retail uses within
Secondary Shopping Frontages to include public offices. In this case,
the proposed offices are B1 offices that would not necessarily be 'public'.
However, given that the proposed office building would be set to the rear
of the site's main West Street frontage, it is felt that even if the office use
is not open to the public, it would still be an acceptable commercial use
that would be appropriate to the site's town centre context. The rear part
of the site is outside the defined Secondary Shopping Frontage and
Primary Shopping Areas. Here, residential development will be permitted
where it does not result in the loss of retail, appropriate non-retail or
other employment and business uses. As the dwellings would only result
in the loss of a parking facility rather than a building in active commercial
use, it is felt the residential element of the proposal would be consistent
with policy. As a whole, it is considered that the mix of uses proposed
would be consistent with Local Plan policies DM15 and DM16.

The demolition of the 1970s addition to the rear of the historic Listed
Buildings is to be welcomed. This addition has a negative impact on the
character and setting of the Listed Buildings and it has an adverse
impact on the character and appearance of the Ringwood Conservation
Area. However, while the removal of this poor quality addition would be
of significant benefit, there is still a need for the new buildings to be
sympathetic to the site's historic context.

The form and scale of the proposed extension to the rear of the Listed
frontage buildings is acceptable. The design is much better than was the
case with the previously refused application. It is felt that the external
alterations and modest extension to the rear of the Listed Buildings
would be a justified change and subject to conditions to ensure that the
use of good quality materials and detailing, it is felt that the extension
and alterations to the Listed Buildings would be sympathetic to their
historic character and architectural interest.

The new detached buildings to the rear of the Listed Buildings would
have a much better layout than the previously refused development.
Their narrow linear form along the site's western boundary would be
sympathetic to the site's historic context. The buildings would be of an
appropriate 2-storey scale and would be well proportioned, drawing

Page 111



14.8

14.9

14.10

heavily on traditional building forms and details seen in other buildings
within the Conservation Area, thereby respecting local distinctiveness.
The parking layout to the front of the dwellings and the walkway to the
east side of the site would, subject to appropriate hard and soft
landscaping proposals (including a need for well detailed brick walls), be
well designed spaces. Landscaping details are a matter that can
reasonably be conditioned. Subject to the use of good quality materials,
the development to the rear of the site is one that, in conjunction with the
positive works to the Listed Building, would have an acceptable impact
on the character and appearance of the Ringwood Conservation Area.
However, there will be a need for conditions to ensure that the
development is not partially implemented in a way that fails to deliver the
necessary benefits to the Listed Building that are critical in ensuring that
the development as a whole is an acceptable scheme.

The commercial units would not have a materially greater impact on the
amenities of adjacent properties than the existing 1970s extension which
would be demolished. The use of the outside amenity space might
generate some noise and activity, but having regard to the site's town
centre location and its lawful use, it is not considered that use of these
external spaces would cause unreasonable harm. At the back of the site,
the 2 residential blocks would have some impact on the amenities of the
neighbouring flatted block to the east side of the site. A number of first
floor windows are proposed, which would be about 18-19 metres away
from the flats at New Court (a greater distance than was the case with
the scheme refused last year). In this particular town centre context, it is
felt this degree of separation would be acceptable. The east side gable
to unit 4, would have some impact on the outlook of the nearest flats in
New Court, but not an unacceptable one taking into account the size of
the gable end and its distance (14-16 metres) from the adjacent flats.
Overall, the development would have a satisfactory relationship to the
neighbouring flats at New Court, thereby positively addressing previous
neighbour relationship concerns.

The proposed dwellings themselves would have varied sized garden
spaces. The 2 dwellings at the southern end of the site would have
reasonably generous sized gardens. The other 3 dwellings would have
small enclosed courtyard gardens, or no garden at all in the case of the
middle unit. Given the size of the dwellings, their outlook and their town
centre location, it is felt that the limited amenity spaces afforded to some
of the dwellings would be acceptable.

Based on the Environment Agency's flood risk maps, much of the site is
within either a flood risk 2 or a flood risk 3 area, although Units 1-3 are
outside of these flood risk areas. However, the applicants, in their Flood
Risk Assessment, have carried out a more detailed topographical survey
of the site and have looked at how this relates to existing and projected
flood levels. This FRA suggests the bulk of the site, including the areas
set aside for new buildings is actually within Flood Zone 1. The
Environment Agency have no objection to the development that is
proposed subject to adherence to the FRA including measures to ensure
that finished floor levels are set at 15 metres AOD (0.5 metres above the
predicted 1 in 100 year plus climate change flood level). Given the
conclusions in the applicant's FRA, it would also appear that there is no
need to apply the Sequential Test, as it would appear that the new
buildings should not flood (although some of the proposed garden areas
at the southern end of the site would still be at risk of flooding). Even if

Page 112



the Sequential Test were applicable (given that some garden areas
would be in flood zones 2/3), it is felt that the scheme's overall benefits
(particularly in terms of conserving and enhancing the historic
environment) would outweigh the disbenefits of developing within a
Flood Risk Area, having regards to the Environment Agency's
acceptance of the development and given that it would only be relatively
limited areas of garden that would be likely to flood.

14.11 The application would result in the loss of parking for the social club, and
would not provide any parking for the proposed office units. The
Highway Authority consider that this lack of parking for the commercial
and social club elements of the scheme would be acceptable, taking into
account National Planning Policy Guidance. They also consider that the
level of on-site parking for the proposed dwellings (10 spaces) would be
adequate to meet the needs of the residential units. Given the Highway
Authority's conclusions, it is not considered the proposed development
would be detrimental to highway safety.

14.12 The Highway Authority have requested a condition in respect of cycle
parking to ensure that adequate cycle parking is provided in line with the
council's parking standards SPD. It is felt the need to provide cycle
parking is entirely reasonable. Previously, it was felt this matter should
not be left to condition given the site's historic context. Whilst leaving this
matter to condition is not ideal, it is felt, on balance, that the details could
now be left to condition, given that other design issues have been
adequately resolved and given the information illustrated on the layout
plan.

14.13 The application is accompanied by an ecological report, which identifies
a small bat roost within the building that would be demolished and which
would consequently be lost as a result of the development. There is
therefore a need to consider Habitat Regulations tests. Most importantly,
the Council's Ecologist has confirmed that if the suggested mitigation
plan is adhered to, then the conservation status of the affected bat
species will be maintained at a favourable level (although he has also
highlighted a need for an up to date survey to be undertaken). It is also
considered that there is an overriding public interest in redeveloping the
site given the building to be demolished has a particularly negative
impact on the existing heritage assets and given that there is no '
reasonable alternative to addressing this negative impact. As such, it is
felt the relevant test would be satisfied. Subject to conditions, it is felt
that the protected species on site, and the ecological interest of adjacent
areas (which includes, to the south of the site, a designated Site of
Special Scientific Interest / Special Protection Area / Special Area of
Conservation) will be safeguarded.

14.14 On 19th May 2016 the Government issued planning guidance setting out
the specific circumstances in which contributions for affordable housing
and tariff style planning obligations (section 106 agreements) should not
be sought from small scale and self-build development. This guidance

has been reissued following the order of the Court of Appeal dated 13th
May 2016 (West Berkshire District Council and Another v The Secretary
of State for Communities and Local Government). The planning
guidance specifies the circumstances in which contributions should not
be sought as follows:

Page 113



14.15

14.16

14.17

14.18

“Contributions should not be sought from developments of 10 units or
less and which have a maximum combined gross floorspace of no more
than 1,000 sqm;

In designated rural areas, local planning authorities may choose to apply

a lower threshold of 5 units or less...;

Affordable housing and tariff style contributions should not be sought
from any development consisting only of the construction of a residential
annex or extension to an existing house”

This national guidance is at odds with Policy CS15 of the Council’s Core
Strategy which requires many small scale housing developments
including the current application proposals to make affordable housing
provision.

The presumption in favour of the development plan remains, in that the
decision should be taken in accordance with the plan unless material
considerations indicate otherwise. The new guidance is a material
consideration which post-dates the adoption of the Local Plan. It is for
the Council to decide which should prevail in the determination of a
planning application. However, the Secretary of State, through his
Inspectors can be anticipated to give greater weight to the Government’s
national guidance unless there are reasons to make an exception.

While the need for affordable housing in this District is pressing, this in
itself is unlikely to be considered by the Secretary of State as sufficient
reason for the Council to apply its own development plan policy rather
than applying national policy. Therefore, it is recommended that no
affordable housing or tariff style contributions are sought from this
development, in accordance with national Planning Practice Guidance,
contrary to the provisions of Policy CS15 of the Core Strategy. In any
event, it should be noted that in this instance, the applicants submitted a
viability appraisal, which concluded that any affordable housing
contribution would make the scheme unviable, a conclusion that was
accepted by the District Valuer. Therefore, irrespective of the latest
government advice, the scheme is one where the affordable housing
requirement should be reasonably waived.

In accordance with the Habitat Regulations 2010 an assessment has
been carried out of the likely significant effects associated with the
recreational impacts of the residential development provided for in the
Local Plan on both the New Forest and the Solent European Nature
Conservation Sites. It has been concluded that likely significant adverse
effects cannot be ruled out without appropriate mitigation projects being
secured. Therefore, in the event that planning permission is to be
granted for the proposed development, a condition will be required that
would prevent the development from proceeding until the applicant has
secured appropriate mitigation, either by agreeing to fund the Council's
Mitigation Projects or otherwise providing mitigation to an equivalent
standard.

Overall, the proposed development is considered to be consistent with
Local Plan policies and objectives in that the proposed development
would be a well designed development that would be sympathetic to the
site's historic context. The development would be sympathetic to the
character and setting of the Listed Buildings and sympathetic to the
amenities of neighbouring dwellings. The development would safeguard

Page 114



the amenities of neighbouring dwellings and subject to conditions would

safeguard ecological and archaeological interests. It is felt the affordable
housing contribution can be reasonably waived. As such, the application
is recommended for permission.

14.19 In coming to this recommendation, consideration has been given to the
rights set out in Article 8 (Right to respect for private and family life) and Article
1 of the First Protocol (Right to peaceful enjoyment of possessions) of the
European Convention on Human Rights. Whilst it is recognised that there may
be an interference with these rights and the rights of other third parties, such
interference has to be balanced with the like rights of the applicant to develop
the land in the way proposed. In this case it is considered that the protection of
the rights and freedoms of the applicant outweigh any possible interference that
may result to any third party.

Section 106 Contributions Summary Table

Proposal:

Type of Contribution | NFDC Policy Developer Proposed | Difference
Requirement Provision

Affordable Housing

No. of Affordable 2 0 -2

dwellings

Financial Contribution 0 0 0

Habitats Mitigation

Financial Contribution £17,650

CIL Summary Table

Description of GIA New GIA Existing |GIA Net Increase |CIL Liability
Class
Dwelling houses 366.78 366.78 £30,583.81 *
Businesses - 404.4 404.4 £0.00 *
Offices
(non-Financial/Prof
Drinking 0 £0.00 *
Establishments
15. RECOMMENDATION
Grant Subject to Conditions
Proposed Conditions:
1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of
three years from the date of this permission.
Reason: To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning

Act 1990 as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

Page 115



The development permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the
following approved plans: 826.100e, 826.101e, 826.102b, 826.103a,
826.104a, 826.105, 826.106, 826.107, 826.108, 826.109b, 826.110a,
826.111a, 826.112d, 826.113c, 826.114d, 826.115d, 826.116b,
826.117c, 826.118c, 826.119c, 826.120c, 826.121b, 826.099c.

Reason:  To ensure satisfactory provision of the development.

Before development commences, details of the means of disposal of
surface water from the site shall be submitted to and approved in writing by
the Local Planning Authority. Development shall only take place in
accordance with the approved details.

Reason: In order to ensure that the drainage arrangements are
appropriate and in accordance with Policy CS2 of the Local
Plan for the New Forest District outside the National Park
(Core Strategy) and the New Forest District Council and New
Forest National Park Authority Strategic Flood Risk
Assessment for Local Development Frameworks.

Before the development is first occupied details of the future maintenance of
the drainage system to be approved under condition 3 shall be submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The drainage
system shall thereafter be maintained in accordance with the approved
details unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In order to ensure that the drainage arrangements are
appropriate and in accordance with Policy CS2 of the Core
Strategy for the New Forest District outside the National Park
and the New Forest District Council and New Forest National
Park Authority Strategic Flood Risk Assessment for Local
Development Frameworks.

The development permitted by this planning permission shall be carried out
in accordance with the approved Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) Frank
Tyhurst dated February 2015 and the proposed finished floor level and flood
resistance/resilience measures recommended therein.

Reason:  To prevent flooding / minimise flood risk in accordance with
Policy CS6 of the Core Strategy for New Forest District outside
of the National Park. '

Before the commencement of development, an updated ecological report
shall be submitted to an approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
The updated report shall include detailed bat mitigation measures based on
an up-to-date bat survey; details of non-native plant species control; and
details of a general ecological mitigation plan. Development shall only take
place in accordance with the approved details.

Reason:  To safeguard ecological interests in accordance with Policy CS3

of the Core Strategy for New Forest District outside of the
National Park

Page 116



10.

No demolition/development shall take place/commence until a programme
of archaeological work including a Written Scheme of Investigation has
been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority in writing.
The scheme shall include an assessment of significance and research
questions; and:

a) The programme and methodology of site investigation and
recording;

b) The programme for post investigation assessment;

c) Provision to be made for analysis of the site investigation and
recording;

d) Provision to be made for publication and dissemination of the
analysis and records of the site investigation;

e) Provision to be made for archive deposition of the analysis and
records of the site investigation;

f) fNomination of a competent person or persons/organisation to
undertake the works set out within the Written Scheme of
Investigation.

No demolition/development shall take place other than in accordance with
the Written Scheme of Investigation approved under this condition.

Reason:  The development is located in an area of archaeological
significance where the recording of archaeological remains
should be carried out prior to the development taking place in
accordance with Policy DM1 of the Local Plan for the New
Forest District outside the National Park. (Part 2: Sites and
Development Management).

The development shall not be occupied until the site investigation and post
investigation assessment has been completed in accordance with the
programme set out in the Written Scheme of Investigation approved under
condition 7 and the provision made for analysis, publication and
dissemination of results and archive deposition has been secured.

Reason:  The development is located in an area of archaeological
significance where the site's archaeological interest should be
recorded in accordance with Policy DM1 of the Local Plan for the
New Forest District outside the National Park. (Part 2: Sites and
Development Management).

There shall be no tipping or piling of materials into the River Avon System
Site of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI).

Reason:  To safeguard to ecological interest of the adjacent SSSI in
accordance with Policy CS3 of the Core Strategy for New Forest
District outside of the National Park.

Before the commencement of development, details of the measures that are
to be put in place to ensure contractors are aware of the boundaries of the
adjacent Site of Special Scientific Interest shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Development shall only
proceed in accordance with the approved measures.

Page 117



11.

12.

13.

14.

Reason:  To safeguard to ecological interest of the adjacent SSSI in
accordance with Policy CS3 of the Core Strategy for New Forest
District outside of the National Park.

Samples and details of all external materials shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to development
commencing. Development shall only be carried out in accordance with the
approved details.

Reason:  To safeguard the character and setting of the Listed Building
and to protect the character and appearance of the Ringwood
Conservation Area in accordance with Policy CS3 of Core
Strategy for New Forest District outside of the National Park and
Policy DM1 of the Local Plan Part 2: Sites and Development
Management.

Sample panels of brickwork (showing bond and mortar details), boarding
and boundary wall details shall be prepared on site and shall be inspected
and approved by the Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement of
development . Development shall only be carried out in accordance with the
approved details.

Reason:  To safeguard the character and setting of the Listed Building
and to protect the character and appearance of the Ringwood
Conservation Area in accordance with Policy CS3 of Core
Strategy for New Forest District outside of the National Park and
Policy DM1 of the Local Plan Part 2: Sites and Development
Management.

Large scale drawings (elevations and sections) of the new and replacement
windows, timber doors and porch details shall be submitted to and approved
in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement of
development. Development shall only proceed in accordance with the
approved details.

Reason:  To safeguard the character and setting of the Listed Building
and to protect the character and appearance of the Ringwood Conservation
Area in accordance with Policy CS3 of Core Strategy for New Forest District
outside of the National Park and Policy DM1 of the Local Plan Part 2: Sites
and Development Management.

Large scale drawings (elevations and sections) of all chimneys, eaves,
verges, window cills, window heads and elevational details shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to
the commencement of development. Development shall only proceed in
accordance with the approved details.

Reason:  To safeguard the character and setting of the Listed Building
and to protect the character and appearance of the Ringwood
Conservation Area in accordance with Policy CS3 of Core
Strategy for New Forest District outside of the National Park and
Policy DM1 of the Local Plan Part 2: Sites and Development
Management.

Page 118



15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

Large scale drawings (elevations and sections) of all new low profile metal
conservation rooflights shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement of development.
Development shall only be carried out in accordance with the approved
details.

Reason:  To safeguard the character and setting of the Listed Building and
to protect the character and appearance of the Ringwood
Conservation Area in accordance with Policy CS3 of Core
Strategy for New Forest District outside of the National Park and
Policy DM1 of the Local Plan Part 2: Sites and Development
Management.

Large scale drawings (elevations and sections) of the new bin and cycle
store shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority prior to the commencement of development. Development shall
only be carried out in accordance with the approved details.

Reason:  To safeguard the character and setting of the Listed Building
and to protect the character and appearance of the Ringwood
Conservation Area in accordance with Policy CS3 of Core
Strategy for New Forest District outside of the National Park and
Policy DM1 of the Local Plan Part 2: Sites and Development
Management.

Large scale drawings (elevations and sections) of the new conservatory,
rear store, lift tower and lantern shall be submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement of
development. Development shall only be carried out in accordance with the
approved details.

Reason:  To safeguard the character and setting of the Listed Building
and to protect the character and appearance of the Ringwood
Conservation Area in accordance with Policy CS3 of Core
Strategy for New Forest District outside of the National Park and
Policy DM1 of the Local Plan Part 2: Sites and Development
Management.

No flues, ducts and vents shall be placed on the front elevations of the new
buildings unless details have first been submitted to and approved in writing
by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason:  To safeguard the character and setting of the Listed Building
and to protect the character and appearance of the Ringwood
Conservation Area in accordance with Policy CS3 of Core
Strategy for New Forest District outside of the National Park and
Policy DM1 of the Local Plan Part 2: Sites and Development
Management.

All new rainwater goods shall be cast aluminium, painted black and match
historic profiles and fixings.

Page 119



20.

21.

22.

Reason:  To safeguard the character and setting of the Listed Building
and to protect the character and appearance of the Ringwood
Conservation Area in accordance with Policy CS3 of Core
Strategy for New Forest District outside of the National Park and
Policy DM1 of the Local Plan Part 2: Sites and Development
Management.

Before development commences a scheme of landscaping of the site shall
be submitted for approval in writing by the Local Planning Authority. This
scheme shall include :

(a) the existing trees and shrubs which have been agreed to be
retained,;

(b) a specification for new planting (species, size, spacing and location);

(c) areas for hard surfacing and the materials to be used:

(d) the treatment of the boundaries of the site and all other means of
enclosure;

(e) a method and programme for its implementation and the means to
provide for its future maintenance.

No development shall take place unless these details have been approved
and then only in accordance with those details.

Reason: To ensure that the development takes place in an appropriate
way and to prevent inappropriate car parking to comply with
Policy CS2 of the Local Plan for the New Forest District outside
the National Park (Core Strategy).

All planting, seeding or turfing comprised in the approved details of
landscaping shall be carried out in the first planting and seeding seasons
following the occupation of 'the buildings or the completion of the
development, whichever is the sooner. Any trees or plants which within a
period of 5 years from the completion of the development die, are removed
or become seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next
planting season with others of similar size or species, unless the Local
Planning Authority gives written consent to any variation.

Reason:  To ensure the appearance and setting of the development is
satisfactory and to comply with Policy CS2 of the Local Plan for
New Forest District outside the National Park (Core Strategy).

Prior to the first occupation of any dwelling, the existing club extension
shown to be demolished shall have been demolished in full and prior to the
first occupation of the terrace of 3 dwellinghouses (units 1-3) all of the
proposed external works to the Listed Building including the erection of the
orangery extension, the lift shaft and the new / replacement windows and
doors and the associated external repairs shall have been implemented in
full.

Reason:  The development is considered acceptable as a whole.
However, partial implementation of the development without
delivering the proposed benefits to the Listed Building would
result in a development that would fail to adequately preserve or
enhance the site's historic context in accordance with Policy

Page 120



23.

24.

25.

26.

DM3 of the Core Strategy for New Forest District outside of the
National Park, Policy DM1 of the Local Plan Part 2: Sites and
Development Management.

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General
Permitted Development) Order 2015 (or any re-enactment of that Order) no
extension or alterations otherwise approved by Classes A, B or C of Part 1
of Schedule 2 to the Order, garage or other outbuilding otherwise approved
by Class E of Part 1 of Schedule 2 to the Order, or means of enclosure
otherwise approved by Class A of Part 2 of Schedule 2 to the Order shall be
erected or carried out without express planning permission first having been
granted.

Reason: In view of the intensity of the development and the site's
sensitive historic context and the flood risk, ecological and
amenity issues affecting the site, this is a site where small scale
alterations could potentially have a significant impact, and the
Local Planning Authority would therefore wish to ensure that any
future development proposals do not adversely affect the
amenities of the area and the site's historic context, contrary to
Policy CS3 of the Core Strategy for New Forest District outside
of the National Park and Policy DM1 of the Local Plan Part 2:
Sites and Development Management.

Before development commences, the proposed slab levels in relationship to
the existing ground levels set to an agreed datum shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Development shall only
take place in accordance with those details which have been approved.

Reason: To ensure that the development takes place in an appropriate
way in accordance with policy CS2 of the Local Plan for the New
Forest District outside the National Park (Core Strategy).

The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until the spaces
shown on the approved plans for the parking of motor vehicles have been
provided. The spaces shown on the approved plans for the parking of motor
vehicles shall be retained and kept available for the parking of motor
vehicles for the dwellings hereby approved at all times.

Reason: To ensure adequate parking provision is made in the interest of
highway safety and in accordance with Policy CS2 and CS24
of the Local Plan for the New Forest outside of the National
Park (Core Strategy).

The bicycle store to be approved under condition 16 / the approved cycle
storage areas shall be provided before any of the new buildings are first
occupied and the approved cycle storage areas shall thereafter be
permanently retained thereafter.

Reason:  To ensure adequate cycle parking is provided in accordance

with Policy CS2 and Policy CS24 of the Core Strategy for New
Forest District outside of the National Park.

Page 121



27. No development shall be carried out until proposals for the mitigation of the
impact of the development on the New Forest and Solent Coast European
Nature Conservation Sites have been submitted to and approved in writing
by the local planning authority, and the local planning authority has
confirmed in writing that the provision of the proposed mitigation has been
secured. Such proposals must:

(a) Provide for mitigation in accordance with the New Forest District
Council Mitigation Strategy for European Sites SPD, adopted in June
2014 (or any amendment to or replacement for this document in
force at the time), or for mitigation to at least an equivalent effect:;

(b) Provide details of the manner in which the proposed mitigation is to
be secured. Details to be submitted shall include arrangements for
the ongoing maintenance and monitoring of any Suitable Alternative
Natural Green Spaces which form part of the proposed mitigation
measures together with arrangements for permanent public access
thereto.

(c) The development shall be carried out in accordance with and subject
to the approved proposals.

Reason:  The impacts of the proposed development must be mitigated
before any development is carried out in order to ensure that
there will be no adverse impacts on the New Forest and Solent
Coast Nature Conservation Sites in accordance with Policy DM3
of the Local Plan Part 2 and the New Forest District Council
Mitigation Strategy for European Sites Supplementary Planning
Document.

Notes for inclusion on certificate:

1. In accordance with paragraphs 186 and 187 of the National Planning Policy
Framework and Article 35 of the Town and Country Planning (Development
Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015, New Forest District Council
takes a positive and proactive approach, seeking solutions to any problems
arising in the handling of development proposals so as to achieve,
whenever possible, a positive outcome by giving clear advice to applicants.

In this case, the application proposals were the subject of lengthy
negotiations both before the application was submitted and during the
application process and this enabled a positive recommendation to be
made.

2. In discharging condition No. 27 above the Applicant is advised that
appropriate mitigation is required before the development is commenced,
either by agreeing to fund the Council’'s Mitigation Projects or otherwise
providing mitigation to an equivalent standard. Further information about
how this can be achieved can be found here
http://www.newforest.gov.uk/article/16478/

Further Information:

Major Team
Telephone: 023 8028 5345 (Option 1)

Page 122



"9[eos
0} 8q JOU [|IM } ‘Jaulsiul 8y}
wouyy ue|d siy Bunuud Jf "g'N

0Gcl 1 °feds

soviNs

y28LLIGL

poomBury

19848 JSOM 61

gnio |eroog poombury
fe :oN way]

910z }snbny

Q9)IWo) [0J3U0D
juswdojsaaqg buluueld

Vd. e¥OS

}sinypui

1nog sale|ddy

jounoy jousiqg 159404 MaN
jonucy Buipjing pue Bujuueid
Jsbeuepy 90iNI8S

wooi9 pirneq

3N AoB}saloymeu Mmm
000S 8208 €20 1oL

TIDNNOD LDIY¥isia

1S910] MIN

022920001 Aaning asueuplO 910z siybu aseqgejep pue JubuAdoo umold @

‘OPISUOAY

)

juowifeg

MBIA UOAY

ejeas

pug spespy

shkemiauio)

ynod ’
5 ./QCNO

esnoH soyemybug

sied 19M490d 1[2pURARY i1eD smepng
uhihoy
M3IA MOpeai B

SMojii QUL

N

uvu [y e




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 3k

Planning Development Control Committee 10 August 2016 Item 3 k

Application Number: 16/10022 Full Planning Permission

Site: 29 FAIRVIEW DRIVE, HYTHE S045 5GX

Development: Single-storey rear extension; raised decking; fenestration
alterations & handrail to side elevation; access alterations to No

29; two bungalows; access; parking

Applicant: Mr Royston-Airey
Target Date: 03/03/2016
Target Date: 31/08/16

1 REASON FOR COMMITTEE CONSIDERATION

To agree the waiving of the affordable housing contribution; previous Committee
Consideration (Item 3i March 2016)

2 DEVELOPMENT PLAN AND OTHER CONSTRAINTS
Built-up area

3 DEVELOPMENT PLAN, OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

Core Strategy

Objectives
1. Special qualities, local distinctiveness and a high quality living environment

3. Housing
6. Towns, villages and built environment quality

Policies

CS2: Design quality

CS15: Affordable housing contribution requirements from developments
CS24: Transport considerations

CS25: Developers contributions

Local Plan Part 2 Sites and Development Management Development Plan
Document

DM3: Mitigation of impacts on European nature conservation sites
4 RELEVANT LEGISLATION AND GOVERNMENT ADVICE

Section 38 Development Plan

Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004

National Planning Policy Framework

5 RELEVANT SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE AND DOCUMENTS

SPD - Housing Design, Density and Character
SPD - Mitigation Strategy for European Sites

Page 125



10

1

12

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

6.1 Erection of new dwelling with integral garage & form new access
(93/52565) - refused 13/9/93

6.2  Single-storey rear extension; raised decking; fenestration alterations &
handrail to side elevation; access alterations to No 29; two dwellings; new
access; associated parking (15/11604) - withdrawn 23/12/15

PARISH / TOWN COUNCIL COMMENTS

Hythe & Dibden Parish Council: recommend refusal - there is potential for the
development to overlook properties of Whittington Close; overdevelopment of the
site; concerns that the development could increase the possibility of flooding into
Whittington Close

COUNCILLOR COMMENTS
None
CONSULTEE COMMENTS

9.1 Hampshire County Council Highway Engineer: No objection subject to
conditions on car and cycle parking

9.2  Tree Officer: No objection subject to tree protection condition

9.3 Land Drainage: No objection subject to conditions
REPRESENTATIONS RECEIVED

10.1 4 letters of objection from local residents/neighbouring properties:-
overdevelopment of the site; development would be out of keeping with
other properties in Fairview Drive; inadequate on-site parking; adverse
impact on highway safety; concerns about adequacy of drainage
arrangements and the potential for the development to cause flooding of
downhill properties; adverse impact on trees; loss of trees and vegetation
would result in overlooking of properties to rear to detriment of
neighbours' privacy; overlooking of property to north side; concerns about
eaves and guttering overhanging boundary

CRIME & DISORDER IMPLICATIONS

No relevant considerations
LOCAL FINANCE CONSIDERATIONS

If this development is granted permission and the dwellings built, the Council will
receive £2304 in each of the following six years from the dwellings' completion,
and as a result, a total of £13,824 in government grant under the New Homes
Bonus will be received.

From the 6 April 2015 New Forest District Council began charging the
Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) on new residential developments.

Based on the information provided at the time of this report this development has
a CIL liability of £10,632.00.

Tables setting out all contributions are at the end of this report.

Page 126




13

14

WORKING WITH THE APPLICANT/AGENT

In accordance with paragraphs 186 and 187 of the National Planning Policy
Framework and Article 35 of the Town and Country Planning (Development
Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015, New Forest District Council take
a positive and proactive approach, seeking solutions to any problems arising in
the handling of development proposals so as to achieve, whenever possible, a
positive outcome.

This is achieved by

e Strongly encouraging those proposing development to use the very
thorough pre application advice service the Council provides.

e Working together with applicants/agents to ensure planning applications
are registered as expeditiously as possible.

» Advising agents/applicants early on in the processing of an application
(through the release of a Parish Briefing Note) as to the key issues
relevant to the application.

e Updating applicants/agents of issues that arise in the processing of their
applications through the availability of comments received on the web or
by direct contact when relevant.

e Working together with applicants/agents to closely manage the planning
application process to allow an opportunity to negotiate and accept
amendments on applications (particularly those that best support the
Core Strategy Objectives) when this can be done without compromising
government performance requirements.

e Advising applicants/agents as soon as possible as to concerns that
cannot be dealt with during the processing of an application allowing for a
timely withdrawal and re-submission or decision based on the scheme as
originally submitted if this is what the applicant/agent requires.

e When necessary discussing with applicants/agents proposed conditions
especially those that would restrict the use of commercial properties or
land when this can be done without compromising government
performance requirements.

In this case, all the above apply and as the application was acceptable as
submitted no specific further actions were required.
ASSESSMENT
14.1  Introduction
14.1.1  This application was initially considered at the March 2016
Development Control Committee. The original Committee report is set

out in the following paragraphs 14.2.1 to 14.2.14

14.2 March 2016 Committee Report

14.2.1  Seen from the road to the front of the site, 29 Fairview Drive is a
detached bungalow. The property does, however, have some
accommodation within its roof space that is served by a rear dormer
and a small gable-end window. Furthermore, the property occupies a
sloping site, so that from the rear, the ground floor of the dwelling is
elevated above a small basement and adjacent areas of rear garden.
The property also has a rear conservatory and balconies that are both
elevated above adjacent areas of rear garden. The property occupies

Page 127



14.2.2

14.2.3

14.2.4

a much larger plot than is typical of the area. In places, the plot is very
steeply sloping. Although the front parts of the site, closest to Fairview
Drive are either flat or gently sloping, there is quite a dramatic downhill
slope to the rear part of the site, meaning that properties to the rear in
Whittington Close are set at a much lower level than the dwelling at 29
Fairview Drive. The site also slopes downwards from south to north,
meaning that the adjacent chalet-style bungalow at 35 Fairview Drive
is set at a lower level than the application site. The adjacent chalet
bungalow at 27 Fairview Drive is set at a similar level to the existing
dwelling on the application site. The steeply sloping rear parts of the
site are thickly vegetated with shrubs and mature (mainly deciduous)
trees.

The application seeks to remodel the existing dwelling. The northern
end of the existing building would be demolished, as would the rear
conservatory. A new flat-roofed rear extension is proposed across the
full length of the retained rear elevation that would lead out onto a new
raised decking / balcony area. To the north side of the remodelled
dwelling, it is proposed to build 2 new detached bungalows of a similar
design. 2 new vehicular crossovers are proposed onto Fairview Drive,
one being for the existing dwelling and the other for one of the
proposed new dwellings. 2 on-site car parking spaces would be
provided for each dwelling. The application replicates an application
that was withdrawn in December 2015 because of difficulties in
agreeing Section 106 legal agreement requirements within the
requisite 8-week timeframe.

It should be noted that an application for a single 2-storey dwelling was
refused planning permission in 1993 as it was deemed to be intrusive
and out of keeping with the site's surroundings. It was also considered
that the dwelling would have an overbearing impact on the
neighbouring property and furthermore, it was felt the proposal would
adversely affect a group of trees.

The development now proposed is a very different proposal to the
scheme refused planning permission 23 years ago, and policies have
materially changed since that time. Seen from the street, the proposed
dwellings would be set in plots that would be 10.5 metres to 12 metres
in width. The plots would be slightly narrower than is typical of other
properties in Fairview Drive, but not so much narrower as to appear
out of keeping in the streetscene. For example, 27 Fairview Drive has
a plot width of 11 metres and the recently approved dwellings at
Cussens Day Centre would have plot widths of about 11-12 metres.
The dwellings have been designed to have reasonable areas of
lawned front gardens, and therefore the frontage of the plots would not
be too dominated by hardstanding. The single-storey design of the 2
new dwellings would be sympathetic to the site's context, and the
remodelled existing dwelling would also be visually appropriate. The
dwellings would have acceptable areas of useable rear garden.
Because of the site's steeply sloping nature, it is felt that the proposal
would only be acceptable if permitted development rights are removed,
given that normally 'permitted' development could have an
unacceptably poor visual impact in this context. Overall, subject to
such a condition, and conditions to secure appropriate materials, and
landscaping details, the development is one that would have an
acceptable impact on the character and appearance of the area.

Page 128



14.2.5

14.2.6

14.2.7

14.2.8

14.2.9

The proposed single-story bungalow adjacent to 35 Fairview Drive
would have some impact on the outlook of that neighbouring property,
which does have windows on its side elevation facing the application
site. However, given the proposed bungalow would be relatively
modest in height with a fully hipped roof, and given the 7.5 metre gap
between the 2 buildings, it is felt the development's impact on the light
and outlook of 35 Fairview Drive would be within acceptable limits
(even taking into account changes of levels). The remodelled existing
dwelling would not have a significant additional impact on the
neighbouring property at 27 Fairview Drive, and the development's
impact on this property is considered to be acceptable. The properties
in Whittington Close to the rear of the site would be set about 35 to 40
metres away from the proposed new bungalows and remodelled
dwelling. Even taking into account the marked difference in levels, it is
felt this degree of separation would be sufficient to ensure that the
privacy of properties in Whittington Close is not undermined. Overall, it
is considered that the proposed development would have an
acceptable relationship to neighbouring dwellings. It should be noted
that the submitted plans do not suggest that eaves and guttering
would overhang the neighbouring property, but in any event this would
be a civil matter.

Individually, the existing trees on the site have poor form, and
therefore they are not worthy of protection with a Tree Preservation
Order. The dwellings would be sufficiently close to trees that some
cutting back and removal of trees will be necessary to accommodate
the proposed development. It is felt that the likely tree loss arising from
this proposal would be justified, given the trees' poor form, subject to
securing appropriate replacement planting through a landscape
condition.

The new access points and the level of on-site parking that would be
secured would be acceptable from a highway safety perspective.

Concerns have been raised about the proposed drainage
arrangements and the potential for increased surface water runoff to
cause flooding of adjacent properties. These concerns are
understood, but having regard to the comments of the Council's
drainage team, it is felt that an acceptable drainage scheme could
reasonably be provided for this development, and this is a matter that
could be reasonably conditioned.

In accordance with the Habitat Regulations 2010 an assessment has
been carried out of the likely significant effects associated with the
recreational impacts of the residential development provided for in the
Local Plan on both the New Forest and the Solent European Nature
Conservation Sites. It has been concluded that likely significant
adverse effects cannot be ruled out without appropriate mitigation
projects being secured. In the event that planning permission is
granted for the proposed development, a condition is recommended
that would prevent the development from proceeding until the
applicant has secured appropriate mitigation, either by agreeing to
fund the Council's Mitigation Projects or otherwise providing mitigation
to an equivalent standard. In this case, the full mitigation contribution
that would be required would be £8500, which could potentially be met
in part through CIL payments.

Page 129



14.2.10

14.2.11

14.3
14.3.1

14.3.2

14.3.3

In line with Core Strategy Policy CS15, the proposed development is
one that would be expected to secure a contribution to affordable
housing. In this case, the target contribution would be £50,140. At the
time of writing, a Section 106 legal agreement remains to be
completed, although it is understood that the applicants are willing to
enter the requisite agreement.

Overall, the proposed development would be consistent with Local
Plan policies and objectives. The development would be appropriate to
its context and could be implemented without causing harm to the
character and appearance of the area and the amenities and privacy
of neighbouring properties. The development would have an
acceptable impact on trees and highway safety. Subject to conditions
and subject to the prior completion of a Section 106 legal agreement
to secure contributions to affordable housing, the development is one
that can reasonably be recommended for permission.

Post March 2016 Committee update

At their March 2016 meeting, the Development Control Committee
accepted the officers' recommendation and resolved that the
Executive Head of Economy, Housing and Planning be authorised to
grant planning permission subject to conditions and subject to the prior
completion of a Section 106 legal agreement in respect of affordable
housing provision.

Since March Committee, work has been undertaken in preparing and
drawing up the Section 106 legal agreement that the Committee
resolution requires to be completed. However, the requisite Section
106 legal agreement has never actually been completed. The need to
complete the Section 106 legal agreement has now been overtaken by
other events. Specifically:-

On 19th May 2016 the Government issued planning guidance setting
out the specific circumstances in which contributions for affordable
housing and tariff style planning obligations (section 106 agreements)
should not be sought from small scale and self-build development.
This guidance has been reissued following the order of the Court of

Appeal dated 13th May 2016 (West Berkshire District Council and
Another v The Secretary of State for Communities and Local
Government). The planning guidance specifies the circumstances in
which contributions should not be sought as follows:

“Contributions should not be sought from developments of 10 units or
less and which have a maximum combined gross floorspace of no
more than 1,000 sqm; In designated rural areas, local planning
authorities may choose to apply a lower threshold of 5 units or less...;
Affordable housing and tariff style contributions should not be sought
from any development consisting only of the construction of a

residential annex or extension to an existing house”

This national guidance is at odds with Policy CS15 of the Council’s
Core Strategy which requires many small scale housing developments
including the current application proposals to make affordable housing
provision.

Page 130



14.3.4  The presumption in favour of the development plan remains, in that
the decision should be taken in accordance with the plan unless
material considerations indicate otherwise. The new guidance is a
material consideration which post-dates the adoption of the Local Plan.
It is for the Council to decide which should prevail in the determination
of a planning application. However, the Secretary of State, through his
Inspectors can be anticipated to give greater weight to the
Government’s national guidance unless there are reasons to make an
exception.

14.3.5  While the need for affordable housing in this District is pressing, this in
itself is unlikely to be considered by the Secretary of State as sufficient
reason for the Council to apply its own development plan policy rather
than applying national policy. Therefore, it is recommended that no
affordable housing or tariff style contributions are sought from this
development, in accordance with national Planning Practice Guidance,
contrary to the provisions of Policy CS15 of the Core Strategy.
Accordingly, planning permission should now be granted for this
proposal.

14.3.6  In coming to this recommendation, consideration has been given to
the rights set out in Article 8 (Right to respect for private and family
life) and Article 1 of the First Protocol (Right to peaceful enjoyment of
possessions) of the European Convention on Human Rights. Whilst it
is recognised that there may be an interference with these rights and
the rights of other third parties, such interference has to be balanced
with the like rights of the applicant to develop the land in the way
proposed. In this case it is considered that the protection of the rights
and freedoms of the applicant outweigh any possible interference that
may result to any third party.

15. RECOMMENDATION

Grant Subject to Conditions

Proposed Conditions:

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of
three years from the date of this permission.

Reason:  To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning

Act 1990 as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

2. The development permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the
following approved plans: ra sht 3 rev X, ra sht 5 rev X, ra sht 4 rev X, ra sht
2rev X, rasht1rev X, rasht 6 rev X, ra sht 7 rev X.

Reason:  To ensure satisfactory provision of the development.

Page 131



No development shall be carried out until proposals for the mitigation of the
impact of the development on the New Forest and Solent Coast European
Nature Conservation Sites have been submitted to and approved in writing
by the local planning authority, and the local planning authority has
confirmed in writing that the provision of the proposed mitigation has been
secured. Such proposals must:

(a) Provide for mitigation in accordance with the New Forest District
Council Mitigation Strategy for European Sites SPD, adopted in June
2014 (or any amendment to or replacement for this document in
force at the time), or for mitigation to at least an equivalent effect;

(b) Provide details of the manner in which the proposed mitigation is to
be secured. Details to be submitted shall include arrangements for
the ongoing maintenance and monitoring of any Suitable Alternative
Natural Green Spaces which form part of the proposed mitigation
measures together with arrangements for permanent public access
thereto.

(c) The development shall be carried out in accordance with and subject
to the approved proposals.

Reason:  The impacts of the proposed development must be mitigated
before any development is carried out in order to ensure that
there will be no adverse impacts on the New Forest and Solent
Coast Nature Conservation Sites in accordance with Policy DM3
of the Local Plan Part 2 and the New Forest District Council
Mitigation Strategy for European Sites Supplementary Planning
Document.

Before first occupation of the development hereby approved the applicant
must design and install a surface water sustainable system to cater for the
new impermeable areas (i.e. roofs) on the proposed development such that
no additional or increased rate of flow of surface water will drain to any
water body or adjacent land for storms up to 1 in 100 years including climate
change.

Reason: In order to ensure that the drainage arrangements are
appropriate and in accordance with Policy CS2 of the Local Plan
for the New Forest District outside the National Park (Core
Strategy) and the New Forest District Council and New Forest
National Park Authority Strategic Flood Risk Assessment for
Local Development Frameworks.

Before the development is first occupied, details of the future maintenance
of the approved drainage system shall be submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved drainage scheme
shall thereafter be maintained in accordance with the approved details at all
times.

Reason:  In order to ensure that the drainage arrangements are
appropriate and in accordance with Policy CS2 of the Local Plan
for the New Forest District outside the National Park (Core
Strategy) and the New Forest District Council and New Forest
National Park Authority Strategic Flood Risk Assessment for
Local Development Frameworks.

Page 132



Before development commences, samples or exact details of the facing and
roofing materials to be used shall be submitted to and approved in writing by
the Local Planning Authority. The development shall only be implemented
in accordance with the approved details.

Reason:  To ensure an acceptable appearance of the development in
accordance with policy CS2 of the Core Strategy for the New
Forest District outside the National Park.

Before development commences a scheme of landscaping of the site shall
be submitted for approval in writing by the Local Planning Authority. This
scheme shall include :

(a) the existing trees and shrubs which have been agreed to be
retained;

(b) a specification for new planting including replacement tree planting
(species, size, spacing and location);

(c) areas for hard surfacing and the materials to be used;

(d) the treatment of the boundaries of the site and other means of
enclosure;

(e) a method and programme for its implementation and the means to
provide for its future maintenance.

No development shall take place unless these details have been approved
and then only in accordance with those details.

Reason:  To ensure that the development takes place in an appropriate
way and to prevent inappropriate car parking to comply with
Policy CS2 of the Local Plan for the New Forest District outside
the National Park (Core Strategy).

All planting, seeding or turfing comprised in the approved details of
landscaping shall be carried out in the first planting and seeding seasons
following the occupation of the buildings or the completion of the
development, whichever is the sooner. Any trees or plants which within a
period of 5 years from the completion of the development die, are removed
or become seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next
planting season with others of similar size or species, unless the Local
Planning Authority gives written consent to any variation.

Reason:  To ensure the appearance and setting of the development is
satisfactory and to comply with Policy CS2 of the Local Plan for
New Forest District outside the National Park (Core Strategy).

Before development commences the following levels details shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority:-

a) the proposed slab levels of the dwellings in relationship to the
existing ground levels set to an agreed datum;

b) the proposed finished garden levels relative to existing levels
(supported by cross-sections).

Development shall only take place in accordance with those details which
have been approved.

Page 133



Reason:  To ensure that the development takes place in an appropriate
way in accordance with policy CS2 of the Local Plan for the New
Forest District outside the National Park (Core Strategy).

10. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General
Permitted Development) Order 2015 (or any re-enactment of that Order) no
extension otherwise approved by Classes A, B or C of Part 1 of Schedule 2
to the Order, or garage or other outbuilding otherwise approved by Class E
of Part 1 of Schedule 2 to the Order, shall be erected or carried out without
express planning permission first having been granted.

Reason:  In view of the physical characteristics of the site, the Local
Planning Authority would wish to ensure that any future
development proposals do not adversely affect the visual
amenities of the area and the amenities of neighbouring
properties, contrary to Policy CS2 of the Local Plan for the New
Forest District outside the National Park (Core Strategy).

11. The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until the spaces
shown on approved plans for the parking of motor vehicles and cycles have
been provided. These areas shall subsequently be kept available for the
parking of motor vehicles and cycles for the dwellings hereby approved at all
times.

Reason:  To ensure adequate parking provision is made in the interest of
highway safety, and to promote sustainable travel in accordance
with Policies CS2 and CS24 of the Local Plan for the New
Forest outside of the National Park (Core Strategy).

Notes for inclusion on certificate:

1. In accordance with paragraphs 186 and 187 of the National Planning Policy
Framework and Article 35 of the Town and Country Planning (Development
Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015, New Forest District Council
takes a positive and proactive approach, seeking solutions to any problems
arising in the handling of development proposals so as to achieve,
whenever possible, a positive outcome by giving clear advice to applicants.

In this case, all the above apply and as the application was acceptable as
submitted no specific further actions were required.

2. In discharging condition No. 3 above the Applicant is advised that
appropriate mitigation is required before the development is commenced,
either by agreeing to fund the Council’s Mitigation Projects or otherwise
providing mitigation to an equivalent standard. Further information about
how this can be achieved can be found here
http://www.newforest.gov.uk/article/16478/

Further Information:

Major Team
Telephone: 023 8028 5345 (Option 1)

Page 134



"g|eos
0} 94 JoU [IM }1 ‘Joulsjul aU

woyy ueld siyy Bupuud §| "g'N |

0ScL L 9[eds

90L¥NS
Zz00L/91
ayMuH

aAlIg meinle ]
62

3E -ON wsjj

910z 3snbny

29 IILLION [0JU0D
juawdojanag bBuiuueld

vd. €¥0S

}sinypui]

uno) sane|ddy

J1oUNOY JousI }s8104 MaN
joluon Buipjing pue Buiuue|d
Jsbeuepy 90iAI8S

woois) pired

3n°AoBysalomauMmm
000G 8208 €20 ‘oL

TIDNNOD 121idl1sia

1S910,] MON]

....................

,,,,,

A

anuay Aeg

Y

—NTA

»«/ 022920001 Asning soueuplO 9102 siybu eseqejep pue ybuAdoo umoin @ 4 #

\22

TN

ANAY
Wy

T

T 2

\ =

~
-
L] Mv\l e IS




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 3|

Planning Development Control Committee 10 August 2016 Item 3 |

Application Number: 16/10337 Full Planning Permission

Site:

SITE OF 14 SALISBURY ROAD, TOTTON S040 3PZ

Development: One three-storey block of 4 flats; bin & cycle store; demolition of

existing (part retrospective)

Applicant: Mr Smith
Target Date: 05/05/2016
Target Date: 10/08/2016

REASON FOR COMMITTEE CONSIDERATION
Contrary to policy

DEVELOPMENT PLAN AND OTHER CONSTRAINTS
Built up area

DEVELOPMENT PLAN, OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

Core Strategy
Obijectives

1. Special qualities, local distinctiveness and a high quality living environment
3. Housing
6. Towns, villages and built environment quality

Policies

CS1: Sustainable development principles

CS2: Design quality

CS10: The spatial strategy

CS15: Affordable housing contribution requirements from developments
CS24: Transport considerations

CS25: Developers contributions

Local Plan Part 2 Sites and Development Management Development Plan
Document _

NPPF1: National Planning Policy Framework — Presumption in favour of
sustainable development
DM3: Mitigation of impacts on European nature conservation sites

RELEVANT LEGISLATION AND GOVERNMENT ADVICE
Section 38 Development Plan
Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004

National Planning Policy Framework
Achieving Sustainable Development

Page 137



10

11

12

NPPF Ch.2 - Ensuring the vitality of town centres
NPPF Ch. 7 - Requiring good design

RELEVANT SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE AND DOCUMENTS

SPD - Housing Design, Density and Character
SPD - Parking Standards

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

6.1 12/99215 - one three-storey block of flats, bin and cycle store, demolition
of existing. Granted 13.11.12 (reserved matters)

6.2 12/98375 - one three storey block of 4 flats, bin and cycle store,
demolition of existing. Granted 25.4.12 (outline consent)

PARISH / TOWN COUNCIL COMMENTS

Totton and Eling Town Council - recommend permission but would accept a
delegated decision.

COUNCILLOR COMMENTS
None received
CONSULTEE COMMENTS

9.1 Land Drainage - recommend approval subject to condition
9.2 Ministry of Defence - no safeguarding objections

9.3 Southern Gas Networks - offer advice
REPRESENTATIONS RECEIVED

Four letters of objection have been received with the following concerns:

lack of parking

cycle stores likely to be used for garden furniture and are of no value
restricted access for emergency vehicles

over development

rooms too small

loss of property value

could conflict with covenant

loss of hedge/wildlife

loss of light and privacy

CRIME & DISORDER IMPLICATIONS

None

LOCAL FINANCE CONSIDERATIONS

If this development is granted permission and the dwellings built, the Council will
receive £4,608 in each of the following six years from the dwellings' completion,
and as a result, a total of £27,648 in government grant under the New Homes

Bonus will be received.
From the 6 April 2015 New Forest District Council began charging the

Page 138



13

14

Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) on new residential developments. Based
on the information provided at the time of this report this development has a CIL
liability of £14,000.00.

Tables setting out all contributions are at the end of this report.
WORKING WITH THE APPLICANT/AGENT

In accordance with paragraphs 186 and 187 of the National Planning Policy
Framework and Article 35 of the Town and Country Planning (Development
Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015, New Forest District Council
take a positive and proactive approach, seeking solutions to any problems
arising in the handling of development proposals so as to achieve, whenever
possible, a positive outcome.

This is achieved by

e Strongly encouraging those proposing development to use the very
thorough pre application advice service the Council provides.

e Working together with applicants/agents to ensure planning applications
are registered as expeditiously as possible.

e Advising agents/applicants early on in the processing of an application
(through the release of a Parish Briefing Note) as to the key issues
relevant to the application.

e Updating applicants/agents of issues that arise in the processing of their
applications through the availability of comments received on the web or
by direct contact when relevant.

* Working together with applicants/agents to closely manage the planning
application process to allow an opportunity to negotiate and accept
amendments on applications (particularly those that best support the
Core Strategy Objectives) when this can be done without compromising
government performance requirements.

» Advising applicants/agents as soon as possible as to concerns that
cannot be dealt with during the processing of an application allowing for
a timely withdrawal and re-submission or decision based on the scheme
as originally submitted if this is what the applicant/agent requires.

* When necessary discussing with applicants/agents proposed conditions
especially those that would restrict the use of commercial properties or
land when this can be done without compromising government
performance requirements.

As the site has been cleared since the last application was granted, more details
were considered appropriate in respect of the hedge which was previously
shown to be retained and formed an important feature between the site and
public car park which has enabled a positive recommendation to be made.

ASSESSMENT

14.1  The site lies within the built up area of Totton at the edge of a residential
area adjacent to the Town Centre. To the south east, it is adjacent to
one of the public car parks within the Town Centre. It is presently fenced
off following the demolition of the former detached dwelling and
clearance of much of the vegetation including the hedge along the
boundary with the car park.

Page 139



14.2

14.3

14.4

14.5

14.6

14.7

The proposal entails the provision of a block of 4 small units of
accommodation (1 x 2-bed, 2 x 1-bed and a studio) together with
associated bin and cycle storage provision. Externally, the proposed
building is as previously approved although due to internal layout
changes, the front door is now false. The cycle store is now shown a
little further away from the hedge so the front is in line with the proposed
fence to provide private amenity space for the ground floor occupier.

Visually, there are no objections to the provision of the building which is
the same design as the previous consent. Similarly, there are no
significant impacts on residential amenity given the proposal is as
previously approved. Moving the cycle store away from the boundary
would enable its proper maintenance whilst a new hedge can be planted
outside of the boundary fence and have space to mature.

The approved scheme was for the hedge to be retained and a new fence
provided inside the site. This was ideal as it enabled the site to remain
private from the car park whilst maintaining a green frontage to the south
east which is quite visible from Salisbury Road. The current proposal
replicates this although the hedge will need to be planted and details will
be requested to ensure that an appropriate mix is achieved.

On 19th May 2016 the Government issued planning guidance setting out
the specific circumstances in which contributions for affordable housing
and tariff style planning obligations (section 106 agreements) should not
be sought from small scale and self-build development. This guidance

has been reissued following the order of the Court of Appeal dated 13th
May 2016 (West Berkshire District Council and Another v The Secretary
of State for Communities and Local Government). The planning
guidance specifies the circumstances in which contributions should not
be sought as follows:

“Contributions should not be sought from developments of 10 units or
less and which have a maximum combined gross floorspace of no more
than 1,000 sqm; In designated rural areas, local planning authorities
may choose to apply a lower threshold of 5 units or less...;

Affordable housing and tariff style contributions should not be sought
from any development consisting only of the construction of a residential
annex or extension to an existing house”

This national guidance is at odds with Policy CS15 of the Council’s Core
Strategy which requires many small scale housing developments
including the current application proposals to make affordable housing
provision.

The presumption in favour of the development plan remains, in that the
decision should be taken in accordance with the plan unless material
considerations indicate otherwise. The new guidance is a material
consideration which post-dates the adoption of the Local Plan. It is for
the Council to decide which should prevail in the determination of a
planning application. However, the Secretary of State, through his
Inspectors, can be anticipated to give greater weight to the
Government’s national guidance unless there are reasons to make an
exception.

Page 140



14.8

14.9

14.10

14.11

While the need for affordable housing in this District is pressing, this in
itself is unlikely to be considered by the Secretary of State as sufficient
reason for the Council to apply its own development plan policy rather
than applying national policy. Therefore it is recommended that no
affordable housing or tariff style contributions are sought from this
development, in accordance with national Planning Practice Guidance,
contrary to the provisions of Policy CS15 of the Core Strategy.

The application still generates a requirement for a CIL payment to be
made and in accordance with the Habitat Regulations 2010 an
assessment has been carried out of the likely significant effects
associated with the recreational impacts of the residential development
provided for in the Local Plan on both the New Forest and the Solent
European Nature Conservation Sites. It has been concluded that likely
significant adverse effects cannot be ruled out without appropriate
mitigation projects being secured. In the event that planning permission
is granted for the proposed development, a condition is recommended
that would prevent the development from proceeding until the applicant
has secured appropriate mitigation, either by agreeing to fund the
Council's Mitigation Projects or otherwise providing mitigation to an
equivalent standard.

In conclusion the proposed development is considered acceptable in the
location particularly having regard to the fact that consent has already
been granted for a very similar scheme.

In coming to this recommendation, consideration has been given to the
rights set out in Article 8 (Right to respect for private and family life) and
Article 1 of the First Protocol (Right to peaceful enjoyment of
possessions) of the European Convention on Human Rights. Whilst it is
recognised that there may be an interference with these rights and the
rights of other third parties, such interference has to be balanced with
the like rights of the applicant to develop the land in the way proposed.
In this case it is considered that the protection of the rights and
freedoms of the applicant outweigh any possible interference that may
result to any third party.

Section 106 Contributions Summary Table

Proposal:

Type of Contribution | NFDC Policy Developer Proposed | Difference
Requirement Provision

No. of Affordable 1

dwellings

Habitats Mitigation

Financial Contribution £9,200

CIL Summary Table

Description of GIA New GIA Existing |GIA Net Increase |CIL Liability
Class
Dwelling houses 175 0 175 £14,000.00

Page 141




15. RECOMMENDATION

Grant Subject to Conditions

Proposed Conditions:

1.

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of
three years from the date of this permission.

Reason: To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning
Act 1990 as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

The development permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the
following approved plans: Design and Access Statement, biodiversity
Checklist, C16/013.01, C16/013.02, C16/013.03, C16/013.04B, C16/013.05,
C16/013.06.

Reason: To ensure satisfactory provision of the development.

Before development commences, samples or exact details of the facing and
roofing materials to be used shall be submitted to and approved in writing by
the Local Planning Authority. The development shall only be implemented
in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: To ensure an acceptable appearance of the building in
accordance with policy CS2 of the Core Strategy for the New
Forest District outside the National Park.

Before the occupation of the development hereby approved, a scheme of
landscaping of the site shall be submitted for approval in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. This scheme shall include:

(a) the existing trees and shrubs which have been agreed to be
retained;

(b) a specification for new planting (species, size, spacing and location);

(c) areas for hard surfacing and the materials to be used;

(d) other means of enclosure;

(e) a method and programme for its implementation and the means to
provide for its future maintenance.

No occupation shall take place unless these details have been approved
and then only in accordance with those details.

Reason: To ensure that the development takes place in an appropriate
way and to prevent inappropriate car parking to comply with
Policy CS2 of the Local Plan for the New Forest District outside
the National Park (Core Strategy).

Page 142



Before first occupation of the development hereby approved the applicant
must design and install a surface water sustainable system to cater for the
new impermeable areas (i.e. roofs) on the proposed development such that
no additional or increased rate of flow of surface water will drain to any
water body or adjacent land for storms up to 1 in 100 years including climate
change.

Reason: In order to ensure that the drainage arrangements are
appropriate and in accordance with Policy CS6 of the Core
Strategy for the New Forest District outside the National Park
and the New Forest District Council and New Forest National
Park Authority Strategic Flood Risk Assessment for Local
Development Frameworks.

Before first occupation of the development hereby approved the applicant
shall have set up a detailed scheme for the future maintenance of the
sustainable drainage system, including arrangements of the responsible
parties for the maintenance of the sustainable drainage system. The system
shall thereafter be retained and maintained in accordance with the scheme.

Reason: In order to ensure that the drainage arrangements are
appropriate and in accordance with Policy CS6 of the Core
Strategy for the New Forest District outside the National Park
and the New Forest District Council and New Forest National
Park Authority Strategic Flood Risk Assessment for Local
Development Frameworks.

No development shall be carried out until proposals for the mitigation of the
~ impact of the development on the New Forest and Solent Coast European
Nature Conservation Sites have been submitted to and approved in writing
by the local planning authority, and the local planning authority has
confirmed in writing that the provision of the proposed mitigation has been
secured. Such proposals must:

(a) Provide for mitigation in accordance with the New Forest District
Council Mitigation Strategy for European Sites SPD, adopted in June
2014 (or any amendment to or replacement for this document in
force at the time), or for mitigation to at least an equivalent effect:;

(b) Provide details of the manner in which the proposed mitigation is to
be secured. Details to be submitted shall include arrangements for
the ongoing maintenance and monitoring of any Suitable Alternative
Natural Green Spaces which form part of the proposed mitigation
measures together with arrangements for permanent public access
thereto.

(c) The development shall be carried out in accordance with and subject
to the approved proposals.

Reason: The impacts of the proposed development must be mitigated
before any development is carried out in order to ensure that
there will be no adverse impacts on the New Forest and Solent
Coast Nature Conservation Sites in accordance with Policy
DM3 of the Local Plan Part 2 and the New Forest District
Council Mitigation Strategy for European Sites Supplementary
Planning Document.

Page 143



8. The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until the cycle
parking spaces shown on plan C16/013.04B have been provided. The
spaces shown shall be retained and kept available for their intended use for
the dwellings hereby approved at all times.

Reason: To ensure adequate cycle parking provision is made in the
interest of highway safety and in accordance with Policy CS2
of the Local Plan for the New Forest outside of the National
Park (Core Strategy).

Notes for inclusion on certificate:

1. In accordance with paragraphs 186 and 187 of the National Planning Policy
Framework and Article 35 of the Town and Country Planning (Development
Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015, New Forest District Council
takes a positive and proactive approach, seeking solutions to any problems
arising in the handling of development proposals so as to achieve,
whenever possible, a positive outcome by giving clear advice to applicants.

As the site has been cleared since the last application was granted, more
details were considered appropriate in respect of the hedge which was
previously shown to be retained and formed an important feature between
the site and public car park which has enabled a positive recommendation
to be made.

2. In discharging condition No. 7 above the Applicant is advised that
appropriate mitigation is required before the development is commenced,
either by agreeing to fund the Council’s Mitigation Projects or otherwise
providing mitigation to an equivalent standard. Further information about
how this can be achieved can be found here
http://www.newforest.gov.uk/article/16478/

Further Information:

Major Team
Telephone: 023 8028 5345 (Option 1)

Page 144



i ! T > R T X B Vi LSRN N—

‘o|eos . 022920001 Aening aoueupiO 910z siubu aseqejep pue buAdoo umoid ®
01 8¢ JOU |[IM }I JouIsjul 84} | | p S , S :
wouy ueyd siyy Bunuud JgN | | | ,

0GcL 1 9[eds

ed 18

enuap qor
pue
\ sy

Aefng

ajeasay

€15eNs A\
1€€0L/91

UORO 1

peoy Aingsijes

1 Jo 8IS

I¢ ‘ON way|

910z 3snbny

99) WO [0JjU0D
juswdoaaaq bBuluueld

vd.l €¥0S

1sinypui]

1noy sane|ddy

jlounog JousIq 3s8Jo4 MeN
jonuon Buipjing pue Buiuuejd
Jabeuej aoiNIe8g

woois) pired

3 AoB1salomauMmm
0005 8208 €20 ‘I°L

TIDNNOD 1D21disld

1S3I0] MIN]




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 3m

Planning Development Control Committee 10 August 2016 Item 3 m

Application Number: 16/10460 Full Planning Permission

Site: 35 SHAFTESBURY STREET, FORDINGBRIDGE SP6 1JF
Development: Use as 30 seat cinema; 8 flats; bar; terrace; fenestration
alterations; external refurbishment
Applicant: Larasian
Target Date: 14/06/2016
Target Date: 26/08/2016
1 REASON FOR COMMITTEE CONSIDERATION
Contrary to Policy
2 DEVELOPMENT PLAN AND OTHER CONSTRAINTS
Built-up area
Town Centre Boundary
Fordingbridge Conservation Area
3 DEVELOPMENT PLAN, OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
Core Strategy
CS2: Design quality
CS3: Protecting and enhancing our special environment (Heritage and Nature
Conservation)
CS5: Safe and healthy communities
CS15: Affordable housing contribution requirements from developments
CS17: Employment and economic development
CS20: Town, district, village and local centres
CS24: Transport considerations
CS25: Developers contributions
Local Plan Part 2 Sites and Development Management Development Plan
Document
DM1: Heritage and Conservation
DM3: Mitigation of impacts on European nature conservation sites
DM4: Renewable and low carbon energy generation
DM16: Within town centres, outside Primary Shopping Areas and Secondary
Shopping Frontages
4 RELEVANT LEGISLATION AND GOVERNMENT ADVICE

Section 38 Development Plan
Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004
National Planning Policy Framework

Page 147



RELEVANT SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE AND DOCUMENTS

Fordingbridge Town Design Statement

Fordingbridge Conservation Area Appraisal

Housing Design, Density and Character

Advisory Note on the Implementation of Core Strategy Policy CS15 - Affordable
Housing (Nov 2012)

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

6.1 14/10524 - 1 terrace of 4 houses (outline application) - withdrawn
December 2014 in light of concerns highlighted over the principle of
residential development, character impacts, potential ecology impacts,
lack of agreement over contributions and access arrangements.

6.2  79/NFDC/14401 - Self-contained flat with parking - 06/11/1979 Refused

6.3 XX/RFR/06972 - Change of use of cinema to Light Industry - 11/11/1960
Granted

PARISH / TOWN COUNCIL COMMENTS

Fordingbridge Town Council - recommend permission. Sympathetic restoration
of a building which has fallen into disrepair to provide an amenity and
enhancement to the town in terms of mixed development and will bring some
employment.

COUNCILLOR COMMENTS
None
CONSULTEE COMMENTS

9.1 Environmental Design (Conservation) -The proposal entails conversion to
mixed use, with a smaller cinema and residential units inserted within the
existing shell of the building. The majority of changes are to the interior
of the building with subdivision of space and the insertion of floors. The
compromise of the internal space is a little regrettable as this would have
been a key feature of the original building. The long corridor like flats
also cause some concern with regard to the amount of quality living
space that will be achieved. The proposal seeks the insertion of a
number of openings along the west elevation for the building and a
series of proposed roof lights within the new seamed roof. The
enhancement to the building with the restoration, new roof covering and
the reinstated wall along the north elevation can be balanced against
these additional openings. The simple details on the building are a key
part of its character and the proposed new windows, roof lights, doors
and openings will need to be of sufficiently high quality to justify their
interventions and replacement. A detailed condition covering these items

- would be required to ensure that larger scale aluminium windows are not
used as these generally have a much cruder and broader profile. The
use of this material does raise some concern, but suitable details can be
agreed by condition. Metal framed conservation roof lights with a central
glazing bar would be required and this should be shown on drawings.
Works to the new courtyard space and new front wall will have a positive
impact on the conservation area. This said the detailing of the proposed
balconies and staircase would need to again be of sufficiently high

Page 148



10

9.2

9.3

9.4

9.5

9.6

quality as this elevation will be visible from the conservation area. If a
simple contemporary approach to this eastern elevation is to be
successful then lightweight slim profiling would be required for both
balconies and decks. The degree of internal subdivision may be
balanced with the extensive enhancement of the building and the
restoration of features proposed. The potential to retain this important
20th century building and see it put to a sustainable new use is fully
supported, subject to conditions to clarify the detail.

Environmental Protection (Pollution) - it is recommended that sound
insulation details are controlled by way of a condition requiring a scheme
to control noise. In addition the scheme should require the control of
noise breakout to neighbouring dwellings from plant serving the
development, including air handling equipment.

Environmental Protection (Contaminated Land) - No objection in principle
to the proposed development subject to standard planning conditions
14a-14e being imposed. Without these conditions, the proposed
development on this site is likely to pose risks to human health, as the
previous use of the site was a pottery and there are petrol tanks within
the vicinity of the site. The previous gas works in Fordingbridge also
requires some consideration concerning potential contamination at the
site. .

Hampshire County Council (Highway Authority) - No objection subject to
conditions to ensure closure of the existing access and provision of cycle
parking. The site currently has a vehicular access onto Shaftsbury Street
which serves a single car parking space. This access which has poor
visibility onto the highway would be removed and stopped up. There are
no proposals to provide any car parking at the site in respect of the
proposed development, however a total of 8 cycle parking spaces would
be provided for the new flats. The site is located close to the centre of
town with access to local amenities and public-transport links. Public off
street car parking provision does exist in close proximity to the site and
double yellow lines exist in the vicinity to prevent parking in areas where
it is undesirable for safety reasons. Given the nature and scale of the
proposals the highway authority would therefore not have any in principle
objections to the proposed development as it is considered that in this
instance the shortfall in off street parking provision will not result in any
detrimental effect on users of the local highway network.

Ecologist - no objection, the ecological report appears suitable and
establishes that protected species would not be directly adversely
affected by the development based on its findings. Recommends a
condition to ensure that works are in accordance with the ecology report.

Southern Gas Networks - give informatives on proximity of the site to
their apparatus

REPRESENTATIONS RECEIVED

10.1

Representations have been received from fifteen separate parties. Three
letters raise concerns on the following grounds:

e ltis queried whether the cinema proposal will come forward and
that the scheme is in fact one solely for residential development
of the site, justified on the back of a community and commercial
benefit to the town.

Page 149




11

12

13

The Planning Authority should ensure the cinema use is retained.
Loss of privacy.

Glass panels on western wall are inappropriate

The bar and outside seating area should only be used in
conjunction with the cinema and not as an independent unit.

10.2  Twelve letters have been received in support of the proposal for the
following reasons.

The cinema will be an asset for the town
e Valuable housing will be provided
e Employment opportunities will be created

10.3  In addition, the application is supported by the Rt Hon Desmond Swayne
MP on the basis that a local amenity will be restored to the town, an Art
Deco building will be renovated and keyworker accommodation will be
provided.

CRIME & DISORDER IMPLICATIONS
None
LOCAL FINANCE CONSIDERATIONS

If this development is granted permission and the dwellings built, the Council will
receive £9,216 in each of the following six years from the dwellings' completion,
and as a result, a total of £55,296 in government grant under the New Homes
Bonus will be received.

From the 6 April 2015 New Forest District Council began charging the
Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) on new residential developments. Based
on the information provided at the time of this report this development has a CIL
liability of £24,430.02. Tables setting out all contributions are at the end of this
report.

WORKING WITH THE APPLICANT/AGENT

In accordance with paragraphs 186 and 187 of the National Planning Policy
Framework and Article 35 of the Town and Country Planning (Development
Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015, New Forest District Council
take a positive and proactive approach, seeking solutions to any problems
arising in the handling of development proposals so as to achieve, whenever
possible, a positive outcome.

This is achieved by

e Strongly encouraging those proposing development to use the very
thorough pre application advice service the Council provides.

» Working together with applicants/agents to ensure planning applications
are registered as expeditiously as possible.

 Advising agents/applicants early on in the processing of an application
(through the release of a Parish Briefing Note) as to the key issues
relevant to the application.

 Updating applicants/agents of issues that arise in the processing of their
applications through the availability of comments received on the web or
by direct contact when relevant.

Page 150




14

Working together with applicants/agents to closely manage the planning
application process to allow an opportunity to negotiate and accept
amendments on applications (particularly those that best support the
Core Strategy Objectives) when this can be done without compromising
government performance requirements.

Advising applicants/agents as soon as possible as to concerns that
cannot be dealt with during the processing of an application allowing for
a timely withdrawal and re-submission or decision based on the scheme
as originally submitted if this is what the applicant/agent requires.

When necessary discussing with applicants/agents proposed conditions
especially those that would restrict the use of commercial properties or
land when this can be done without compromising government
performance requirements.

In this case all the above apply and following the submission of additional
information to address amenity impacts the application was acceptable as
submitted and no specific further actions were required.

ASSESSMENT

14.1

14.1.1

14.1.2

14.2

14.2.1

The site and proposal

The proposal relates to a commercial (industrial/retail premises),
formerly a cinema within the Conservation Area and town centre of
Fordingbridge. Planning permission was originally granted for the
change of use from a cinema to light industry in 1960. That use
evolved into a mixed use comprising light industrial and retail. The
premises is currently vacant, formerly occupied by Branksome China.
The existing building comprises a large structure to the rear of the site,
where manufacturing previously took place, with an Art Deco facade
onto Shaftesbury Street and a frontage building, housing the retail
element of the former use. The properties to either side and rear are
two-storey dwellings of traditional appearance.

The application is made in full, proposing conversion and slight
increase in height of the rear portion of the existing building and
retention of the Art Deco facade. The ground floor of the development
would be occupied by a 30 seat cinema, bar and 2 no. flats. The first
and second floors would be occupied by 6 no. flats, within the footprint
of the existing building. To the side separate outdoor areas are
proposed for use by residents and by cinema goers, with the
reproduction of an Art Deco screen to Shaftesbury Street, over the
footprint of an existing yard area and outbuildings, to be demolished.
The main roof of the scheme would be slightly higher than the existing
structure and be finished with a standing seam metal roof, render and
slimline black aluminium windows. No off-street parking is proposed for
the proposal.

The Principle of Mixed Use Redevelopment

Policy CS17 of the Core Strategy outlines that the strategy is to keep
all existing employment sites and allocations for employment use. In
addition Policy DM16 applies within the defined town centres and
would allow for development of retail and appropriate non-retail uses.
The policy would not allow for residential development where it would
result in the total loss of town centre type uses, which add to the vitality
and viability of the town centre. This was a fundamental problem with

Page 151




14.2.2

14.3

14.3.1

14.4

14.4.1

14.5

14.5.1

the previous application on the site, which sought redevelopment for
residential purposes only. The current proposal seeks to incorporate
uses (cinema/bar) which are acceptable town centre uses, with
residential above and behind. The principle of the proposal needs to be
considered, but it is helpful that the application seeks to re-introduce a
cinema to the site, which occupies just over half of the ground floor of
the proposal. ‘

The premises has a long history of employment use and has suited
employment related use for many years. However, the premises has
been vacant for some years and its condition has deteriorated during
this time, making its re-use for employment purposes less attractive to
prospective occupiers. The building was originally constructed as a
cinema and that use would be reintroduced, with flats above and
behind. While it has not been clearly established that the employment
use of the premises is no longer a viable proposition, it is
acknowledged that the existing building is in poor condition, has a poor
relationship with adjoining residential development, that the proposal
would result in the re-introduction of a town centre use which is very
well supported by the local community and would provide residential
accommodation. Consequently, in this instance loss of an employment
site is considered to be acceptable on the basis that some jobs would
be retained on the site and that a viable town centre use would be
re-introduced, in accordance with the provisions of Policies CS17 and
CS20 of the Core Strategy and Policy DM16 of the Local Plan Part 2.

Impact on the Fordingbridge Conservation Area

The impact of the proposal upon the character and appearance of the
area must be considered under the provisions of Policies CS2 and
CS3 and the Fordingbridge Conservation Area Appraisal, the site
being within Fordingbridge Conservation Area. The Conservation
Team raise no objections to the proposal, which is generally seen as
an enhancement to the character and appearance of the conservation
area. However, conditions are required in order to clarify the detail and
finishes of the proposed development.

Ecological Impacts

The Council's Ecologist notes that the buildings to be demolished or
renovated may have features such as mortar gaps and other cavities
suitable for use by bats and the location close to water increases the
risk of their presence. A report has been submitted which indicates that
protected species would not be directly adversely affected by the
proposal. As a result no objection is raised subject to a condition.

Highway Matters

The proposal does not include any off-street parking provision,
although occupiers of the flats would have good access to town centre
public transport links and services and would most likely be employed
by a local company (Corintech) who back the application.
Consequently no concerns are raised over the lack of off-street
parking within the scheme. The County Highway Authority do not raise
any concerns over the form of development proposed, subject to
conditions to ensure the existing access is stopped up and to ensure
cycle parking is provided.

Page 152



14.6

14.6.1

14.6.2

14.6.3

14.6.4

14.7

14.7.1

14.7.2

Amenity Impacts

Policy CS2 requires the impact of development proposals upon
adjoining amenity to be considered in terms of overlooking, light loss,
outlook and noise and disturbance caused by the proposed use.

The proposal incorporates external stairs and balconies to access the
first floor flats. It was originally proposed to lower a high wall to the rear
of the site adjoining the boundary with nos. 37 and 39 Shaftesbury
Street. The lowering of the wall would allow intervisbility between the
balconies and stairs to this development and windows in the rear
elevations of their neighbours, particularly of no. 37, who have raised
concerns over loss of privacy. While a privacy screen is provided
directly adjoining the rear of nos. 37 and 39, it cannot totally mitigate
overlooking from the area of the stairs and landing, approximately 10m
away. The applicant has therefore now shown that the wall will be
retained at its current height and amended plans have been submitted
which would prevent overlooking.

While the ridge of the main building would be raised by 0.4m, this
would not cause any significant harm to adjoining amenity in respect of
any overbearing impact or loss of light.

The Environmental Health Section raise no concerns over the
proposal, subject to sound insulation details being required by
condition and details to control noise breakout to neighbouring
dwellings from plant serving the development, including air handling
equipment. It is considered prudent to limit the use of the bar and
outdoor seating area to be in association with the use of the cinema
only, so a stand alone bar cannot be created, in the interests of
adjoining amenity.

Contributions Policy

Contributions would normally be expected in relation to affordable
housing and habitat mitigation for a development of the type and scale
proposed.

In respect of affordable housing, on 19th May 2016 the Government
issued planning guidance setting out the specific circumstances in
which contributions for affordable housing and tariff style planning
obligations (section 106 agreements) should not be sought from small
scale and self-build development. This guidance has been reissued

following the order of the Court of Appeal dated 13th May 2016 (West
Berkshire District Council and Another v The Secretary of State for
Communities and Local Government). The planning guidance
specifies the circumstances in which contributions should not be
sought as follows:

“Contributions should not be sought from developments of 10 units or
less and which have a maximum combined gross floorspace of no
more than 1,000 sqm; In designated rural areas, local planning
authorities may choose to apply a lower threshold of 5 units or less...;

Affordable housing and tariff style contributions should not be sought

from any development consisting only of the construction of a
residential annex or extension to an existing house”

Page 153




14.7.3

14.7.4

14.7.5

14.8

14.8.1

14.9

14.9.1

14.9.2

This national guidance is at odds with Policy CS15 of the Council’s
Core Strategy which requires affordable housing provision to be made
for the scale of development proposed here. The presumption in
favour of the development plan remains, in that the decision should be
taken in accordance with the plan unless material considerations
indicate otherwise. The new guidance is a material consideration
which post-dates the adoption of the Local Plan. It is for the Council to
decide which should prevail in the determination of a planning
application. However, the Secretary of State, through his Inspectors
can be anticipated to give greater weight to the Government’s national
guidance unless there are reasons to make an exception.

While the need for affordable housing in this District is pressing, this in
itself is unlikely to be considered by the Secretary of State as sufficient
reason for the Council to apply its own development plan policy rather
than applying national policy. Therefore it is recommended that no
affordable housing or tariff style contributions are sought from this
development, in accordance with national Planning Practice Guidance,
contrary to the provisions of Policy CS15 of the Core Strategy.

In accordance with the Habitat Regulations 2010 an assessment has
been carried out of the likely significant effects associated with the
recreational impacts of the residential development provided for in the
Local Plan on both the New Forest and the Solent European Nature
Conservation Sites. It has been concluded that likely significant
adverse effects cannot be ruled out without appropriate mitigation
projects being secured. In the event that planning permission is
granted for the proposed development, a condition is recommended
that would prevent the development from proceeding until the applicant
has secured appropriate mitigation, either by agreeing to fund the
Council's Mitigation Projects or otherwise providing mitigation to an
equivalent standard.

Other Matters

One notified party suggests the Planning Authority should ensure the
cinema use is retained and queries whether the cinema proposal will
actually come forward at all. The Planning Authority cannot ensure the
cinema is retained, as that will be a matter for market forces to
determine. However, should the applicant wish to pursue an alternative
form of development to the cinema, then that will need to be
considered under the provisions of a new planning application
determined on its own merits.

Conclusion

Consultees raise no concerns over the form of development proposed
and officers consider that subject to the conditions outlined below, the
proposal would have no undue impacts. The proposal complies with
the relevant provisions of the development plan and the NPPF and is
accordingly recommended for approval.

In coming to this recommendation, consideration has been given to the
rights set out in Article 8 (Right to respect for private and family life)
and Article 1 of the First Protocol (Right to peaceful enjoyment of
possessions) of the European Convention on Human Rights. Whilst it
is recognised that there may be an interference with these rights and

Page 154



the rights of other third parties, such interference has to be balanced
with the like rights of the applicant to develop the land in the way
proposed. In this case it is considered that the protection of the rights
and freedoms of the applicant outweigh any possible interference that
may result to any third party.

Section 106 Contributions Summary Table

Proposal:

Type of Contribution | NFDC Policy Developer Proposed Difference
Requirement Provision

Affordable Housing

No. of Affordable 2 0 2

dwellings

Financial Contribution £3,046 0 £3,046

Habitats Mitigation

Financial Contribution £16,400 £16,400 0

CIL Summary Table

Description of GIA New GIA Existing |GIA Net Increase |CIL Liability
Class

Dwelling houses 292.98 0 292.98 £24,430.02 *
Non-Residential 134 228 -94 £0.00 *
Institutions

15. RECOMMENDATION

Grant Subject to Conditions

Proposed Conditions:

1.

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of
three years from the date of this permission.

Reason: To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning

Act 1990 as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

The development permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the
following approved plans: drawing numbers 1 Rev. B, 6 Rev. A, 7 Rev. A, 8
Rev. A, 9Rev. A, 10 Rev. A, 11 Rev. A, and 12 Rev. A.

Reason:  To ensure satisfactory provision of the development.

Page 155




Before development commences a scheme of landscaping of the site shall
be submitted for approval in writing by the Local Planning Authority. This
scheme shall include :

(a) a specification for new planting (species, size, spacing and location);
(b) areas for hard surfacing and the materials to be used;
(c) other means of enclosure;

No development shall take place unless these details have been approved
and then only in accordance with those details.

Reason: To ensure that the development takes place in an appropriate
way and to prevent inappropriate car parking to comply with
Policy CS2 of the Local Plan for the New Forest District outside
the National Park (Core Strategy).

All external works (hard and soft landscape) shall be carried out in
accordance with the approved plans and details within one year of
commencement of development and maintained thereafter as built and
subject to changes or additions (including signage) only if and as agreed in
writing with the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure the achievement and long term retention of an
appropriate quality of development and to comply with Policy
CS2 of the Local Plan for the New Forest District outside the
National Park (Core Strategy).

Before development commences, details for a scheme of sound attenuation
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by, the Local Planning
Authority. The details shall include measures to control the transfer of noise
between separate units within the building and details to control the
breakout of noise to neighbouring dwellings from plant serving the
development, including air handling and extraction equipment and from use
of the external areas of the site. The development hereby approved shall
only be implemented and thereafter maintained in accordance with the
approved scheme of sound attenuation.

Reason: In the interest of the amenity of the surrounding neighbouring
properties in accordance with Policy CS2 of the Local Plan for
the New Forest District outside the National Park (Core
Strategy).

No development shall be carried out until proposals for the mitigation of the
impact of the development on the New Forest and Solent Coast European
Nature Conservation Sites have been submitted to and approved in writing
by the local planning authority, and the local planning authority has
confirmed in writing that the provision of the proposed mitigation has been
secured. Such proposals must:

(a) Provide for mitigation in accordance with the New Forest District
Council Mitigation Strategy for European Sites SPD, adopted in June
2014 (or any amendment to or replacement for this document in
force at the time), or for mitigation to at least an equivalent effect;

Page 156



(b) Provide details of the manner in which the proposed mitigation is to
be secured. Details to be submitted shall include arrangements for
the ongoing maintenance and monitoring of any Suitable Alternative
Natural Green Spaces which form part of the proposed mitigation
measures together with arrangements for permanent public access
thereto.

(c) The development shall be carried out in accordance with and subject
to the approved proposals.

Reason: The impacts of the proposed development must be mitigated
before any development is carried out in order to ensure that
there will be no adverse impacts on the New Forest and Solent
Coast Nature Conservation Sites in accordance with Policy
DM3 of the Local Plan Part 2 and the New Forest District
Council Mitigation Strategy for European Sites Supplementary
Planning Document.

Before use of the development is commenced the existing access from the
site to Shaftsbury Street shall be permanently stopped up and effectively
closed with the footway provided and full face kerbs reinstated, in
accordance with details which have been submitted to and approved by the
Planning Authority.

Reason: In the interests of highway safety (in accordance with Policy
CS21 of the Core Strategy for the New Forest District outside
of the National Park).

Before use of the development is commenced provision for cycle storage,
shall have been made within the site in accordance with the approved plans
and shall be retained thereafter.

Reason:  To ensure adequate on-site cycle parking provision for the
.. approved development (in accordance with Policy CS21 of the
Core Strategy for the New Forest District outside of the National
Park)

Unless otherwise agreed by the Local Planning Authority, development
other than that required to be carried out as part of an approved scheme of
remediation must not commence until conditions relating to contamination
nos. 10 to 13 have been complied with.

If unexpected contamination is found after development has begun,
development must be halted on that part of the site affected by the
unexpected contamination to the extent specified by the Local Planning
Authority in writing until condition no. 13 relating to the reporting of
unexpected contamination has been complied with in relation to that
contamination.

Reason:  To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future
users of the land and neighbouring land are minimised,
together with those to controlled waters, property and
ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be
carried out safely without unacceptable risks to workers,
neighbours and other offsite receptors in accordance with
policy CS5 of the Local Plan for the New Forest District outside
the National Park (Core Strategy) and Policy DM4 of the Local
Plan For the New Forest District outside the National Park.
(Part 2: Sites and Development Management).

Page 157




10.

11.

An investigation and risk assessment, in addition to any assessment
provided with the planning application, must be completed in accordance
with a scheme to assess the nature and extent of any contamination on the
site, whether or not it originates on the site. The contents of the scheme are
subject to the approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority. The
investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken by competent
persons and a written report of the findings must be produced. The written
report is subject to the approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority.
The report of the findings must include:

(i) asurvey of the extent, scale and nature of contamination;
(ii) an assessment of the potential risks to:

human health,

property (existing or proposed) including buildings, crops,
livestock, pets, woodland and service lines and pipes,
adjoining land,

groundwaters and surface waters,

ecological systems,

archaeological sites and ancient monuments;

(i) an appraisal of remedial options, and proposal of the preferred
option(s).

This must be conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment
Agency’s ‘Model Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination,
CLR 11"

Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future
users of the land and neighbouring land are minimised,
together with those to controlled waters, property and
ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be
carried out safely without unacceptable risks to workers,
neighbours and other offsite receptors in accordance with
policy CS5 of the Local Plan for the New Forest District outside
the National Park (Core Strategy) and Policy DM4 of the Local
Plan for the New Forest District outside the National Park. (Part
2: Sites and Development Management).

A detailed remediation scheme to bring the site to a condition suitable for
the intended use by removing unacceptable risks to human health, buildings
and other property and the natural and historical environment must be
prepared, and is subject to the approval in writing of the Local Planning
Authority. The scheme must include all works to be undertaken, proposed
remediation objectives and remediation criteria, timetable of works and site
management procedures. The scheme must ensure that the site will not
qualify as contaminated land under Part 2A of the Environmental Protection
Act 1990 in relation to the intended use of the land after remediation.

Reason:  To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future
users of the land and neighbouring land are minimised,
together with those to controlled waters, property and
ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be
carried out safely without unacceptable risks to workers,

Page 158



12.

13.

14.

neighbours and other offsite receptors in accordance with
Policy CS5 of the Local Plan for the New Forest District outside
the National Park (Core Strategy) and Policy DM4 of the Local
Plan for the New Forest District outside the National Park. (Part
2: Sites and Development Management).

The approved remediation scheme must be carried out in accordance with
its terms prior to the commencement of development other than that
required to carry out remediation, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the
Local Planning Authority. The Local Planning Authority must be given two
weeks written notification of commencement of the remediation scheme
works. Following completion of measures identified in the approved
remediation scheme, a verification report that demonstrates the
effectiveness of the remediation carried out must be produced, and is
subject to the approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority.

Reason:  To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future
users of the land and neighbouring land are minimised,
together with those to controlled waters, property and
ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be
carried out safely without unacceptable risks to workers,
neighbours and other offsite receptors in accordance with
Policy CS5 of the Local Plan for the New Forest District outside
the National Park (Core Strategy) and Policy DM4 of the Local
Plan for the New Forest District outside the National Park. (Part
2: Sites and Development Management).

In the event that contamination is found at any time when carrying out the
approved development that was not previously identified it must be reported
in writing immediately to the Local Planning Authority. An investigation and
risk assessment must be undertaken in accordance with the requirements of
condition 10, and where remediation is necessary a remediation scheme
must be prepared in accordance with the requirements of condition 11,
which is subject to the approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority.
Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation
scheme a verification report must be prepared, which is subject to the
approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority in accordance with
condition 12.

Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future
users of the land and neighbouring land are minimised,
together with those to controlled waters, property and
ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be
carried out safely without unacceptable risks to workers,
neighbours and other offsite receptors in accordance with
Policy CS5 of the Local Plan for the New Forest District outside
the National Park (Core Strategy) and Policy DM4 of the Local
Plan for the New Forest District outside the National Park. (Part
2: Sites and Development Management).

Before development commences, samples of any new render, rainwater
goods, roof materials and brick shall be submitted to and approved in writing
by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall only be
implemented in accordance with the approved details.

Page 159



15.

16.

17.

18.

Reason: To ensure an acceptable appearance of the building in
accordance with Policies CS2 and CS3 of the Core Strategy for
the New Forest District outside the National Park and Policy
DM1 of the Local Plan for the New Forest District outside the
National Park. (Part 2: Sites and Development Management).

Notwithstanding submitted plans, large scale drawings (elevations and
sections) of the following details shall be submitted to and approved by the
Local Planning Authority prior to works

commencing:

e new and replacement, metal framed windows, to match where
possible the profiles and dimensions of the existing metal framed
windows;

new gates, fence, balconies, external steps and decks;

new conservation rooflights and lantern;

drawings and details of all proposed flues, ducts, vents and pipes;
details of the colour and finish of all replacement windows and doors

Work shall then be carried out in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: To ensure an acceptable appearance of the building in
accordance with Policies CS2 and CS3 of the Core Strategy for
the New Forest District outside the National Park and Policy
DM1 of the Local Plan for the New Forest District outside the
National Park. (Part 2: Sites and Development Management).

No flues ducts and vents to be placed on north and west elevations due to
their impact on these prominent facades.

Reason: To ensure an acceptable appearance of the building in
accordance with Policies CS2 and CS3 of the Core Strategy
for the New Forest District outside the National Park and
Policy DM1 of the Local Plan for the New Forest District
outside the National Park. (Part 2: Sites and Development
Management).

All replacement rainwater goods shall be cast iron or cast aluminium and
match existing profiles and fixings.

Reason: To ensure an acceptable appearance of the building in
accordance with Policies CS2 and CS3 of the Core Strategy
for the New Forest District outside the National Park and
Policy DM1 of the Local Plan for the New Forest District
outside the National Park. (Part 2: Sites and Development
Management).

Sample panels of render work, brickwork and mouldings shall be prepared
on site and be inspected and approved by the Local Planning Authority prior
to works commencing. Work shall then be carried out in accordance with
these details.

Page 160




19.

20.

Reason: To ensure an acceptable appearance of the building in
accordance with Policies CS2 and CS3 of the Core Strategy
for the New Forest District outside the National Park and
Policy DM1 of the Local Plan for the New Forest District
outside the National Park. (Part 2: Sites and Development
Management).

The bar and associated outdoor seating area shall only be used directly in
conjunction with the primary cinema use of the ground floor and shall only
be used up to two hours prior to and during advertised screening times. It
shall not be used as a separate business unit or bar, independent of the
cinema use.

Reason: To protect the amenity of adjoining occupiers in accordance
with Policy CS2 of the Local Plan for the New Forest District
outside of the National Park (Core Strategy).

The works hereby approved shall be undertaken in strict accordance with
the Ecological Survey methodology and details (Ecological Surveys Ltd)
dated July 2016 unless otherwise first agreed in writing with the Local
Planning Authority.

Reason:  To safeguard protected species in accordance with Policy CS3
of the Local Plan for the New Forest District outside of the
National Park (Core Strategy) and Policy DM2 of the Local Plan
for the New Forest District outside the National Park (Part 2:
Sites and Development Management).

Notes for inclusion on certificate:

In accordance with paragraphs 186 and 187 of the National Planning Policy
Framework and Article 35 of the Town and Country Planning (Development
Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015, New Forest Di<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>